
Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

2 

CONTENT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT: 

 
 

I. Letter from the President 

II. The Management Board’s report on the activities of Kino Polska TV S.A. in 2012 

III. Statement of the Management Board on preparing individual financial statement 

IV. Statement of the Management Board on the choice of the entity authorized to audit financial statements 

V. Individual financial statement for 2012 

VI. Auditor’s opinion on the individual financial statement audit 

VII. Auditor’s report on the individual financial statements audit 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

3 

Dear Shareholders and Investors, 

 

on behalf of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. I hereby present to you the annual report of the 

Company. 

 

In 2012 we consistently implemented the adopted development strategy, which resulted in tangible financial 

effects. Kino Polska TV S.A. revenues from sales amounted to more than PLN 100 million. Despite the difficult 

market situation, our revenue from advertising also increased by nearly 137% compared to the previous year. 

The revenue of the Company from the broadcasting activities increased to approximately PLN 45.1 million and 

the production of channels brought us over PLN 35.6 million. The net profit of the Company amounted to the 

level of PLN 14.3 million, which compared to the previous year, represents an increase of nearly 59%. In 2012, 

the EBITDA margin of Kino Polska TV S.A. increased by more than 73%, reaching PLN 23.7 million. 

 

Due to such good results, the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. will intend to recommend to the 

Supervisory Board and to the General Shareholders Meeting to pay to Shareholders the dividend from profits 

earned by the Company in 2012. The level of the proposed amount of the dividend will be made public upon the 

adoption of an appropriate resolution in this regard. 

 

In 2012, we decided to carry out the restructuring of Kino Polska TV S.A. With this end in view, we acquired 

three subsidiaries: Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o., Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. SKA and KPTV Media  

Sp. z o.o. 

 

Our year-round work on the program portfolio of Kino Polska TV S.A. channels has been well reflected in the 

viewership results. The average viewership of Kino Polska Television in 2012 was higher compared to the 

previous year by 113% in the AMR group 16-49 and by 93% in the AMR group 4 +. The autumn season TV 

schedule has brought a fresh programming offer presented in a new design, which all contributed to being 

awarded THE STATION OF THE YEAR by the prestigious magazine "Media & Marketing Polska". Popular 

among the audience FilmBox channel, also gained a wider popularity among the viewers.  Compared to the 

previous year, its average audience in the AMR group 4 + increased by 58%, and among AMR group 16-49 - by 

about 34%. 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A., as a broadcaster, puts above all an impact on the uniqueness, complexity and wider 

availability of its offer. With the application FilmBox Live, the produced by the Company channels, and almost 

800 movies  in the VOD system, are now available on Smart TV platforms and via internet TV ipla. The viewer 

will find us also in Mobile TV Cyfrowy Polsat and Tu i Tam TV in the Orange offer. Since October 2012, the 

Company's activities on Internet have been supported and complemented by a social networking site 

MojeCudowneLata.pl, created by the Kino Polska Television team. 
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A more objective measure of the value of our achievements in 2012 is the numerous prizes and awarded given. 

The dedicated to the pre-war cinema series "W Iluzjonie", produced by Kino Polska Television, was awarded by 

the Polish Film Institute as the best Polish TV program about movies. Known to the audience from the same 

channel "Kroniki futbolowe" won the Tytanowe Oko Statuette at Festiwal Kanałów Tematycznych, and the 

Company itself was among the well appreciated companies in the ranking Skrzydła Biznesu by “Dziennik 

Gazety Prawnej”.  

 

Year 2013 is very special for us: in June we will celebrate our 10th anniversary. Over the last decade we have 

undergone a fundamental change - from a small company from a niche market, trying to present the public 

forgotten Polish films, to a company whose shares are listed on the main market of the Warsaw Stock Exchange. 

 

This dynamic development is to be maintained over the future years. Among our strategic goals, there are further 

strengthening of the Company's position on the pay-tv market and the gradual increase of our presence in the 

new media. 

 

We will make sure that the implementation of these plans renders into benefits for our Shareholders 

and Investors. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Piotr Reisch 

President of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. 
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Legal basis: § 92 sec. 1 point 4 of the Regulation of Minister of Finance as of February 19, 2009 regarding 

current and periodic information, provided by issuers of securities and the conditions for acknowledging as 

equivalent information required by provisions of the laws of a country that is not a Member State of the EU. 

 

1. Information set out in the regulations on accounting 

 

1.1. Information about events materially affecting Kino Polska TV S.A. which occurred in the fiscal year 

and at the end of this year, until the approval of financial statement 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. (the „Company”, the “Issuer”) 

 

 Event 

YEAR 2012  

January  Registration of the changes in the statute of Kino Polska TV S.A. as of § 6 (change of 

the object of the company Kino Polska TV S.A.) 

 Start of share buyback 

 Transactions of buyback of Own Shares 

March  Conclusion of a material agreement between Kino Polska TV S.A. and Dish Network 

LLC; expansion on the U.S. market - the subject of the agreement is the granting by 

Kino Polska TV S.A. for Dish Network rights to broadcast channels Kino Polska 

International and Kino Polska Muzyka for the territory of  the United States of 

America. In addition, the agreement sets out the terms of cooperation in the area of  

Video on Demand services 

April  Proposal of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. on the allocation of the 

profit for the year 2011 in the amount of  PLN 9 002 242.86 and profit in the amount 

of 4 856 757.14  from previous years to pay dividend to shareholders 

 The positive opinion of the Supervisory Board on the allocation of profit for the year 

2011 in the amount of PLN 9 002 242.86 and profit in the amount of PLN 4 856 

757.14  from previous years to pay dividend to shareholders 

 Convening on May 14, 2012 of the General Shareholders Meeting of Kino Polska TV 

S.A.   

May  The General Shareholders Meeting of Kino Polska TV S.A.; adoption of resolutions, 

among others on the approval of the financial statements for the year 2011, the 

appropriation of profit for 2011 of PLN 9 002 242.86 and profit in the amount of 

PLN 4 856 757.14 from previous years to pay dividends to shareholders and amend 

the Rules of the Purchase of Own Shares  

 Setting the terms of cooperation between Kino Polska TV S.A. and Cyfrowy Polsat  

S.A. 

June   Registration of amendments to the Statute of Kino Polska TV S.A. as of § 17 – 

Scope of Competences  of the Supervisory Board 

 Conclusion of a material agreement between Kino Polska TV S.A. and  

Cyfrowy Polsat S.A., pursuant to which, among others, the Company has granted 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

11 

Cyfrowy Polsat S.A. the rights to distribute FightBox program on the platform of 

Cyfrowy Polsat S.A.  

 Signing of Annex No. 3 to the Agreement as of February 23, 2010 between the Issuer 

and Cyfrowy Polsat specifying the conditions under which Cyfrowy Polsat  

introduced to its portfolio, as of June 1, 2012, two new channels produced by the 

Company: FilmBox Family and FilmBox Extra and moved Kino Polska Television 

to the Basic Package ("Family Package" and "Family Package HD")  

 Kino Polska Television is included in the Mobile TV of Cyfrowy Polsat  

 Conclusion of a material agreement with PK 13 Sp. z o.o. for rent of office space 

located in Warsaw at ul. Puławska 435A 

 Renewal and increase of the credit line in the current account 

 Appointment of System Rewident Sp. z o.o. to audit the financial statements of the 

Company for the period from  January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 and of the 

consolidated financial statements of the Capital Company for the period from  

January 1, 2012 to  December 31, 2012 and to review of individual and consolidated 

financial statements for the first half of 2012 

 Transactions of buyback of own shares  

July  Transactions of buyback of own shares  

 The acquisition of 69 415 shares of Stopklatka S.A. 

 A decision on the start of a procedure to restructure Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 FilmBox Live package was made available via the Internet TV ipla 

 Start of broadcast of  Kino Polska International and Kino Polska Muzyka on the 

territory of U.S. 

August   The resolution of the Supervisory Board on the approval of measures aimed at 

restructuring of Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 Transactions of buyback of own shares   

September  Transactions of buyback of own shares   

October  Transactions of buyback of own shares 

 Establishment of the branch Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 Convening on October 31, 2012 of an Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting 

of Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 Acquisition of three subsidiaries: Cornville Investments Sp. z o.o. (new name: KPTV 

Media Sp. z o.o.), Farley Investments Sp. z o.o. (new name: Kino Polska Program 

Sp. z o.o.), Farley Investments Sp. z o.o. SKA (new name: Kino Polska  Program Sp. 

z o.o. SKA) 

 The Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of Kino Polska TV S.A.; adoption 

of resolutions on, among others, dismissal of a Member of the Supervisory Board, 

Mr Witold Adamek, from the function and the simultaneous appointment as Member 

of the Supervisory Board of  the Company of  Ms Anna Krasińska and the consent to 

the sale of an organized part of Kino Polska TV S.A. through its contribution as  

a contribution in kind to a fully controlled subsidiary of the Issuer 

December   Resolution of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. to initiate the 

procedure for the payment of advances for future dividends for the year 2012 in the 

amount of PLN 0.50 per 1 share 
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 Resolution of the Supervisory Board on the approval to change the Statute of the 

Company in the authorization of the Management Board of the Issuer to pay to 

shareholders of  the expected dividend at the end of the financial year and to agree to 

the payment of interim dividends in the amount requested by the Management Board  

 Appointment of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. for another 3-year 

term 

 Appointment of an Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting to approve the 

amendments to the Statute of Kino Polska TV S.A. as described above 

Year 2013  

January  Appoint an auditor to audit the financial statement of the Company for the purpose of 

payment of interim dividend for the year 2012 

 Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of Kino Polska TV S.A.; adoption of 

a resolution approving the change of § 23 of the Company's Statute on the authority 

of the Management Board to pay advanced payment to shareholders towards future  

dividends 

 Registration of the change of § 23 of the Statute of the Company 

 Decision on change of formula of ads broadcasting; shortening and increasing the 

frequency of individual breaks through their broadcast during selected television 

programs 

 Resolution of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. on the advance 

payment of future dividends for the year 2012, the amount of payment: PLN 0,50  for 

1 share. The total amount allocated to the payment of the advance: PLN 6 910 702.00  

February  Sale of the organized part the Company to its subsidiary Kino Polska  Sp. z o.o. 

SKA, as a contribution to cover the newly issued shares of the subsidiary 

  Registration of the increase in capital share of Kino Polska Sp. z o.o. SKA 

(hereinafter: "Kino Polska Program"). The share capital of Kino Polska Program Sp. 

z o.o. SKA was increased from PLN 50,000.00 to the amount of PLN 4,830,500.00 . 

The increased capital was covered in kind in the form of a separate and organized 

part of the Company. 

 Registration of the changed name of subsidiaries of the Issuer; Kino Polska Program 

Sp. z o.o. SKA (formerly: KPTV Program Sp. z o.o. SKA) and change in the name of 

its sole general partner Kino Polska  Program Sp. z o.o. (formerly: KPTV Program 

Sp. z o.o.) 

 Signing of an investment agreement between Kino Polska TV S.A. and Agora S.A. in 

terms of financing the channel Stopklatka TV in case of receiving a concession to 

distribute this channel by terrestrial digital way on the multiplex first (MUX1) 

 The date of setting the right to advance dividend for the year 2012 – February 21, 

2013.  

 Payday of the advance dividend for the year 2012 -  February 28, 2013 The amount 

of the advance payment: PLN 0,50 per 1 share, a total of PLN 6 910 702.00  

March  Signing of a material agreement by a 100% subsidiary of the Issuer - KPTV Media 

Sp. z o.o. with the company Filmbox International Ltd. (formerly: SPI TV Ltd.) on 

production of programs from the FilmBox brand; for the services provided, KPTV 

Media will receive a monthly salary of incurred costs in connection with the 
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preparation of the programs increased by a fixed margin; the agreement dated on 

September 1, 2010 (duration from January 1, 2011) between the Issuer and SPI TV 

Ltd. is still in force - the Issuer will provide production services of channels from the  

FilmBox brand complementary to those of KPTV Media Sp. z o.o. in this area. 

 Signing of a material agreement by a 100% subsidiary of the Issuer - KPTV Media 

Sp. z o.o. with the company Filmbox International Ltd. (formerly SPI TV Ltd.) for 

the signal transmission of programs from the FilmBox brand, in respect of these 

services KPTV Media will receive a monthly salary of incurred costs in connection 

with the transmission of the signal of these channels increased by a fixed margin; the 

agreement dated on September 1, 2010 (duration from January 1, 2011) between the 

Issuer and SPI TV Ltd. is still in force - the Issuer will provide signal transmission 

services of channels from the FilmBox brand complementary to those of KPTV 

Media Sp. z o.o. in this area 

 

 

1.2. Information of the expected development of the Company 

 

The strategic goal of Kino Polska TV S.A. is a systematic increase of its presence in the new media, which 

means reaching a broader audience, especially young people. In recent years, television senses the effects of  

a phenomenon that is shared by all traditional media: more users choose Internet. In this situation, a further 

specialization of channels and reaching the new media seems to be most  important. 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A., as a broadcaster, puts the primary impact on the uniqueness of the offer. With the 

application FilmBox Live, the produced by the Company channels and nearly 800 of movies in the VOD system 

are available on the Internet and Smart TV platforms. The channels of the Company are also present in ipla 

Internet TV, Orange TV and in the Mobile TV of Cyfrowy Polsat. In October, its premiere had Moje cudowne 

Lata – a social network site created by the Kino Polska Television team. 

 

In addition, Kino Polska TV S.A. will continue to work on strengthening its position on the pay-TV market. For 

the most part this applies to FilmBox Premium package, which in 2012 was supplemented with two new 

channels: FightBox and FilmBox Action. At the end of 2012 the FilmBox Premium package reached about 1.7 

million active subscribers. 

 

1.3. Information of major achievements of the Company in the field of research and development 

 

The Company does not conduct activities related to research and development 
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1.4. Information on current financial situation  

 

Year 2012 was a very successful time for Kino Polska TV S.A. During this period, the Company’s net profit 

amounted to PLN 14 294 230. 47, which is almost a 59% growth in comparison to 2011. 

 

In 2012, the Issuer had sales revenues of PLN 100 042 652.91. It is an increase by 24% in comparison to 2011. 

 

Profit from operating activities was achieved at the level of PLN 18 031 603.73, which is an increase by 72% in 

comparison to 2011.  

  

The Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. recognizes the current financial position of the company as 

stable. 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. is not in danger of losing liquidity. The Management Board of the Issuer assumes  

a systematic increase in the Company’s revenue in the coming years. 

 

1.5 Information on the transactions of buyback of own shares, in particular, the aim and cost of their 

purchase, number and nominal value, indicating the proportion of the share capital they represent, the 

purchase price and the selling price of these shares if sold 

 

On January 17, 2012, the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. resolved to start buying its own shares in 

accordance with the resolution adopted. These actions were a result of Resolution No. 4 of the Extraordinary 

General Shareholders Meeting on own share buyback dated November 28, 2011. 

 

Terms of acquisition of Own Shares as of May 13, 2012. 

1. Pursuant to Resolution No. 4 of the Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting held on November 28, 2011, 

the Management Board is authorized to acquire Own Shares of the Company ("Own Shares") by the Company 

and to take other necessary factual and legal efforts to acquire Shares on the following terms and conditions:  

a) within the frame of the consent of Resolution No. 4 of the Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting  held 

on November 28, 2011, the Management Board is authorized to purchase up to 1.387.000 (in wording: one 

million three hundred eighty-seven thousand) Shares of a nominal value of PLN 0.10 ( in wording: ten gross) per 

share, which represents 10% of the share capital of the Company; 

b) the total amount allocated by the Company to finance the price (salary) for acquisition of Own Shares and the 

cost of acquisition, will not exceed PLN 5.000.000.00 (five million zloty) for all of Own Shares acquired; 

c) the acquisition of Own Shares will be financed with funds from the capital reserve, earmarked for the 

transactions of buyback of Own Shares for the purpose of their redemption, established pursuant to the 

provisions of section 2; 

d) the price at which the Company will acquire Own Shares  may not be of a higher value than the price of the 

last before the date of the acquisition independent trade and the highest current independent bid in transactions 
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on the Warsaw Stock Exchange S.A. and the price may not be higher than PLN 12 (twelve zloty); 

e) acquisition of Own Shares will be through a brokerage house on the Stock Exchange in Warsaw and the 

Management Board is entitled to choose the brokerage house and determine the conditions of co-operation;  

f) the Company may acquire Own Shares  in accordance with Resolution No. 4 of the Extraordinary General 

Shareholders Meeting as of  November 28, 2011, in a period of 24 months from the date of its adoption, however 

not longer than until all funds designated for the acquisition in accordance with point b) above, i.e. the payment 

of all amounts indicated therein for all Own Shares acquired, or for the acquisition of Own Shares in the number 

specified in point a) above, depending on whichever occurs first. 

2. The Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of the Company assigned from the capital an amount of 

PLN 5.000.000.00 (five million zloty) and committed the Management Board to transfer it to the capital reserve 

- "Measures for the Acquisition of Own Shares" for the purpose of settlement of the total purchase price of the 

Company's shares increased by the cost of acquisition of the shares of the Company. 

 

On May 14, 2012, the Ordinary General Shareholders Meeting adopted a resolution according to which 

the provisions of section 1 point d) of the Rules of Acquisition of Own Shares, giving it a new following 

wording: 

 section 1 point. d) 

d) "The price at which the Company will acquire Own Shares  may not be higher than  the last price before the 

date of the acquisition of independent trade and the highest current independent bid in transactions on the Stock 

Exchange in Warsaw and the price may not be higher than PLN 15 (fifteen zloty), respectively." 

 

In addition, the General Shareholders Meeting as of May 14, 2012 adopted a resolution to amend the 

conditions of redemption of Own Shares, giving it a new following wording: 

"In order to redeem Shares acquired immediately after the deadline for purchase of Shares pursuant to section 1, 

letter f) of this resolution, the Management Board shall convene a General Shareholders Meeting of the 

Company with an agenda including at least adoption of a resolution on redemption of Own Shares and share 

capital reduction by way of redemption of the Company's Own Shares. The Management Board is also 

authorized to convene a General Shareholders Meetings of the Company with an agenda including adoption of  

a resolution on redemption of Shares and share capital reduction by the redemption of Own Shares prior to the 

deadline specified in section 1, letter f), during the buyback process. " 

Prior to the above-mentioned changes in the conditions of redemption of Own Shares, the rules were defined as 

follows: "In order to redeem Own Shares acquired immediately after the expiry of transactions of buyback of 

Own Shares in accordance with § 2. Section 1, letter f) of the Rules, the Management Board shall convene  

a General Shareholders Meeting of the Company with an agenda including at least adoption of a resolution on 

redemption of Shares and share capital reduction by way of redemption of the Company's Own Shares. " 

A complete text of the Regulations of Purchasing Own Shares is available on the website of the Issuer 

www.kinopolska.pl in the Investor Relations / Corporate Governance part.  
 

In the analysed period, the Issuer consistently implemented the share buyback program. 
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Currently Kino Polska TV S.A. has 48 596 own shares with a nominal value of PLN 4 859.60, which is 

0.35037% of the share capital and corresponds to 48 596 votes at the General Shareholders Meeting of Kino 

Polska TV S.A. Information on the purchase price of own shares  is included in the Company's current reports. 

1.6 Information held by the Company of the Issuer's branches or wagers 

 

In the analysed period, the Issuer's Management Board passed a resolution to set up on October 1, 2012, a unit of 

Kino Polska TV S.A. based in Warsaw, acting under the name "Kino Polska TV" S.A. - Branch in Warsaw. The 

branch has been active in the production and broadcast of Kino Polska Television, Kino Polska Muzyka and 

Kino Polska International as well selling advertising time. 

 

"Kino Polska Television" S.A. - Branch in Warsaw on February 1, 2013 was submitted to the company Kino 

Polska Program Sp. z o.o. SKA, as a contribution in kind to cover the newly issued shares of series B. A detailed 

description of the transaction is contained in point 9 of this section of the annual report. 

 

On February 22, 2013, the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. passed a resolution to initiate the 

procedure on removal of Kino Polska TV S.A. from the National Court Register.   

 

1.7 Information on the financial instruments in the range of:  

a) Risks: price risk, credit, significant disruptions to cash flow and liquidity risk to which the unit is 

exposed 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. during the analysed period was not exposed to the risk associated with price changes 

having a significant impact on cash flow disruptions that could affect the loss of liquidity. The Company when 

acquiring services, materials and goods is trying to negotiate their prices. 

 

From the point of view of implementation of the Company's current liabilities, an important fact is the 

conclusion on June 29, 2012, of an Annex No. 6 to Agreement No. 3/2008 in the current account (hereinafter: 

the "Loan") from April 10, 2008, together with the annexes between Kino Polska TV S.A. and Bank Polska Kasa 

Opieki S.A. with its seat in Warsaw (the "Bank"). The subject of the Annex is to renew and increase the credit 

line overdrafts. In accordance with the provisions of the Annex, the credit is available for the following periods 

and amounts: 

- in the period from June 29, 2012 to July 15, 2012 in the amount of PLN 3 700 000 (three million seven 

hundred thousand zloty), 

- in the period from July 16, 2012 to June, 28 2013 in the amount of PLN 5 000 000 (five million zloty). 

 

The term of the credit expires on June 28, 2013. 

 

The Loan interest rate is variable, fixed at WIBOR 1M + daily margin. The Loan payment protection law is 

made by the Company at the disposal of the Bank's promissory blank note, the declaration of submission to 

execution of Kino Polska TV S.A. to the amount of PLN 10 000 000 (ten million zloty), including any claims of 
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the Bank under the loan agreement on current account No. 3/2008 and granting power of attorney to the Bank to 

dispose of the funds in current accounts of the Company. 

 

The term of the current credit line in the current account at the amount of PLN 3 000 000 (three million zloty) 

expired on June 29, 2012 (Kino Polska TV S.A. informed in a current report No. 28/2011 about opening of the 

credit line).  

 

The Company decided not to renew the current loan advance valid until  July 3, 2012  (about the agreement with 

the Bank on the loan advance, Kino Polska TV S.A. informed in a current report No. 32/2011). 

 

b) The Company’s objectives and methods of financial risk management, including methods of securing 

the planned transactions for which hedge accounting is applied 

 

The Company does not use financial risk management methods. 

 

1.8. Financial and non-financial indicators, including information relating to environmental matters and 

employment, as well as additional explanations of amounts reported in the financial statements 

 

Key financial ratios of the Company were as follows: 

 

 

 

 Year 2012 

Return on assets  19.65% 

Return on equity 21.83% 

Net profit margin 14.29% 

Gross profit margin 17.72% 

Liquidity ratio I 4.67 

Liquidity ratio I 4.57 

Liquidity ratio III 0.82 

Receivables turnover in days 76 

Liabilities turnover in days 22 

Debt ratio 0.12 

Debt coverage ratio 7.11 

Fixed assets coverage ratio 1.75 

Financing sustainability ratio 0.88 

 

 

Due to a systematic development of the Company the number of its employees in 2012 compared to 2011 

increased by 13.58%. 
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Year 2012 

 

Year 2011 

Management board 2 2 

Directors 

(per department) 
14 16 

Administration 7 4 

Department of TV 

channels 
69 59 

Other professionals 0 0 

Total 92 81 

 

Environmental issues do not apply to the Company.  
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2. THE SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA INCLUDING BASIC ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY 

  

Selected consolidated financial data 

Period from 

01.01.2012  

to 31.12.2012 

Period from 

01.01.2011  

to 31.12.2011 

Period from 

01.01.2012  

to 31.12.2012 

Period from 

01.01.2011  

to 31.12.2011 

    in PLN in EUR 

I Sales revenues 100 042 652.91 80 401 949.44 23 970 350.04 19 420 291.65 

II Profit from operating activities 18 031 603.73 10 460 847.40 4 320 395.76 2 526 713.70 

III Gross profit 17 726 847.04 10 777 497.55 4 247 375.66 2 603 197.40 

IV Net profit 14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 3 424 916.25 2 174 402.28 

V 

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the 

parent company 14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 3 424 916.25 2 174 402.28 

VI Weighted average value of shares (number) 11 573 639 12 653 562 11 573 639 12 653 562 

VII Own shares (number) 48 596 0 48 596 0 

VIII 

Net profit per one share, attributable to 

shareholders of the parent company 1.24 0.71 0.30 0.17 

IX Net cash from operating activities 12 025 921.44 1 826 297.00 2 881 426.45 441 123.89 

X Net cash from investing activities (5 674 607.20) (21 228 393.47) (1 359 643.28) (5 127 507.42) 

XI Net cash from financial activities (14 620 736.87) 33 836 807.74 (3 503 147.61) 8 172 944.55 

XII Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 6 520 736.69 14 790 159.32 1 562 377.01 3 572 415.96 

  as of 31.12.2012 as of 31.12.2011 as of 31.12.2012 as of 31.12.2011 

XIII Fixed assets  37 523 261.05 38 079 706.70 9 178 430.86 8 621 560.11 

XIV Current assets   37 183 919.10 32 735 923.67 9 095 425.64 7 411 683.50 

XV Total assets 74 707 180.15 70 815 630.37 18 273 856.50 16 033 243.61 

XVI Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 9 209 782.92 5 367 382.29 2 252 772.11 1 215 219.68 

XVII Long-term liabilities 645 503.45 441 063.20 157 894.29 99 860.35 

XVIII Short-term liabilities 8 564 279.47 4 926 319.09 2 094 877.81 1 115 359.33 

XIX Equity  65 497 397.23 65 448 248.08 16 021 084.40 14 818 023.93 

XX Share capital 1 387 000.00 1 387 000.00 339 269.12 314 028.26 

  

The above financial data for years 2012 and 2011 were converted into EUR by the following: 

- Assets and liabilities - at the average exchange rate announced by the Polish National Bank: 

1) as of  December 31, 2012 - 4.0882 PLN / EUR 

2) as of   December 31,  2011 - 4.4168 PLN / EUR 

- Items of the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows - average exchange rate, calculated as an average of the rates 

prevailing on the last day of each month during the period announced by the Polish National Bank: 

1) on the last day of each month of the year 2012 - 4.1736 PLN / EUR 

2) on the last day of each month of the year 2011 - 4.1401 PLN / EUR 
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3. OVERVIEW OF KEY ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL FACTORS, DESCRIPTION OF FACTORS 

AND EVENTS, INCLUDING NON-RECURRING, WITH A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE 

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS PERFORMANCE ON GAINS OR LOSSES INCURRED 

IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR, AND DISCUSSION OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROSPECTS OF 

AT LEAST THE  COMING FISCAL YEAR 

 

3.1. Overview of key economic and financial factors, description of factors and events, including non-

recurring, with a significant impact on the activities of the issuer and its performance on gains or losses 

incurred 

 

Financial results  

 

The Company’s net profit in the said period amounted to PLN 14 294 230.47, it is almost 59% more than in 

2011. The operating profit of Kino Polska TV S.A. in 2012 was of PLN 18 031 603.73, which is more than 72% 

increase compared to the previous year. Approx. 73% increase was recorded in the EBITDA1 margin. The higher 

EBITDA growth compared to net profit is dictated by an approximately 73% increase in depreciation (purchase 

of fixed assets, amortization of license agreements) in 2012 compared to the previous year, as well as an increase 

in the Company’s financial costs (mainly exchange rate differences). The Company’s revenue from sales have 

also increased from PLN 80 401 949.44 in 2011 to PLN 100 042 652. 91 in 2012. 

 

The table below shows the dynamic changes in selected economic and financial information of the Company. 

 

Economic and financial items  Year 2012 Year 2011 
% change 

2012/2011 

Revenues from sales PLN 100 042 652.91  PLN 80 401 949.44  +24% 

Profit from operating activities PLN 18 031 603.73  PLN 10 460 847.40  +72% 

Net profit PLN 14 294 230.47  PLN 9 002 242.86  +59% 

EBITDA  PLN 23 719 419.85  PLN 13 740 877.14   +73% 

 

In the view of the good results achieved for 2012 the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. will intend to 

recommend to the Supervisory Board and the General Shareholders Meeting of the Company's to pay dividends 

to shareholders from the profit generated. in 2012. The level of the proposed dividend, the Issuer will give to the 

public upon adoption of an appropriate resolution in this regard.  

On February 28, 2013 the Company paid to shareholders an advance on future dividend for the year 2012 in the 

amount of PLN 0.50 per share. 

 

Structure of revenues 

The Issuer's revenue from broadcasting activities for the year 2012 amounted to PLN 45 059 089.71, which 

represents an increase of over 7% compared to last year. The Company’s revenue from the production of 

channels increased by nearly 39%, reaching PLN 35 631 747.34. With the sale of the film license agreements in 

                                                             
1 EBITDA is calculated on the basis of profit from operating activities increased by depreciation 
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possession of the Company, a 137% increase in total revenues from the sale of rights and goods was noted, 

which at the end of 2012 amounted to a total of PLN 1 696 737.07 . 

 

In the analysed period, the Company also increased sales of Kino Polska Television DVD Publishing 

- the revenue from this source amounted to PLN 199 604.71, and thus by 165% more than in the previous year.  

In the year 2012 in comparison to 2011, the Company recorded a decrease in VOD revenues by nearly 45% 

(from PLN 4 981 284.80 to PLN 2 754 827.12). This decrease resulted primarily from the significant 

competition between providers of such services and, consequently, the observed drop-market prices for these 

services. It is worth noting however that, at present, especially in the case of VOD services, the Company’s 

revenue is stable on the Polish territory Are made efforts to intensify cooperation with partners on foreign 

markets 

The following table shows the dynamics of the various sources of revenue generated by the Company 

in 2012 compared to 2011. 

 

Source of Income 
Revenue in PLN 

in 2012 (in PLN) 

Revenue  

in 2011 (in PLN) 

Change % 

 (y/y) 

BROADCASTING ACTIVITIES 45 059 089.71  41 988 912.79  +7% 

CHANNEL PRODUCTION 35 631 747.34  25 651 596.31  +39% 

ADVERTISEMENT 13 360 556.73  5 631 878.45  +137% 

VOD 2 754 827.12  4 981 284.80  -45% 

SALES OF RIGHTS 610 082.18  584 078.08  +4% 

PUBLISHING 199 604.71  75 308.61  +165% 

SALE OF GOODS 1 086 654.89  131 399.80  +727% 

OTHER SERVICES 1 340 090.23  1 357 490.60  -1% 

TOTAL in PLN  100 042 652.91  80 401 949.44  +24% 

 

 

The structure of Kino Polska TV S.A. revenue in 2012: 
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The structure of Kino Polska TV S.A. revenue in 2011: 

 

 

 

Advertising revenue and viewership 

 

Among the most important factors that have impact on the Issuer’s financial results a significant increase in 

viewership (AMR2) of produced and distributed by the Issuer channels should be highlighted, and as a result - an 

increase in advertising revenue of the Company. 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. advertising revenue in 2012 amounted to PLN 13 360 556.73, which accounts for a nearly 

137% increase compared to the same period the previous year. 

 

The year 2012 brought an increase in television viewership of Kino Polska Television in the group AMR 4 + and 

AMR 16-49. The greatest progress in comparison with the same month last year the channel recorded in April 

2012 - reaching 176% in AMR 4 + and 260% in AMR 16-493. 

 

A significant increase in viewership in the same month of the previous year, the channel also noted in June – 

growth of 147% for group AMR 4 + and 177% for AMR 16-49. Average viewership of Kino Polska Television 

in 2012 was higher by 93% compared to the previous year in the group AMR 4 + and by 113% in  

the group AMR 16-49. The highest viewership in both groups the channel reported in December 2012.  

It amounted to 54 881 for a group of AMR 4 + and 26 456 for AMR 16-49. In July 2012 the channel reported  

a record annual share for the group of 16-49 - it was 1.13% SHR4.5  

 

 

                                                             
2 AMR – Average Minute Rating - average size of the audience on a minute-by-minute basis throughout the length of a program 
3
 Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement 

4
 SHR – Share - the percent of Households Using Television (HUT) or Persons Viewing Television (PVT) which are tuned to a specific 

program or station at a specific time 
5
 Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement  
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The following graphs show the viewership of Kino Polska Television in each month of 2012 and 2011. 

 

 

Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement, AMR, 16-49 

 

 

Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement, AMR, all 4+ 

 

Positive changes in terms of viewership in 2012 were also reported by FilmBox channel. From May 2012 the 

channel has maintained a stable level of average monthly viewership in both groups: 4 + AMR and AMR 16-49. 

 

As a result, according to the Nielsen Audience Measurement, in February 2013, FilmBox in the AMR group 4 + 

had almost 13.000 viewers. Average viewership of the channel for this group in 2012 was increased by 58% 

compared to the previous year.  The highest increases were noted in the following months: March (167%), April 

(149%) and August (137%). In the 16-49 group, the largest audience growth was in March (111%) 

and August (172%).6 

 

In November and December of 2012, FilmBox noted lower viewership compared to last year's data. This 

difference results from the fact that in 2011, an increase in the AMR group 4 + and 16-49 was conditioned by the 

so called "open window" for FilmBox channel, offered at this time to subscribers of Cyfrowy Polsat. This kind 

                                                             
6 Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement 
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of promotion did not take place in 2012, which resulted in the channels lower viewership. 

 

In 2012, compared to 2011 the average level of SHR% of FilmBox channel increased, reaching in group 4 + 

nearly 0.18%. In this group, the largest increase in SHR% compared to last year's data was in March (175%) and 

April 2012 (146%). The SHR% in the group 16-49, compared to 2011, the biggest dynamics showed in August 

- an increase of 149% and in March 2012 - an increase of 116%.7 

 

The following graphs show the channel audience of FilmBox in each month in 2012 and 2011. 

 

Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement, AMR, 16-49 

 

 

Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement, AMR, all 4+ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                             
7 Source: Nielsen Audience Measurement 
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Technical coverage 

In 2012, the Company consistently strengthened its position on the media market, thereby increasing the 

technical coverage of channels produced and distributed by Kino Polska TV S.A.. 

 

The table below shows the dynamics of technical coverage of different channels as of  December 31, 2012 and 

December 31, 2011. 

 

CHANNEL 

NUMBER OF ACTIVE 

SUBSCRIBERS 

as of 31.12.2012  

NUMBER OF ACTIVE 

SUBSCRIBERS  

as of 31.12.2011  

PERCENTAGE 

CHANGE  

Kino Polska Television 8 175  6 201 +32% 

Kino Polska Muzyka 1 707 2 445 -30% 

FilmBox Basic 4 810 4 586 +5% 

FilmBox Premium 1 698 1 217 +40% 

(in thousands) 

 

 

The decrease in the number of subscribers of Kino Polska Muzyka was caused by the decision of the 

Management Board of the Company, pursuant to which, from September 1, 2012 it stopped broadcasting the 

satellite signal of the channel. This decision was due to high cost of Cyfra + platform as well as a lack of interest 

from other satellite operators. After introduced changes, Kino Polska Muzyka  is still offered by cable operators: 

Multimedia Poland, INEA, Toya, Vectra and UPC, as well as TV internet ipla, as part of the FilmBox Live 

package. In addition, this channel is also available in the United States through the Dish Network platform. It is 

planned to gradually increase the channel in the presence of mobile devices. Kino Polska Muzyka’s place on 

satellite was taken by the produced and distributed by the Company - FilmBox Action. 

Prizes and Awards  

Confirmations of last year’s success of the Kino Polska TV S.A. are the granted prizes and awards. 

The Company was among the companies appreciated in the prestigious "Dziennik Gazety Prawnej" – Skrzydła 

Biznesu 2012. Kino Polska TV S.A. was honoured in the category "Firmy średnie" in the Mazowieckie 

voivodship. 

An entire collection of laurels was gathered by the Issuer's flagship channel - Kino Polska Television.  

In recognition of the growing viewership, a valuable programming offer and the skill to interest the younger part 

of the audience, the magazine "Media & Marketing Polska," titled it the Station of the Year. Once again, Kino 

Polska Television received from the editor of  "Tele Tydzień" a nomination to Telekamera in the category  

"Kanał filmowy i serialowy". 
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A success among audience and industry turned out to be the programs produced by the Company. Dedicated to 

the pre-war cinema series "W Iluzjonie" was honoured with the prestigious award of Polish Film Institute as the 

best Polish film program about films At the Festiwal Kanałów Tematycznych , organized by the Polish Chamber 

of Electronic Communication, “Kroniki Futbolowe" won the statute Tytanowe Oko.  

Kino Polska Television was also recognized for actions not connected with broadcast activities. In the 

prestigious competition Media Trendy 2012 the image campaign of the channel was awardedd, produced in the 

form of a film contest - "Łączymy pokolenia." 

Codziennik, an application for smartphones, prepared by the editorial team of Kino Polska Television, styled in  

a form of a wall calendar, takes part in the Appaward competition for the best entertainment application.  

As in previous years, the Company has successfully engaged in the production of films at the same time 

receiving rewards for past performance. The most successful co-production of Kino Polska TV S.A. turned out 

to be last year’s „Rzeź" by Roman Polanski. Between January and December 2012, the film won such 

prestigious awards as the Golden Globes for Kate Winslet and Jodie Foster, and a Caesar for Roman Polanski 

and Yasmina Reza for Best Adapted Screenplay, and two nominations for the European Film Award (for the 

script and the main female role). A co-produced by Kino Polska TV S.A. latest movie by Jan Jakub Kolski - "To 

Kill a Beaver”, celebrated triumphs on many festivals. Eryk Lubos, the lead actor in this film, was awarded the 

best actor at the 47th Film Festival in Karlovy Vary. At the international festival Plus Camerimage in Bydgoszcz, 

the operator Michał Pakulski won the award Złota Żaba in the competition for Polish movies.  

The comedy co-produced by the Company, "To be like Kazimierz Deyna", won the Audience Award at the 30th 

International Young Audience Film Festival ALE KINO! The film was also recognized as the best Polish debut 

of 2012, winning the Grand . 

Additional significant events affecting the Company's operations in 2012 were described in point 1.1.of this part 

of the report. 

 

There were no extraordinary events affecting the Issuer's operations in 2012. 

3.2. Prospects for the development of the Issuer 

The perspectives for the development of the Issuer were described in point 1.2 of this part of the report. 
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4. DESCRIPTION OF SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND HAZARDS, IDENTIFYING THE EXTENT TO 

WHICH THE ISSUER IS EXPOSED TO 

 

Risk factors relating to the Company 

 

Risk of loss of concession / not granting the concession after duration of validity  

The Issuer’s activity in the production of a channel Kino Polska Television, is based on its concession No. 

296/2003-T to broadcast satellite coded television channel named Kino Polska, granted by the National 

Broadcasting Council for a defined period of time, i.e. till December 17, 2013. Kino Polska TV S.A. filed an 

application to the National Broadcasting Council for an extension of the concession for Kino Polska TV S.A.  for 

the next 10-year period. Kino Polska TV S.A. has also concession No. 489/2011-T to broadcast a satellite TV 

channel named Kino Polska Muzyka. This license is valid from December 7, 2011 and will expire on December 

6, 2021. 

 

It is not possible to exclude the risk that potential failure to fulfil the obligations of the concession, especially in 

the scope of the program contents or the maximum commercial air time, or permanent failure to broadcast, may 

effect such sanctions on the part of the National Broadcasting Council as request to lift breach, pecuniary fines of 

up to 50% of the annual fee for using the allotted frequency, or up to 10% of the Issuer’s income for the previous 

There is the risk that National Broadcasting Council will refuse the re-granting of concession after the original 

Concession expires. It is not possible to exclude the risk that the conditions of the new concession (or 

agreements connected with the concession, e.g. to rent a transponder to render a broadcasting service) will, from 

the point of view of the Issuer, be less favourable than for the currently-held license. The above-described factors 

may significantly adversely impact development perspectives, the achieved results and the financial standing of 

the Issuer. 

 

Risk of failure to extend cooperation agreements with cable and digital Operators 

The base of the Issuer’s revenue is the fees paid by the operators of cable television and digital satellite platforms 

for rebroadcasting television channels produced / distributed by Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 

The Company has signed agreements to rebroadcast the channel of Kino Polska with all the operators of digital 

satellite platforms and with most operators of cable television, including all the largest ones (UPC, Multimedia 

Polska, Vectra, Toya, Inea); range of the largest operators embrace 74,82% of cable television subscribers. The 

Issuer has signed agreements to distribute the channel of FilmBox with all the operators of satellite platforms and 

with most operators of cable television, including all the largest ones (UPC, Multimedia Polska, Vectra, Toya, 

Inea); range of the largest operators embrace 74,82% of cable television subscribers. The Company has signed 

agreements to distribute the package channel of FilmBox Premium with all the operators of satellite platforms 

and more than 100 operators of cable television including all the largest ones (UPC, Multimedia Polska, Vectra, 

Toya, Inea); range of the largest operators embrace 74,82% of cable television subscribers). Kino Polska 

Muzyka is available through the following cable operators (among others, UPC, Multimedia Polska, Vectra, 

Toya, Inea). 
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Some of the agreements signed with the Operators provide for fixed amount income, some agreements condition 

the income on the actual number of the subscribers of the Issuer’s channel in a given month.  

 

The agreements concluded with the main Operators are concluded: 

a) for the period of 1 up to 3 years with the possibility to terminate the agreement at the earliest three months 

before the expiration of the first contractual period; the agreement being subject to automatic extension for  

a another fixed period of time unless terminated, 

b) for an unlimited period of time, usually with a clause providing for a three-month notice period.  

 

It is not possible to exclude the risk of the Operators terminating their agreements or failing to extend those 

agreements for another period of time. Termination/failure to extend an agreement, especially by the Operator of 

a large number of subscribers, would significantly adversely influence the Issuer’s income and financial results. 

The Company tries to mitigate the above risk by building an interesting offer of its television channel (which is 

being confirmed by the growing viewing and range ratios) and by negotiating appropriate contractual provisions, 

including the conditions of terminating and extending agreements. 

 

Risk of not obtaining interesting content 

Kino Polska Television, pursuant to the license conditions, is a film and documentary channel comprising 

primarily of feature films, documentaries, feature and documentary film series, newsreels, animated films for 

children and adults – produced in Poland or with the participation of Polish film makers (directors, script writers, 

cameramen, music composers, set designers, etc.) and/or actors. The Issuer acquires rights to broadcast films 

from external license providers. Part of the channel elements, such as author’s programs, elements regarding the 

Polish film or navigation and self-promotion, are produced by the Issuer itself. According to the license 

requirements, not less than 70% of the channel broadcasting time must be filled up by Polish films as defined 

above, and programs referring to those films. Polish films make up to 85% to 97% of all films broadcast in Kino 

Polska Television. Most of the films are acquired by the Issuer based on short term (from one month up to one 

year) license agreements concluded on an on-going basis for one or several items. The group of Polish films or 

those with the participation of Polish film makers/actors is naturally limited and the rights to those films are held 

by a relatively limited number of license providers. In the process of building an attractive offer of Kino Polska 

Television, the Issuer has been cooperating with the main as well as independent license providers of Polish 

films for years now. 

 

Kino Polska Muzyka is music and film channel, which presents viewers both the old and modern Polish music, 

and also documents and films related to music.  Pursuant to the license conditions the programs and other forms 

of music which performing specialised nature of the film occupy not less than 83% of the monthly transmission 

time. 
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However, it is not possible to exclude the risk that the Issuer will not be able to purchase attractive content in the 

future that would agree with the channels profiles and satisfy the viewers’ tastes, or that the cost of purchase 

/coproduction of such films will increase. An additional risk factor for the channel Kino Polska Muzyka is the 

difficulty of obtaining content, consisting of dispersed ownership of the materials of music from past eras.   

 

The above-described factors may have a significant adverse impact on the Issuer’s development prospects, the 

achieved results and its financial standing. The Issuer aspires to conclude long-term license agreements for 

especially attractive films, acquires films from many license providers, and organizes competitions for young 

film makers and co-finances film production. 

 

Risk of business model 

In the years 2003 – 2008 the business activity of the Issuer focused around broadcasting Kino PolskaTelevision – 

a specialized film television channel, broadcasting exclusively Polish films or with the participation of Polish 

directors, actors, script writers, etc. The possibility to increase the income and the results of the activity based on 

such a niche product must relatively soon encounter a barrier of market saturation. In 2009 the Issuer 

significantly expanded its product portfolio (and its market) launching the distribution of film television channels 

intended for other market niches (FilmBox and FilmBox Premium package). In 2011 the portfolio of the 

Company was enriched by a new music channel – Kino Polska Muzyka.  

 

It is not possible to exclude the risk that in the future the Issuer’s offer will not be in line with the changing 

expectations of the viewers or that it will not be able to launch more attractive products, as current markets 

gradually become saturated.   

 

The above-described factors may have a significant adverse impact on the Group’s development prospects, the 

achieved results and its financial standing. In order to minimalize this risk, since 2012 the Group has been 

systematically increasing its activities in the area of new media, among others by means of mobile application 

FilmBox Live, its presence in Mobile TV of Cyfrowy Polsat and the availability of the channels: Kino Polska 

Television, FilmBox, and FightBox on live internet TV - Orange Tu i Tam.  

 

Risk of breaks in transmission of television signal 

The Issuer provides to its clients, cable and satellite operators, a signal, transmitted via satellite, relaying the 

Issuer’s television channel. The signal for each of the channels is coded. The Issuer has outsourced to specialized 

entities the placement of the signal on the appropriate telecommunications satellite, the assurance of appropriate 

satellite capacity as well as access control service for the operators. Based on the license agreement dated 

September 3, 2010 Canal+ Cyfrowy Sp. z o.o. is rendering for the Issuer the service of transmitting the signal of 

the channel of Kino Polska Television. Based on the agreement dated  September 1, 2010 Canal+ Cyfrowy  

Sp. z o.o. is rendering for the Issuer the service of transmitting the signal of the FilmBox channel group in the 
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territory of Poland. Based on Annex dated October 26, 2011 to agreement of  September 1, 2010, under which 

Canal + made available to the Company adequate satellite capacity available for the purpose of transmission of 

television signal of Kino Polska Muzyka and provided for it the service of transmission (“Service”) of the signal 

of the said program. The Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. decided that from September 1,2012 the 

place of Kino Polska Muzyka on the satellite would be taken over by the channel produced and distributed by the 

Issuer - FilmBox Action. 

 

There exists a risk that, despite the signed agreements and the application of technological solutions, there will 

occur a break in receiving the Issuer’s one / many channels by the cable and/or satellite operators or by end 

viewers, especially in the event of defective functioning or damage of devices or fiber optics networks or in the 

event of force majeure (natural catastrophe).The above-described factors may have a significant adverse impact 

on the Issuer’s development prospects, the achieved results and its financial standing. 

The Issuer takes efforts to minimize the risk of breaks in transmitting the television signal. The equipment used 

to produce and transmit the Issuer’s television channel is equipped with a number of control devices to minimize 

the risk of occurrence and the consequences of potential malfunction including devices to assure continuity of 

electrical power supply, the appropriate temperature and humidity, the doubling of broadcasting server elements, 

back-up servers, devices allowing a change of the source of signal (precision at the level of 1 program frame), 

devices maintaining the transmission of channel for up to 24 hours after the source of the channel contents has 

been disconnected and a system to connect the operator with transmission centers. 

 

Risk of loss of managers and key personnel 

The activity and the development of the Issuer’s Company are contingent on the knowledge and experience of 

the managers and employees. Conducting this type of activity requires well-qualified senior managers. Loss or 

lack of the possibility to find qualified staff for key posts may have a significant adverse impact on the operating 

activity or development prospects of the Issuer. 

 

 Kino Polska TV S.A. activity in the field of television media and distribution of license rights to films requires 

acquiring and retention of employees with a specific education background and experience, the supply of whom 

on the Polish market is quite limited. Additionally, there are media sector enterprises and holdings operating on 

the Polish market that generate demand for such employees (especially specialists dealing with technical service 

and preparation of programs) and are in the position to offer more favorable conditions of employment. 

 

Consequently, it is not possible to exclude the risk that the Issuer’s will find it difficult to find or retain 

employees necessary to run its operations, which may contribute to increase in the employment costs incurred by 

the Company. Increased employment costs may adversely impact on the Company development prospects, the 

achieved results and its financial standing. 
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Risk of third party services 

The specificity of the Issuer’s activity causes third party services to have a substantial share in the operating 

costs. Third party services embrace: license and distribution fees, fees for specialist services regarding the 

production and distribution of television channels as well as fees for various kinds of typical services rendered 

for the enterprise.  

 

It is not possible to exclude the risk that the trade conditions for the Issuer’s purchase of one or many third party 

services will deteriorate, especially the costs of licenses or increase the cost of broadcasting by satellite. The 

above-described factors may have a significant adverse impact on the profitability of the activity, and 

consequently, on the Company’s development prospects, the achieved results and its financial standing.  

 

Risk of the main shareholder dominating the Issuer’s activity 

SPI International Polska Sp. z o.o. with the registered office in Warsaw holds 8 437 800 of the Issuer’s shares, 

which makes up 60,83 % of shares and votes at the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Issuer. It is not 

possible to exclude the risk that the interests and activity of the majority shareholder will not be in line with 

those of minority shareholders. Especially, it is not possible to exclude the risk that the majority shareholder will 

make a decision to change the sequence of the realization of the Issuer’s strategy, change the Issuer’s strategy, or 

change the scope of activity of the Issuer. The discussed risk may take place especially in relation to the fact that 

Mr Piotr Reisch is both the President of the Management Board of the Issuer as well as the President of the 

Management Board and the majority shareholder of SPI International Polska Sp. z o.o.  

 

It is not possible to exclude the risk that the majority shareholder will be able to exert decisive influence on the 

Issuer’s decisions, including the influence on the contents of the resolutions adopted by the General Shareholders 

Meeting. The above-described factor may have a significant adverse impact on the Issuer’s development 

prospects, the achieved results and its financial standing. 

 

Risk of cooperation with atmedia Sp. z o.o. 

Approximately 13% of the Issuer’s income for the year 2012 and 7% of the Issuer’s income for the year 2011 

came from the proceeds from the sale of commercial air time in the television channels produced/distributed by 

the Issuer.  In view of the character of the Issuer’s channels and their share in viewing rating (so-called thematic 

channels) commercial air time in the Issuer’s channels is offered to advertisement providers via a specialized 

entity – so-called broker/ media house atmedia sp. z o.o. with the registered office in Warsaw based on long-term 

agreement for the sale of commercial air time. atmedia specializes in the sale of advertising time among others, 

in thematic television channels. The Issuer has been cooperating with the broker since 2005.  It is not possible to 

exclude the risk of cessation or deterioration of cooperation with atmedia sp. z o.o. in the future or 

commencement of sale of commercial air time by the Issuer on its own and on its own account. 
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The above-described factors may have a significant adverse impact on the Issuer’s development prospects, the 

achieved results and its financial standing. 

 

Risk related to distribution agreements for FilmBox channels 

Since 2009 the Issuer has been offering a new product that has been rapidly increasing its share in the Issuer’s 

total revenues: production and distribution of the FilmBox channel.  

 

In the years 2009 – 2010 the Issuer offered FilmBox channels to the operators of cable and satellite television 

stations based on a frame cooperation agreement with SPI International Polska Sp. z o.o. (dated December 17, 

2008) which concluded relevant agreements with the owners of individual licenses. Since January 1, 2011 the 

Issuer distributes FilmBox channels based on the agreement dated September 1, 2010 signed directly with the 

license owner - SPI TV Ltd. (new name: Filmbox International Ltd.). This agreement was replaced by a contract 

concluded between Kino Polska TV S.A. and Cinephil France S.A.S. (“Cinephil”) on 30.09.2011. 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. also has agreements on: production and telecommunications, concluded on  September 1, 

2010 with  the company SPI TV Ltd. (new name: Filmbox International Ltd.), on the activities related with the 

preparation of the channels from the FilmBox brand - these contracts entered into force on January 1, 2011. 

It is not possible to exclude the risk that this agreement will not be extended for another period of time or that 

new trade conditions will be negotiated that will be less favorable for the Issuer compared to present day state of 

the matters. Neither is it possible to exclude the risk that license owner will lose one or more licenses for reasons 

beyond the Issuer’s control.  

 

The above-described factors may have a significant adverse impact on the Issuer’s development prospects, the 

achieved results and its financial standing.  

 

Risk factors related to the Company’s environment 

 

Risk of competition on the part of other suppliers of specialized film channels as offered by operators  

The Issuer operates on a highly competitive market with many film television channels broadcast in the Polish 

and foreign languages “fighting” for end receivers. Those channels are broadcast either in regular or High 

Definition and offer varieties of films and television programs produced in Poland, US, Europe or elsewhere.  

 

Additionally, the Issuer is set up in competition against a number of broadcasters of universal television channels 

or those which do not offer films. This is especially noticeable in the offer of cable television operators, where 

the finite capacity of a cable connection limits the offer to several dozen channels, which entails a regular 

exchange of the least interesting channels in the offer. 
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The end receiver’s interest can also be determined by the conditions created by the operator that can be 

influenced by the Issuer to only a negligible extent. These are: the offer structure of basic and additional 

television channels, contents of the packages compared to their prices and to competitors’ offers, signal 

availability, offered decoders, etc. 

 

It is not possible to exclude the risk that, despite the Issuer’s standing attractive offer of the television channel, 

the competitors from the film channel and music segment or from the entire media sector will grow stronger, 

which could deteriorate the viewing rating of the Issuer’s channels. The above-described factors may have  

a significant adverse impact on the Issuer’s development prospects, the achieved results and its financial 

standing.  

 

Risk of macroeconomic situation and the condition of households  

The level of the Issuer’s revenues depends on the well-being of Polish citizens (especially the inhabitants of big 

cities) that mutates depending on the economic outlook, including: dynamics of economic growth, level of 

unemployment, individual consumption, consumers’ optimism ratios, exchange rate of EUR to PLN and the state 

fiscal policy. There is a risk that in the case of a protracted impairment or another deterioration of the economic 

outlook the demand for the services offered by the Issuer will decrease, which will adversely impact its financial 

results. The above-described factors may materially adversely impact the Issuer’s development prospects, the 

achieved results and its financial standing. 

 

Risk of claims raised in connection with breach of intellectual property 

The activity conducted by the Issuer is based primarily on using intellectual property rights and concluded 

license agreements. The Issuer is convinced it does not infringe any intellectual property of third parties in its 

activity. However, the Issuer cannot exclude cases in which it might involuntarily breach such rights. 

Consequently, the Issuer allows that under such circumstances claims will be raised in relation to breach of 

intellectual property rights. A consequence of such claims could be the necessity to pay the compensation. The 

above-described factors may materially adversely impact the Issuer’s development prospects, the achieved 

results and its financial standing. 

 

Risk of changeability of law, especially that regulating the activity of the Company 

In view of the fact that the Polish legal system is subject to frequent changes, such changes may adversely 

impact the operations of the Company and hence entail a serious risk related to its conducting business activity. 

The Company’s activity may be especially impacted by the changes of the law regulating the conducted business 

activity, including the Broadcasting Act and its the by-laws, Copyright Acts, EU regulations pertaining to the 

functioning of collective management of copyrights as well as amendment to the acts regulating the functioning 

of the capital market in Poland. The new legal regulations may potentially pose some risk related to 
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interpretation issues, lack of history of relevant court decisions, unfavorable interpretations adopted by courts or 

public administration bodies, etc. The Company is also exposed to the risk related to possible changes of 

interpretations of the provisions of the tax law as published by tax bodies and exerting influence on the operating 

activity and the financial results of the Issuer. 

 

Risk of changes in legislation or interpretation of tax laws and social security 

The tax system in Poland is characterized by high volatility. Any changes to business taxation, both in terms of 

income tax, VAT, or other taxes, may adversely affect the Company's activities and revenue levels. The Issuer is 

also exposed to risks associated with changes in the interpretation of tax law issued by the tax authorities, and 

having an impact on the operations and financial results of the Company. The above mentioned factors could 

have a material adverse effect on growth prospects and financial condition of the Issuer. 

 

Foreign exchange risk 

The Issuer shall bear the costs of broadcasting services and other ancillary services for each of the television 

programs in  the usually accepted for this type of contract currency - the euro. Thus, the value of the cost of the 

Issuer is exposed to foreign exchange risk. Any significant weakening of the zloty against the euro could reduce 

the profitability of Kino Polska Television, Kino Polska Muzyka and programs from the FilmBox brand. 

 

Factors described above could have a material adverse effect on the prospects for the development, performance 

and financial condition of the Issuer. 

 

 

5. INFORMATION ABOUT APPLICATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BY KINO POLSKA 

TV S.A. 

 

5.1. Specification of the set of corporate rules and regulations governing the Issuer, and of the location 

where such rules and regulations are available for public viewing 

 

The Management Board of the Issuer endeavors to provide all shareholders with equal access to information 

about the Company. The efforts of the Company to ensure full transparency found their expression in the 

implementation of good practices of companies listed on the stock exchange, beginning with the gaining by Kino 

Polska TV S.A. of the status of a listed company. From March 22, 2011, the Issuer has been preparing current 

and periodic reports which are made publicly available by being published on the corporate website. The Issuer 

complies with the regulations governing public companies, as specified in the “Good Practices of Companies 

Listed on the Stock Exchange”. These regulations are published at www.corp-gov.gpw.pl.  

 

http://www.corp-gov.gpw.pl/
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The editors of Kino Polska Television and of the other channels produced by the Company comply with all rules 

of professional conduct, which are generally accepted by the professional circles. The foundation on which the 

rules of their work are based is the Media Ethics Charter. In addition, the editors are also familiar with the 

Journalists’ Code of Conduct, as published by the Association of Journalists of the Republic of Poland and the 

Journalists’ Code of Ethics of the Association of Polish Journalists, which are documents specifying desirable 

rules of conduct. 

 

5.2. The degree in which the Issuer departed from the provisions of the set of corporate rules, as referred 

to above, indication of the provisions and explanation of reasons for such departure, as well as explanation 

how the Company intends to remedy the consequences, if any, of the Issuer’s failure to apply a particular 

rule, or what steps it intends to take to reduce the risk of future failure to apply a specific rule  

 

RULE II.1 

The Company keeps a corporate website, where it publishes, in addition to the information required by law:  

(…) 

7) shareholders’ questions regarding the matters covered by the agenda, posed before and during the General 

Meeting of Shareholders, along with the answers thereto. 

COMMENT 

To some extent, this rule will not be applied by the Company. The Company will comply with this rule to the 

extent resulting from the provisions of the generally-applicable legal regulations, i.e. the Commercial Companies 

Code and the Regulation of the Minister of Finance on current and periodical information (…), dated February 

19, 2009. The Company will not publish on its website any questions asked during the general meeting or any 

answers to such questions given during the General Meeting of Shareholders, because a great number of 

questions are usually asked, many of them irrelevant. Full compliance with this rule would require drawing-up 

shorthand minutes of the session of the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

(…) 

9a) transmission of the General Shareholders Meeting  in the form of audio or video 

COMMENT 

These rules in the near future will not be applied by Kino Polska TV S.A. due to the lack of proper regulation in 

the Statute and in the Rules of Procedure of the General Shareholders Meeting, as well as due to high costs 

associated with the implementation of such data transfer system. The Issuer shall consider adopting of these Best 

Practices, in the case of a significant interest in these forms of communication on the part of the Company's 

Shareholders. 

(…) 

11) information acquired by the Management Board, based on a statement of a member of the Supervisory 

Board, regarding relations of such member of the Supervisory Board with a shareholder holding shares 

representing at least 5% of the total number of votes at the General Meeting of Shareholders. This obligation 

applies to financial, family, or others dependency, that may affect a member of the supervisory board in the 

resolve the case. 
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COMMENT 

The Management Board will apply this rule only if the members of the Supervisory Board make statements to 

this effect. 

(…) 

14) information regarding the rule governing a change of the entity entitled to audit financial statements or 

information that no such rule applies. 

COMMENT 

As far as the keeping of its website is concerned, the Company does not publish thereon any information 

regarding the rule applied by the Company in the event of a change of an entity entitled to audit the financial 

statement or information that no such rule applies. The selection of an entity entitled to audit financial statements 

and a change of such entity is at the sole discretion of the Supervisory Board and is not subject to any 

regulations, except for statutory regulations, i.e. the Law on Chartered Accountants. 

 

Good practices applied by members of the Supervisory Boards 

RULE III.1 

In addition to the activities specified by law, the Supervisory Board should: 

(…) 

3) Investigate and give opinion on matters which are the subject of resolutions of the General Meeting. 

COMMENT 

The Company will not apply the above rule. In this respect, the Company believes that the authority granted to 

the Supervisory Board in the Commercial Companies Code and the By-laws are sufficient to exercise proper 

supervision over the activity of the Company. 

 

RULE III.2 

A member of the Supervisory Board should provide the Management Board with information on his/her relations 

with a shareholder holding shares representing not less than 5 % of the total number of votes at the General 

Meeting of Shareholders. The above obligation concerns relations of business, family or other nature that may 

affect the position of the member of the Supervisory Board in a matter to be decided by the Board. 

COMMENT 

The Management Board will apply this rule only if members of the Supervisory Board submit relevant 

statements in this regard. 

 

RULE III.8 

As regards duties and functions of the committees operating within the Supervisory Board, Enclosure No. 1 to 

the Recommendation of the European Commission, dated February 15, 2005, on the role of non-executive 

directors (…) will apply. 

COMMENT 

Committees operating within the Supervisory Board will act in accordance with the legal regulations in force and 

the adopted internal by-laws. 
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Good practices applied by shareholders 

RULE IV.1 

Representatives of the media should be allowed to attend General Shareholders Meetings. 

COMMENT 

General Shareholders Meetings will be attended by entitled persons and persons servicing such General 

Shareholders Meetings. The legal regulations in force, including the Regulation of the Minister of Finance, dated 

on February19, 2009 on current and periodic reports submitted by Issuers of securities, and terms of recognition 

of information required under legal regulations of a non-member state as equivalent, sufficiently determine the 

performance of duties imposed on public companies in respect of openness and transparency of matters being the 

subject considered by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Company will provide answers, on an on-going 

basis, to questions asked by the media regarding sessions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

 

RULE IV.10 

The Company should provide shareholders with a possibility of attending a General Meeting through the use of 

means of electronic communication, such as: 

1) transmission of a session of the General Meeting of Shareholders in real time, 

2) two-way communication in real time, whereby the shareholders can speak during a session of the General 

Meeting while they are in a location other than that of the General Meeting of Shareholder’s venue,  

COMMENT 

These rules in the near future will not be applied by Kino Polska TV S.A. due to the lack of proper regulation in 

the Statute and in the Rules of Procedure of the General Shareholders Meeting, as well as due to high costs 

associated with the implementation of such data transfer system. The Issuer shall consider adopting of these Best 

Practices, in the case of a significant interest in these forms of communication on the part of the Company's 

Shareholders. 

 

5.3 Description of the main features of the Issuer's internal control and risk management systems in 

relation to the preparation of the financial statements and consolidated financial statements 

 

For the internal control system, as well as its effectiveness in the process of preparing financial statements of 

Kino Polska TV S.A., is responsible the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. 

The financial statements are drawn up by the Finance Department of the Issuer, and then transferred to the 

Management Board and for the information of Supervisory Board members and to the Audit Committee. 

 

5.4 Shareholders holding directly or indirectly, significant blocks of shares, with the number of shares 

held by these entities, their percentage capital, the number of votes and their percentage share of the total 

number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting  

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. has knowledge of the shareholders holding more than 5% of votes at the General 
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Shareholders Meeting , in case when these entities pass  the relevant notifications in accordance with article 69 

of the Act on Public Offering, Conditions Governing the Introduction of Financial Instruments to Organised 

Trading, and Public Companies (Journal of Laws 2005 No. 184, item. 1539). The Company also has information 

on the ownership of the Issuer's shares transferred in accordance with Article 160 of the Act on Trading by 

persons required to do so. 

 

Accordingly, as of December 31, 2012, the shareholding structure of Kino Polska TV S.A. taking account of 

shareholders holding at least 5% of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting  of the Company, is as follows: 

 

The holder of shares 
Kind of 

shares 

Number of 

shares 

Part of share 

Capital (%) 

Number of 

votes at the 

GMS 

Part of total 

votes at the GMS 

SPI International Polska Sp. z o.o. 
1 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 
8 437 800 60.83% 8 437 800 60.83% 

Investment funds managed  

by Ipopema TFI S.A.  

(including with Total FIZ)
2
 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 
1 868 323 13.47% 1 868 323 13.47% 

Pioneer Pekao Investment Management S.A.* 

(within asset management)
3
 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 

 

1 184 793 

 

 

8.54% 

 

1 184 793 

 

 

8.54% 

Piotr Reisch – President of the Management 

Board
4 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 
742 825 5.36% 742 825 5.36% 

 
1  in accordance with the notice as of 06.12.2012  

2  in accordance with the notice as of 20.08.2012  

3   in accordance with the notice as of 12.05.2011  

4   in accordance with the notice as of 29.05.2012 

 

* According to the notification as of September 26, 2012, Pioneer Investment Fund Open has 692 419 shares 

Kino Polska TV S.A., representing 4.99% of the share capital of the Company and corresponds to 4.99% of 

the total number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting  of Shareholders. Prior to the above-described 

changes in Pioneer Investment Fund Open 708 120 shares owned Kino Polska TV S.A., representing 5.11% of 

the share capital of the Company and the corresponding 5.11% of the total number of votes at the General 

Shareholders Meeting  of Shareholders. 
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The following table presents a list of shareholders present at the Extraordinary General Shareholders 

Meeting of Kino Polska TV S.A. as of  January 7, 2013, with at least 5% of the vote, together with a list of 

registered their shares: 

 

The holder of shares 
Kind of 

shares 

Number 

of shares 

Part of share 

capital (%) 

Number 

of votes 

at the GSM 

Part of total 

votes at the GSM 

(%) 

SPI International Polska Sp. z o.o.
 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 
8 437 800 60,83% 8 437 800 60,83% 

Total FIZ 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 
1 925 377 13,88% 1 925 377 13,88% 

Pioneer Pekao Investment Management S.A. 

(within asset management) 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 
693 500 5,00% 693 500 5,00% 

Piotr Reisch – President of the Management 

Board
 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 
742 825 5,36% 742 825 5,36% 

 

5.5 The owners of any securities with special control rights and a description of those rights 

There are no special securities giving special control over the Company. 

 

5.6 Indication of any restrictions on voting rights, such as limiting the voting rights of holders of a given 

percentage or number of votes, deadlines for exercising voting rights, or systems whereby, with the 

company's cooperation, the financial rights attaching to securities are separated the holding of securities  

In the reporting period, there were no securities which would be any restrictions on voting rights. 

 

5.7 Indication of all restrictions on the transfer of ownership of securities of the Issuer 

In the reporting period there were any restrictions on the transfer of ownership of shares of the Issue 

 

5.8 Description of rules for appointment and dismissal of managers and their rights, in particular 

the right to decide on the issue or repurchase of shares 

In accordance with §11 sec.1 of Issuer’s Statute, the Management Board consists of not less than two and not 

more than five people, including the President and other members of the Management Board.  

The Management Board manages the Company and represents it outside. The entitled persons to make 

statements and sign on behalf of the Company are: the President of the Management Board with another member 

of the Management Board or with a proxy jointly.  

The Members of the Board, including the President of the Management Board, are appointed and dismissed by 

the Supervisory Board. The Management Board members are appointed for three years.  

Members of the Management Board of the Company have no special rights to issue or repurchase of shares. 
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5.9 Description of changes in the Issuer’s Statue 

The changes of the Issuer’s Statute shall be done according to the principles of the Code of Commercial 

Companies namely by resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

 

5.10 Method of operation of the General Shareholders Meeting, its key powers and description of the 

rights of shareholders and the manner of their execution 

According to art. 4021 of the Commercial Companies Code, the General Shareholders Meeting of a Public 

Company is convened by an announcement at the Company's website and in form of current report  

– in accordance with the provisions of the Law on Public Offering. Art. 402 of the CCC determines the scope of 

the content of the notice of the General Shareholders Meeting of a Public Company. It should include at least the 

date, time and place of the General Shareholders Meeting and a detailed agenda, as well as a precise description 

of the procedures for participation in the General Shareholders Meetings and voting. In particular, the notice 

should include information regarding the following issues: 

1) The right of a shareholder to request inclusion of certain issues on the agenda of the General Shareholders 

Meeting – according to art. 401 § 1 of the CCC, shareholder or shareholders representing at least one twentieth 

of the share capital may request including certain issues in the agenda of the next General Shareholders Meeting.  

The request should be submitted to the Supervisory Board no later than 21 days before the date of the Meeting. 

The request should include a justification or a draft of the resolution concerning proposed agenda item. The 

request may be submitted in electronic form. The Management Board shall immediately, but no later than 18 

days before the date the General Shareholders Meeting announce changes in the agenda introduced at the request 

of shareholders. The announcement shall be made, as appropriate to convening a General Shareholders Meeting 

(art. 401 § 2 of the CCC). 

2) The right of a shareholder to submit drafts of resolutions related to issues on the agenda of the General 

Shareholders Meeting or issues which are to be placed on the agenda before the Meeting – according to art. 401 

§ 4 of the CCC, shareholder or shareholders of a Public Company representing at least one twentieth of the share 

capital may, before the General Shareholders Meeting, report to the Company, in writing or by means of 

electronic communication, drafts of resolutions concerning the agenda of the General Shareholders Meeting or 

issues which are to be introduced on the agenda. The Company shall immediately publish the draft resolutions 

on the website. The Statute, according to the art. 401 § of the CCC, may authorize to request an introduction of 

specific issues on the agenda of the next General Shareholders Meeting and to submit the company, in writing or 

by means of electronic communication, projects of resolutions concerning issues introduced on the agenda of the 

General Shareholders Meeting or issues which are to be introduced on the agenda, shareholders representing less 

than one-twentieth of the share capital. Statute of the Issuer does not include such provisions. 

3) The right of a shareholder to submit drafts of resolutions relating to issues on the agenda during the General 

Shareholders Meeting – according to art. 401 § 5 of the CCC, each of the shareholders is entitled to submit 

during the General Shareholders Meeting drafts of resolutions concerning issues introduced on the agenda.  

4) The manner of voting by the proxy, in particular the forms used to vote by proxy, and the way to notify the 

company, by means of electronic communication, of the appointing a proxy. 
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5) The possibility and method of participation in the General Shareholders Meeting by means of electronic 

communication. 

6) The way of speaking during the General Shareholders Meeting by means of electronic communication.  

7) The manner of voting by correspondence or by means of electronic communication. 

8) Registration date for participation in the General Shareholders Meeting which, according to art. 406 of the 

CCC, falls 16 days before the date of the General Shareholders Meeting and shall be uniform for holders of 

bearer shares and registered shares. 

9) Information that right to participate in the General Shareholders Meeting have only the persons who are 

shareholders of the Company on the day of registration for participation in the General Shareholders Meeting, as 

well as: 

10) An indication of where and how the person entitled to participate in the General Shareholders Meeting can 

get a full text of documentation which is to be presented on the Meeting and drafts of the resolution or, if the 

resolutions are not expected to be adopted, comments of the Management Board or the Supervisory Board of the 

Company, concerning the matters included in agenda of the General Shareholders Meeting or issues which are to 

be introduced on the agenda before the date of the Meeting. 

11) Indication of the address of the website where information concerning the General Shareholders Meeting 

shall be provided. 

Pursuant to Art. 4023 § 1, each public company is obliged to operate its own website and place thereon, since the 

date of convening the General Shareholders Meeting, the following information: 

1) announcement on convening the General Shareholders Meeting, 

2) information about a total number of shares in the company and number of votes vested by such shares as of 

the date of announcement, and if the shares are of different types, also about division of the shares into 

individual types and the number of votes vested by shares of each type, 

3) the documentation to be presented to the General Shareholders Meeting, 

4) draft resolutions or, if no resolutions are anticipated for adoption at the General Shareholders Meeting, 

comments of the Management Board or the Supervisory Board regarding the matters covered by the agenda of 

the General Meeting or matters which are to be placed on the agenda before the date of the General Meeting of 

Shareholders, 

5) forms constituting the basis for the exercise of the rights of vote by attorneys or by correspondence, unless 

sent directly to all shareholders. 

If forms constituting the basis for the exercise of the rights of vote by attorneys or by correspondence may not, 

due to technical reasons, be made available on the website, a public company shall place information on its 

website where and how such forms may be obtained. In such case, the public company shall send the forms by 

post, free of charge, to any shareholder who requests the same. 

The forms constituting the basis for the exercise of the rights of vote by attorneys or by correspondence shall 

incorporate the suggested wording of resolutions of the General Shareholders Meeting and should provide for:  

1) identification of the shareholding casting the vote and his attorney, if the shareholder exercises his vote 

through an attorney, 

2) the casting of the vote, as defined in Art. 4 § 1 point 9 of the Commercial Companies Code, 
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3) the submission of an objection by shareholders voting against the resolution, 

4) the placement of an instruction concerning the manner of casting the vote with regard to each resolution on 

which the attorney is to vote. 

In accordance with § 21 Issuer’s Statute Resolutions of the General Shareholders Meeting of Shareholders are 

passed by the absolute majority of votes validly cast, unless the provisions of the Statute or law provide more 

stringent conditions. Resolutions of the General Shareholders Meeting on the following matters shall require a 

qualified majority of three quarters of votes cast: 

1) the redemption of shares in the case referred to in art. 415 § 4 of the Code of Commercial Companies, 2) 

acquisition of own shares in the case referred to in art. 362 § 1 item 2 of the Code of Commercial Companies, 3) 

merging with another company in the case referred to in art. 506 § 2 of the Code of Commercial Companies. 

Resolutions on appeal or suspension by the General Shareholders Meeting of some or all members of the 

Management Board in accordance with art. 368 § 4 of the Code of Commercial Companies requires four fifths of 

the votes cast. Acquisition and disposal of property, perpetual usufruct right or interest in real property does not  

require the resolution of the General Shareholders Meeting. 

 

5.11 The composition and the changes that occurred during the last fiscal year, and a description of the 

management bodies and supervisory or administrative committees of the issuer and its committees 

 

The Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 

In the period from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 the Management Board had the following members: 

 

Piotr Reisch President of the Management Board 

Bogusław Kisielewski Member of the Management Board 

 

On December 10, 2012, the Supervisory Board of Kino Polska TV S.A., acting pursuant to § 12 section. 2 of The 

Statute and Article 369 § 1 sentence 2 and 3 of the Code of Commercial Companies, decided to appoint Mr Piotr 

Reisch as the President of the Management Board for another three-year term, and Mr Boguslaw Kisielewski as 

a member of the Management Board for another three-year term. 

 

Both Mr Piotr Reisch and Mr Boguslaw Kisielewski have no criminal record pursuant to Article. 18 § 2 of the 

Code of Commercial Companies, do not conduct any activities competitive to the business of the Company, do 

not participate in competitive company as shareholders of a civil partnership, or as members of the body of  

a company, or other legal entities competing as members of their bodies. Mr Piotr Reisch and Mr Boguslaw 

Kisielewski do not appear in the Register of Insolvent Debtors maintained pursuant to the Act on the National 

Court Register.  
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The Supervisory Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 

In the period from January 1, 2012 to October 31, 2012, the Supervisory Board of the Issuer was as follows: 

Loni Farhi Chairman of the Supervisory Board 

Stacey Sobel Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board 

Piotr Orłowski Member of the Supervisory Board 

Krzysztof Szymański Member of the Supervisory Board 

Witold Adamek   Member of the Supervisory Board 

 

On October 31, 2012, the Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of the Company removed Mr Witold 

Adamek from his position as a Member of the Supervisory Board. The resolution of the General Shareholders 

Meeting did not include reasons for the appeal. At the same time as a member of the Supervisory Board of the 

Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of Kino Polska TV S.A. on October 31, 2012, appointed Ms Anna 

Krasińska. 

 

In the period from October 31, 2012 to December 31, 2012, the composition of the Supervisory Board was as 

follows: 

 

Loni Farhi Chairman of the Supervisory Board 

Stacey Sobel Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board 

Piotr Orłowski Member of the Supervisory Board 

Krzysztof Szymański Member of the Supervisory Board 

Anna Krasińska   Member of the Supervisory Board 

 

The Audit Committee 

 

In the reporting period, apart from the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of Kino Polska TV S.A., 

the Audit Committee, composed of, was also active: 

 

 In the period from January 1, 2012 to  October 31, 2012: 

 

Piotr Orłowski  Chairman of the Audit Committee 

Witold Adamek Member of the Audit Committee 

Krzysztof Szymański Member of the Audit Committee 
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 In the period from October 31, 2012 to  December 31, 2012: 

 

Piotr Orłowski  Chairman of the Audit Committee 

Anna Krasińska Member of the Audit Committee 

Krzysztof Szymański Member of the Audit Committee 

 

Description of the functioning of the Supervisory Board 

 

The Supervisory Board shall exercise supervision over the activities of the Company in all areas of its business. 

In addition to the matters specified in the provisions of the Commercial Companies Code and other provisions of 

the Statute  of Association, the Supervisory Board are: 

1) acceptance of the proposed changes to the Statute  of Association of the Company prepared by the 

Management Board, 

2) determination of the entity to audit or review of the consolidated and individual financial statements of 

the Company, 

3) granting consent to enter into agreements with such entity or its subsidiaries, subordinate entities, parent 

companies or subsidiaries or its subordinate units, and the parent companies carry out any other 

activities that may adversely affect the independence of the entity in making the audit or review report 

the Company's financial 

4) approving the joining or creating any kind of economic organization, acquisition or sale of shares or 

contributions to companies, as well as approving the change in equity in any business organization in 

which the Company participates, 

5) approving the entering into or termination of agreements, long-term cooperation by the Company, the 

value of benefits for its duration may exceed the amount of 500 000 Euro or its equivalent as calculated 

on the date of transaction according to the exchange rate, 

6) consent to the sale, purchase, order, renting, leasing of the Company's assets, not related to the usual 

scope of activities of the Company in excess of EUR 500 000 or its equivalent calculated at the date of 

sale, purchase, load, rent, lease the assets of the Company according to the exchange rate , 

7) approving the acquisition of fixed assets not related to the usual range of activities of the Company in 

excess of EUR 500 000 or its equivalent calculated at the date of acquisition by exchange rate, 

8) approving the creation of occupational pension schemes in the Company and the granting of 

supplementary pension rights extend existing law. In addition, the Supervisory Board determines the 

remuneration of directors of the Company. 

The validity of the resolutions of the Supervisory Board have been invited all present at the meeting and 

at least three of its members, including the President or Vice-President. The Supervisory Board shall adopt 

resolutions by an absolute majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the vote of the President of the 

Management Board. Resolutions of the Supervisory Board on the suspension of members of the Management 

Board shall be adopted by a majority of four fifths of the votes. If necessary, the resolution of the Management 

Board may be made in writing or by means of remote communication. Draft resolutions adopted in writing shall 
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be submitted for signature to all members of the Supervisory Board and become binding when signed by at least 

half of the members of the Supervisory Board, including the President of the Management Board. 

 

In order to perform its duties, the Management Board may examine all documents, request the Management 

Board and employees of the Company's reports and explanations, and inspect the Company's assets. 

 

Description of the functioning of the Management Board 

The Management Board conducted the current activities in accordance with rights set forth in the Code of 

Commercial Companies and the Company’s Statute. The Management Board consists of not less than two and 

not more than five people, including the President and other members of the Management Board. 

The President of the Management Board shall direct the work of the Management Board, shall determine the 

internal allocation of tasks and responsibilities of the Board Members, convene and preside over meetings of the 

Management Board, issues internal regulations of the Company. The President of the Board may authorize other 

persons to convene and chair the meeting of the Management Board and to issue internal regulations. 

Resolutions of the Management Board are passed by a simple majority vote. In the event of a tie, the President 

shall have the casting voice. The Board is obliged to submit to the Supervisory Board at least an annual report on 

significant events in the Company. This report shall also include a report on revenues, costs and the financial 

results of the Company. The entitled persons to make statements and sign on behalf of the Company are: the 

President of the Management Board with another member of the Management Board or with a proxy jointly. To 

perform certain actions or a specific activity the proxies may be appointed to act independently or jointly with 

other mandate holders, within the limits of their legitimacy.  

 

Description of the functioning of the Audit Committee 

The purpose of establishment of the Audit Committee is to provide advisory services to the Supervisory Board in 

issues concerning individual and consolidated financial reporting, internal control and risk management, as well 

as co-operation with chartered accountants. The main duties of the Audit Committee include: 

a) monitoring of the process of preparation of financial statements; 

b) submission of recommendations to the Supervisory Board regarding the approval of financial statements 

audited by an external auditor; 

c) monitoring of reliability of financial information presented by the Company; 

2) supervision of monitoring of internal control systems, internal audit and risk management, through actions 

covering, in particular: 

a) review, at least once a year, of internal control and risk management procedures in order to ensure compliance 

with the provisions of law and internal regulations; 

b) evaluation of compliance with principles of risk management and presentation of recommendations in this 

regard; 

3) supervision of monitoring of independence of external auditors, through actions covering, in particular: 
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a) presentation of recommendations to the Supervisory Board concerning appointment, re-appointment and 

dismissal of an entity conducting the audit of the financial statement (external auditor) as well as terms and 

conditions of his engagement; 

b) monitoring of independence of the auditor with regard to the audit he conducts; 

c) discussion with the auditor of the process of audit conducted by him, 

d) acceptance from an entity authorized to audit financial statements of written information regarding relevant 

issues concerning the financial audit procedure, including, in particular, significant irregularities of the internal 

control system of the entity, with reference to the financial reporting process. 

 

Meetings of the Audit Committee should take place as often as necessary, not with less frequency, however, than 

twice a year, before publication of a semi-annual and annual financial statement. Meetings of the Audit 

Committee shall be called and presided by the President. In the event that the President is unable to call the 

meeting, such meeting shall be called by another member of the Committee, authorized by the President. A 

notice on a meeting, specifying the agenda and including any materials forming an object of the agenda shall be 

submitted to the members of the Audit Committee by the President of the Committee. A notice should be sent at 

least 3 days before the meeting of the Committee, by e-mail or by fax, to the addresses or fax numbers indicated 

by the members of the Audit Committee. The right to place certain matters on the agenda of the meeting of the 

Committee shall be vested in the Supervisory Board, individual members of the Committee, as well as members 

of the Management Board. The members of the Committee may participate in the meetings of the Committee 

and vote for or against adoption of resolutions in person or through means of remote communication. In order for 

resolutions of the Audit Committee to be valid, there must be a quorum of at least a half of its members, and all 

members of the Committee must be invited. Resolutions of the Audit Committee shall be adopted by means of 

an absolute majority of votes of Committee members present at the meeting. Minutes shall be drawn-up in 

meetings of the Audit Committee. The minutes shall be signed by all members of the Committee present at the 

meeting. The minutes on the meeting of the Audit Committee, including all resolutions adopted during such 

meeting, shall be submitted by the President of the Audit Committee to the President of the Supervisory Board 

immediately upon the signature thereof. The Audit Committee may also adopt resolutions in writing. Draft 

resolutions adopted in writing shall be submitted for signature to all members of the Audit Committee and shall 

become biding upon their signature by at least two members of the Audit Committee, including the President.  

For the purpose of fulfilment of its duties, the Audit Committee may seek assistance or information from an 

expert or experts of its choice. The costs of appointment of such experts, upon their prior approval by the 

President of the Supervisory Board, shall be covered by the Company. 

 

6. PROCEEDINGS PENDING BEFORE THE COURT, AN ENTITY COMPETENT FOR 

ARBITRATION OR PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION, INCLUDING INFORMATION ON: 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE CLAIMS OR LIABILITIES OF THE ISSUER OR ITS SUBSIDIARY 

BODIES TO THE VALUE OF AT LEAST 10% OF THE ISSUER EQUITY 

 

During the reporting period there have not been and are not going to be any proceedings or claims against the 
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Issuer in public administration, judicial or arbitration which meet the above mentioned criteria. 

 

7. BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT PRODUCTS, GOODS OR SERVICES OF THE COMPANY 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. operates in the media industry, among others produces and distributes of TV channels 

(Kino Polska Television, Kino Polska Muzyka, FilmBox, FilmBox Extra, FilmBox HD, FilmBox Family, 

FilmBox Action, FightBox), including five programs in Premium section.  

 

The key products of the Company include: 

 

 Kino Polska Television  

 

Kino Polska Television which refers to the long-term achievements of Polish cinematographic culture for all 

ages, is the basic product of the Issuer. The unique formula places the station in high positions in the audience 

rankings for thematic channels in Poland. This program, presenting classic films invites viewers to re-explore 

them. The Company through the media house atmedia sp. z o.o. sells advertising time on the air of Kino Polska 

Television. The channel works under concession No. 296/2003-T. The Company has signed agreements for Kino 

Polska Television reemission with all providers of digital satellite platforms and the majority of cable operators, 

including all major companies (UPC, Multimedia Polska, Vectra, Toya, Inea; the range of the largest operators 

includes 74.82% of cable TV subscribers). Kino Polska Television is also available in the Mobile TV of 

Cyfrowy Polsat, Internet live TV Orange Here and There, and in the FilmBox Live package. 

 

 TV channel Kino Polska Muzyka  

 

Kino Polska Muzyka is the only station in the world, presenting the audience only Polish music. In addition to 

the iconic music videos, concerts and unforgettable golden age stars of the biggest domestic blockbusters can be 

found here, and interesting archival stage. Starting from January 2012 through atmedia sp. z o..o. on-air Kino 

Polska Muzyka conducted the sale of advertising time. This station operates under license number 489/2011-T. 

Kino Polska Muzyka is available in offers of cable operators (including UPC, Multimedia Poland, Vectra, Toya, 

INEA). Kino Polska Muzyka is also one of the channels offered in FilmBox Live. In addition, this station is also 

available in the United States through the Dish Network platform. 

 

 TV channel Kino Polska International 

 

Kino Polska International has been present in the portfolio of the Company since 2012. It is intended to continue 

the programming mission of Kino Polska Television. The channel is broadcast in Polish. Its main target is the 

Polish community abroad. This program is available in the United States through the Dish Network platform. 

 FilmBox channel and FilmBox Premium package  
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FilmBox is a film channel, broadcasting and fictional and documentary films from around the world, categorized 

by type, band and thematic series as well as programs about cinema and publishing news. Package FilmBox 

Premium consists of five film channels: FilmBox Extra, FilmBox Family, FilmBox HD, FilmBox Action, 

FightBox. The Issuer has signed distributional agreements for the FilmBox with all providers of digital satellite 

platforms and the majority of cable operators, including all major companies (UPC/Aster, Multimedia Polska, 

Vectra, Toya, Inea). For distribution package of FilmBox Premium also have been concluded agreements with 

all satellite platforms operators and more than 100 cable operators including all major. Kino Polska TV S.A. 

produces and distributes programs mentions above on the basis of agreements with SPI TV Ltd. (new name: 

Filmbox International Ltd.) and Cinephil France S.A.S.  

 

Other activities of the Company: 

- sale of advertising time on the air: Kino Polska Television, Kino Polska Muzyka and FilmBox, 

- distribution of licenses for Video on Demand (VoD), 

- distribution of licenses for TV broadcast (sale of rights), 

- publishing activity (Publishing House of Kino Polska Television). 

 

8. INFORMATION ABOUT MARKETS, INCLUDING THE DIVISION OF DOMESTIC AND 

FOREIGN MARKETS, AND INFORMATION SOURCES OF SUPPLY OF MATERIALS FOR 

PRODUCTION GOODS AND SERVICES WITH SPECIFICATION ON THE DEPENDENCE ON ONE 

OR MORE RECIPIENTS AND SUPPLIERS, AND IF A PART OF ONE RECIPIENT OR ONE 

SUPPLIER REACHES AT LEAST 10% OF THE TOTAL SALES REVENUE – THE NAME 

(COMPANY) OF THE RECIPIENT OR SUPPLIERS, ITS SHARE OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 

SUPPLY AND ITS FORMAL LINKS WITH THE ISSUER 

 

8.1 Key customers 

 

The key customers of the Issuer are cable TV operators and providers of digital satellite platforms, which 

provide a signal of the channels produced by the Company to their subscribers (households). 

 

The other recipients of the products of the Company include: 

• atmedia sp. o.o. – advertising broker, 

• other broadcasters acquiring the rights to broadcast films held by Kino Polska TV S.A. 

• operators of video on demand, 

• individuals (buyers of DVD releases) through a distribution company. 
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The main market is the domestic market, which accounts for 62% of the Company’s revenues. 38% of the 

Company's revenue is generated based on the foreign market. 

Year 2012 Poland Abroad Total 

Revenues  PLN 62 227 483.32  PLN 37 815 169.59  PLN 100 042 652.91  

 

In 2012, Kino Polska TV S.A. had about 400 customers. 

 

The main recipients of the company, whose share in the revenues of at least 10% of total revenues: 

- Filmbox International Ltd. (formerly: SPI TV Ltd.) - 36% of total sales revenues, 

- ITI Neovision Sp. z o.o. - 14% of total sales revenues, 

- atmedia sp. z  o.o. - 12% of total sales revenues, 

- Canal + Cyfrowy Sp. z o.o. 11% of total sales revenue. 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A.  is affiliated  with the company Filmbox International Ltd. (formerly SPI TV Ltd.) through  

the person of the Chairmen of the Supervisory Board, Mr Loni Farhi. 

 

The Company has signed cooperation agreements with the above mentioned entities. 

 

8.2 Key suppliers 

 

The key market for supplying the materials, goods and services is the domestic market. 

 

The Company’s suppliers, with the revenue share of at least 10% of total sales revenue: 

- Cinephil France S.A.S. - 30% of total sales revenue. 

- Canal + Cyfrowy Sp. z o.o. – 10% of total sales revenue 

 

The Company has signed cooperation agreements with the above mentioned entity. 

 

9. INFORMATION ABOUT MATERIAL AGREEMENTS FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING 

KNOWN TO THE ISSUER AGREEMENTS BETWEEN SHAREHOLDERS (ASSOCIATES), 

INSURANCE AGREEMENTS, COLLABORATION AND COOPERATION 

 

Agreement with Dish Network L.L.C. 

On March 19, 2012 an agreement was signed between Kino Polska TV S.A. and DISH Network and L.L.C. 

("Dish Network", "Platform") - a leader among American satellite platforms. The agreement provides Dish 

Network for the rights to broadcast the channels Kino Polska International and Kino Polska Muzyka  in the 

United States of America. In addition, the agreement sets out the terms of cooperation in the area of Video on 

Demand services. Kino Polska International is a new channel in the portfolio of the Company, which aims to 
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continue the programming mission of Kino Polska Television. The channel is broadcast in Polish. Its main target 

is Polish audience abroad. In carrying out the provisions of this Agreement, Dish Network provided its 

customers the programs Kino Polska International and Kino Polska Muzyka in a monthly a-la-carte subscription 

or in any package, present in the platform’s offe Dish Network customers gained access to the channels of Kino 

Polska  International and Kino Polska Muzyka on  July 19, 2012; the remuneration of Kino Polska TV S.A. 

under this Agreement in any subsequent month is calculated basing on the actual number of subscribers. The 

agreement was concluded for 3 years, with an option to extend for a further period of 2 years. There is no 

condition or reservation deadline in the agreement. It also does not include penalty clauses that can exceed the 

equivalent of at least 10% of the agreement value or the PLN equivalent of EUR 200 000. 

 

Agreement with  Cyfrowy Polsat S.A. 

On June 1, 2012, on market conditions, a cooperation agreement (the "Agreement") was signed between the 

Issuer and Cyfrowy Polsat S.A. ("Cyfrowy Polsat"). This Agreement sets forth the conditions under which 

Cyfrowy Polsat acquired the rights to distribute FightBox program ("Program") on the platform CYFROWY 

POLSAT and, in case of launching an ADSL platform by Cyfrowy Polsat , also to distribute the Program within 

the ADSL platform. Under this agreement, Kino Polska TV S.A. provided Cyfrowy Polsat with the following: 

 paid and non-exclusive license includes the right to distribute the Program in a digital system, via 

satellite, directly to the individual reception (DTH); 

 paid and non-exclusive license, with the right to sublicense, including the right to incorporate the 

program into program packages, and their distribution in a digital system via a telecommunications 

network to the individual receiving directly; 

 paid and non-exclusive license includes the right to make available to subscribers on the website 

Cyfrowy Polsat selected and forwarded by the Company to Cyfrowy Polsat broadcast, falling the 

program, called: "Catchup TV Broadcasts”. 

 

By virtue of the above licenses Cyfrowy Polsat pay to the Company a monthly flat-rate license fee, which does 

not differ from the market standards. Moreover, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, Cyfrowy 

Polsat is committed to provide to the Kino Polska TV S.A. services necessary for the satellite distribution of the 

Program, such as ensuring the space for transponder, service signal sending station operator, signal encryption 

program. By virtue of technical services Kino Polska TV S.A. pay to the Cyfrowy Polsat a monthly flat-rate 

license fees fixed by market conditions. The settlement of claims between the Cyfrowy Polsat and the Company 

will be made by mutually set-off. In addition, Cyfrowy Polsat provide for the Company services include: 

administering of the encode cards and sale of docking equipment, from which it retrieve a charge depending on 

the amount of work done during the month. The agreement comes in force on 1 June 2012. The agreement was 

concluded for a period of 3 years.  

 

In addition, on June 1, 2012 annexe No. 3 was signed to the agreement concluded on February 23, 2010 (the 

"Amendment") between the Company and Cyfrowy Polsat. Pursuant to this Annex, from 1 June 2012 Cyfrowy 

Polsat incorporated in its offer two new channels produced and distributed by the Company: FilmBox Family 

FilmBox Extra. Additionally Kino Polska Television was moved to the basic package (“Familijny Package” and 

“Familijny HD Package”), thus it is available to nearly 2.8 million Cyfrowy Polsat subscribers. The 

remuneration payable to the Company, for providing a license the emission of these channels does not differ 
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from the standards prevailing on the market and it based on monthly flat-rate fee. For programs FilmBox Extra, 

Filmbox ,FilmBox Family and FilmBox HD distributed in "Filmbox Package" offered in the system à la carte, 

remuneration payable to the Company made conditional on the number of subscribers. 

Neither the Agreement nor the Annex includes any objections of condition or term. They also do not include 

penalty clauses, which may exceed the equivalent of at least 10% of contract value or the PLN equivalent of 

EUR 200 000. 

 

The agreement with PK 13 Sp. z o.o. SKA 

On June 13, 2012, the Issuer entered into a lease agreement ("Lease Agreement") with PK 13 Sp. z o.o. SKA 

(hereinafter: "PK 13", "Lessor"). The subject of this agreement is a lease by the Company of a property located 

in Warsaw at Puławska 435A of the total area of 2 327.60 m2, which is intended to conduct current operations. 

 

For the inception of the lease, the parties agreed January 1, 2013 provided that the issue of premises in order to 

arrange them will be no later than July 1, 2012. The total estimated value of benefits under this agreement, for 

the entire period of its duration, is approximately of PLN 9.5 million net. The Management Board of Kino 

Polska TV S.A. notes that the fee for 1 m2 of the newly leased space does not differ significantly from the 

previously applicable rate of rent and considering the above, this Lease Agreement will not affect significantly 

the amount of the Company's current costs. 

The legal security for payment of rent due PK 13, service charges and other fees and penalties will be a bank 

guarantee or deposit of the corresponding three-month equivalent rent, service charges and an estimate of 

charges for utilities, plus VAT. On the day of signing the Lease Agreement, its estimated value is PLN 530 000. 

The amount of security once a year  may be updated due to the indexation of the rent. 

 

The Lease Agreement envisages the possibility of imposition of the Company contractual penalty in the 

following cases: 

1) The Tenant finishes work on the adaptation of the property for the purposes of the Company at a later date 

than that specified in the schedule - then the Lessor shall be entitled, after a written determination and in 

consultation with the Tenant to an additional at least 30 – day- period to terminate Lease Agreement the tenancy 

within a 6 - months -notice period, moreover the Lessor shall have the right to charge a contractual penalty of 

PLN 500 for each day of delay. 

2) The Tenant fails to submit the Lessor within a reasonable time an established security in the form of a fixed  

security deposit or bank guarantee - then the Lessor shall have the right to terminate the tenancy with immediate 

effect, after notice to Tenant and establishing an extra 30-day period, moreover the Lessor may also charge the 

Tenant contractual penalties of  PLN 2 000 for each day of delay in delivery or supplementation of security. 

3) In the event of any delay in returning the rented property, the Company will be obliged to pay PK 13 the 

penalty of 10% of the monthly rent for each day of delay. 

 

The payment of any penalty specified in the Lease Agreement does not preclude an investigation by the Tenant 
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of the Company's compensation for non-performance or improper performance of the Company's obligations set 

out in the lease, in excess of the amount of liquidated damages paid or the amount of rent. 

 

The agreement was concluded for a fixed period until December 31, 2018, with the possibility of extension 

thereafter. The Lease Agreement has not included concerns about the condition. 

 

In addition, on  June 13, 2012, an agreement was signed under which in 2013 the Company will receive from PK 

13 the total amount of PLN 1 033 454.40  net bonus cash in connection with the conclusion of the Lease 

Agreement. 

 

Amendment No. 6 to the Agreement with Bank Pekao S.A. Polska on the renewal and increase of the 

credit line in the current account 

On June 29, 2012 Annex No. 6 was concluded to the loan agreement No. 3/2008 in the current account 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Loan”) dated  April 10, 2008, with annexes between Kino Polska TV S.A. and 

Bank Polska Kasa Opieki S.A. with headquarters in Warsaw (the “Bank”).  

The subject of this Annex is to renew and to increase the credit line in the current account. Under the terms of 

this Annex, the Loan is available in the following periods and amounts: 

 in the period from June 29, 2012 until July 15, 2012, in the amount of PLN 3 700 000 (in words: three 

million seven hundred PLN), 

 in the period from July 16, 2012 until June 28, 2013 in the amount of PLN 5 000 000 (in words: five  

million PLN). Deadline for loan expires on June 28, 2013. 

The Loan interest rate is variable, determined based on the rate of WIBOR 1M from each day + bank margin. 

Legal credit repayment guarantee is filed by the Company at the disposal of the Bank's blank promissory note,  

a statement of submission by Kino Polska TV S.A. to execution up to PLN 10 000 000 (in words: ten million 

PLN), including possible claims of the Bank under the loan agreement in the current account No. 3/2008 and 

granting the Bank the power of attorney to dispose of funds on current accounts of the Company. 

This Annex does not include objections to the condition or time limit. It also does not contain any penalty 

clauses, which may exceed the equivalent of at least 10% of the agreement value or the PLN equivalent of EUR 

200 000. 

 

The agreement with Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. SKA ("Kino Polska  Program") 

On 1
st
 February 2013, the Company entered into an agreement with Kino Polska  Sp. z o.o. SKA (former name: 

KPTV Program Sp. z o.o. SKA) - a subsidiary of the Issuer, on the acquisition by Kino Polska TV S.A. of new 

shares of series B of Program Kino Polska Sp. z o.o. SKA, in exchange for a contribution in kind in the form of 

transfer to Kino Polska Program of a separate and organized part (within the meaning of art. 55 (1) of the Civil 

Code and art. 4a section 4 of the Act of  February 15,1992 on income tax from legal persons) of the company 
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Kino Polska TV S.A., which consists of tangible and intangible assets used to perform the tasks of production, 

broadcast of channels Kino Polska Television, Kino Polska Muzyka and Kino Polska International and sale of 

advertising time, creating an independent branch, named "Kino Polska TV" S.A. – Branch in Warsaw (the 

"Branch"). The fair value of the subject of this contribution in kind on November 30, 2012 was estimated  

at PLN 47,805,000.00 . The correctness of the calculation of this value has been tested by an independent auditor 

Mr Artur Rymarczyk from the company System Rewident Sp. z o.o. entered in the list of entities authorized to 

audit financial statements conducted by the National Chamber of Statutory Auditors under number 1253. The 

auditor's opinion in this regard was issued on January 28, 2013. 

 

Kino Polska Program intends to continue the current plan of use of the contribution, i.e. the tasks of production, 

broadcast of channels Kino Polska Television, Kino Polska Muzyka and Kino Polska International and sale of 

advertising time.  

 

The evidential value of the components of the contribution in the financial books of the Issuer, defined as the 

value of assets contributed in kind before depreciation and amortization, as of February 1, 2013, amounted to 

PLN 6,390,949.92 . 

 

Registration of the share capital increase of Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. SKA took place on February  

19, 2013. 

 

The investment agreement with Agora S.A. 

Kino Polska TV S.A. and Agora S.A. ("Agora") have decided to jointly apply for a license for a movie channel 

distributed by terrestrial digital way ("Concession") and co-finance the development of such a channel in case of 

being granted a Concession. The parties agreed that the application for the Concession to the National Council of 

Radio and Television will be made by Stopklatka S.A. 

 

On February 22, 2013 an Investment Agreement was signed between Agora and the Issuer, which is the majority 

shareholder of Stopklatka S.A. 

 

The Investment Agreement relates to the conditional share purchase of STK by Agora and the terms and 

conditions of cooperation between Agora and Kino Polska TV S.A., including the appointment of the STK’s 

bodies and voting in important matters at the General Shareholders Meeting of the STK. The condition for the 

entering into force of this Agreement is to obtain a Concession by Stopklatka S.A. More information on this 

agreement in contained in the current report No. 11/2013 published by the Issuer on  February 22, 2013. 

 

The application for Concession was made in the National Council of Radio and Television on February 25, 2013.  
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10. INFORMATION ABOUT ORGANIZATIONAL AND CAPITAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHER 

ENTITIES AND DETERMINE THE ISSUER'S PRINCIPAL DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN 

INVESTMENT (SECURITIES, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND 

PROPERTY), INCLUDING CAPITAL INVESTMENTS MADE OUTSIDE OF THE GROUP OF 

RELATED ENTITIES AND DESCRIPTION OF THE METHODS OF FINANCING  

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. is capital connections with subsidiary of the Issuer.  

In 2012, the Company increased its equity interests in Stopklatka S.A. by purchasing of 69 415 shares STK 

based on a civil law agreement of sale shares concluded on July 5, 2012, by and between the Issuer and  

Mr Adam Bortnik - a member of the Management Board of Stopklatka S.A. at that time.  

 

Before the aforementioned transaction, Kino Polska TV S.A. held 1 798 286 common bearer shares of 

Stopklatka S.A., representing 79.04% of the share capital and corresponding to 1 798 286 votes and 79.04% of 

the total number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting of Stopklatka S.A. 

 

Currently Kino Polska TV S.A. has 1 867 701 common bearer shares of Stopklatka S.A., representing 82.09% of 

the share capital and corresponds to 1 867 701 votes and 82.09% of the total number of votes at the General 

Shareholders Meeting of STK. 

 

In addition, on October 23, 2012, Kino Polska TV S.A. purchased of the shares/stock in the following 

companies: 

- Cornville Investments Sp. z o.o.  

(new name: KPTV Media Sp. z o.o.) 

- Farley Investments Sp. z o.o.  

(new name: Kino Polska  Program Sp. z o.o. ) 

 

- Farley Investments  Sp. z o.o.  SKA  

(new name: Kino Polska  Program Sp. z o.o. SKA) 

 

The acquired entities are special purpose vehicles, which will be used to implement the planned restructuring 

activities of Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 

The table below summarizes the Company’s  held shares/stocks as of March 19, 2013: 

 

Entity Headquarters Nr of held shares/stocks  
Per cent of shares in the 

share capital  
Type of preference 

Stopklatka S.A. 
Ul. Puławska 61, 

02-595 Warsaw 
1 867 701 82.09% 

Non preference  

shares 

Cyfrowe Repozytorium 

Filmowe Sp. z o.o. 

Ul. Puławska 61, 

02-595 Warsaw 
90 60.00% 

Non preference  

stock  

Kino Polska Program  

Sp. z o.o. 

Ul. Puławska 435A, 

02-801 Warsaw 
100 100.00% 

Non preference  

stock 
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Kino Polska Program  

Sp. z o.o. SKA 

Ul. Puławska 435A, 

02-801 Warsaw 
4 830 500 100.00% 

Non preference  

shares 

KPTV Media  

Sp. z o.o. 

Ul. Puławska 435A, 

02-801 Warsaw 
100 100.00% 

Non preference  

stock 

 

Information on the current composition of the management bodies of the Issuer's subsidiaries: 

 

Name Management Board 

Stopklatka S.A. Bogusław Kisielewski – President of the Management Board 

Cyfrowe Repozytorium Filmowe Sp. z o.o. Maciej Molewski – President of the Management Board 

Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. 
Piotr Reisch – President of the Management Board 

Bogusław Kisielewski – Member of the Management Board 

Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. SKA 

Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. SKA is represented by sole general partner, i.e. the 

company Kino Poland Program. Sp. z o.o. on whose behalf acts the management board 

of that company 

KPTV Media Sp. z o.o. Marcin Kowalski – President of the Management Board 

 

11. INFORMATION ON MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO BY THE ISSUER OR ITS 

SUBSIDIARY WITH RELATED PARTIES ON TERMS OTHER THAN MARKET 

 

In the reporting period the Company and its subsidiaries did not enter into any transactions with related parties 

on terms other than market. 

 

12. INFORMATION ABOUT ENTERED AND SPOKEN IN A GIVEN YEAR CONTRACTS FOR 

LOANS AND ADVANCES, GIVING AT LEAST THE AMOUNT, TYPE AND AMOUNT OF THE 

INTEREST RATE, CURRENCY AND MATURITY 

 

In 2012, Kino Polska TV S.A. had two loan agreements on overdraft and a credit deposit agreements with Bank 

Pekao SA Poland: 

 

 

 

 

Lender 

 

 

Currency 

 

 

 

Amount of credit 

The value of the credit at 

the balance sheet day Interest rate Maturity Security 

In currency In PLN 

Bank Polska Kasa 

Opieki S.A. 
PLN 3 000 000.00 0.00 0.00 

Wibor 1m each day + 

3% 
2012-06-29 

In blanco 

promissory note 

Bank Polska Kasa 

Opieki S.A. 
PLN 3 000 000.00 0.00 0.00 

Wibor 1m each day + 

2.8% 
2012-07-03 

In blanco 

promissory note 

Bank Polska Kasa 

Opieki S.A. 
PLN 5 000 000.00 0.00 0.00 

Wibor 1m each day + 

3% 
2013-06-29 

In blanco 

promissory note 
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13. INFORMATION ABOUT THE LOANS, WHICH WAS PROVIDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR, 

WITH PARTICULAR EMPHASIS ON LOANS TO THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE ISSUER, GIVING 

AT LEAST THE AMOUNT, TYPE AND AMOUNT OF THE INTEREST RATE, CURRENCY AND 

MATURITY 

In 2012 Kino Polska TV S.A. did not grant loans. 

 

14. INFORMATION GIVEN AND RECEIVED IN THE YEAR WARRANTIES AND GUARANTEES, 

WITH SPECIAL REFERENCE TO WARRANTIES AND GUARANTEES GRANTED TO THE 

ISSUER 

In Accordance with the Loan Agreement as of June 13, 2012, concluded between Kino Polska TV S.A. 

and  PK 13 Sp. z o.o. SKA, the Issuer granted PK 13 a bank guarantee in the amount of  PLN 530 000.00 as 

collateral of the due PK 13 rent, maintenance fees and other fees and penalties. 

In  the fiscal year 2012, the Company did not give warranties or guarantees to related parties. 

 

15.DESCRIPTION OF THE USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARE ISSUE BY THE COMPANY IN THE 

REPORTING PERIOD TO THE TIME OF PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

In the reporting period the Issuer has not adopted a resolution on issue shares. 

However, in 2012, the proceeds were used by the initial public offering of shares of series B of Kino Polska TV 

S.A., which took place in 2011. 

 

The use of the funds raised in 2011 through the issue of shares of series B in the period 01.01.2012 - 

19.03.2013: 

 

In 2012, the Issuer financed the production of the movie "Inspector Blond and the Eye of Justice” for a total 

amount of PLN 1.5 million. 

 

16. EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE FINANCIAL RESULTS DISCLOSED IN 

THE ANNUAL REPORT AND PREVIOUSLY PUBLISHED FORECAST RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 

 

The Company has not published forecasts of individual financial results for the year 2012. 
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17. EVALUATION, WITH THE JUSTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, WITH 

PARTICULAR EMPHASIS ON THE ABILITY TO MEET ITS OBLIGATIONS, AND 

DETERMINATION OF POSSIBLE RISKS AND ACTIVITIES WHICH THE ISSUER HAS TAKEN 

OR INTENDS TO TAKE IN ORDER TO ADDRESS THESE RISKS  

 

The assessment of the Company’s financial resource management was prepared based on the data covered by the 

financial statement for 2012. 

 

Balance sheet structure 

In 2012, there was an increase by 5% in total assets compared to the data from the previous year. A dominant 

position in assets was held by current assets (50.23% of total assets), which consisted mainly of intangible assets. 

In 2012 the increase in receivables was caused by delayed payments from certain customers. The increase in 

inventories in the Company was due to a change in the distribution of Publishing of Kino Polska Television.  

In 2012, there was a decrease in cash of the Company in connection with the payment of dividends to 

shareholders for the year 2011. Noted in 2012 the increase in current liabilities was due to the settlement of the 

Company, which were regulated by the date of approval of this report. 

 

Assessment of the profitability 

Net profit margin is at the level of 14.29%, and results from an increase in net profit in 2012 compared to 2011. 

Due to the systematic expansion of viewership of channels of the Company and enriching their programming 

offer there was an approximately 7% revenue growth from broadcasting activities. In addition, there was an 

approximately 137% increase from advertising in the company's revenue. The description of the Company's 

revenue growth was included in point 3.1. of this section of the report. The return on assets and equity of the 

company is at a high level - respectively 19.65% and 21.83%. 

 

Assessment of liquidity 

In 2012 indices of current liquidity were at 4.67. The Company is capable of timely settlement of its current 

liabilities. In order to prevent the liquidity risk, several agreements with banks keeping its current account, were 

signed whereby it is able to raise funds at a short notice, enabling it to settle its short-term amounts liabilities. 

 

Assessment of indebtedness 

The index of debt ratio is 0.12, which indicates the financial soundness of the Company and its ability to self-

finance the assets and ongoing operations and demonstrates a good financial condition of the Company and its 

ability to finance the assets and current operating activity on its own. The settlement of amounts due is effected 

every 22 days on average, which is an effect of payment deadlines negotiated with suppliers. 

 

The Company's financial situation is good. Kino Polska TV S.A. is not threatened by a loss of liquidity and 

settles its amounts liabilities on time. 
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18. ASSESSMENT OF FEASIBILITY OF INVESTMENT PROJECTS, INCLUDING CAPITAL 

INVESTMENTS, COMPARED TO THE RESOURCES AVAILABLE, INCLUDING POSSIBLE 

CHANGES IN THE FINANCING STRUCTURE  

 

In February 2013, Kino Polska TV S.A. ("KPTV") and the company Agora S.A. decided to apply for a common 

concession for a movie channel, distributed by terrestrial digital way as well as the development of joint 

financing of such a channel in case of  receiving the Concession. The parties agreed that the application for the 

Concession will be submitted by Stopklatka S.A. 

On  February 22, 2013 an investment agreement was concluded between Agora and investment Kino Polska TV 

S.A. which is the majority shareholder of Stopklatka S.A. 

 

The investment agreement relates to the conditional (subject to the Concession) acquisition of STK shares  

by Agora and the cooperation between Agora and KPTV, including appointing authority of STK and joint voting 

in important issues at the General Shareholders Meeting of STK. The Parties of the Investment Agreement 

agreed that upon receipt of the Concession by STK, jointly and proportionately will recapitalize STK of a total of 

not less than PLN 20 million through the acquisition of shares in the increased share capital of the company. 

 

STK applied to the National Council of Radio and Television for provision of the Concession on February 25, 

2013. 

 

In the opinion of the Management Board of the Issuer, the held financial resources are sufficient to carry out the 

project described above. 

Kino Polska TV S.A. also does not rule out investment in attractive contents in case of  a satisfactory offer. 

Then, depending on the amount of the investment, the Company will consider the possibility of using alternative 

sources of financing. 

 

19. ASSESSMENT OF FACTORS AND UNUSUAL EVENTS WHICH AFFECTED THE RESULTS OF 

THE ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR WITH SPECIFYING THE DEGREE OF THEIR INFLUENCE 

ON THE RESULT 

 

In 2012, there were no unusual factors and events affecting the results of operations of the Company. 

Significant impact on the Issuer's results had primarily the increase in viewership of the channels produced and 

distributed by Kino Poland TV S.A., as well as increase of their technical range. A detailed description is given 

in point 3.1 of this part of the report. 
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20. CHARACTERISTICS OF EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL FACTORS RELEVANT FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROSPECTS OF AT LEAST 

THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AFTER FOLLOWING YEAR, FOR WHICH ACCOUNTS 

WERE DONE 

 

Among the external factors relevant to the development of Kino Polska TV S.A. stands the competition from 

other providers of specialized programs. Very important seems to be the macroeconomic situation and the 

financial condition of households, since a significant percentage of the Company’s revenue is dependent on the 

prosperity of customers, which varies depending on economic conditions, including economic growth, 

unemployment, personal consumption, consumer confidence indicators, the level of the euro against the Polish 

zloty and the fiscal policy of the state. An important external factor that could affect the development of the 

Company is also a change in the laws governing the Issuer. 

 

 

Internal factors relevant to the development of the Company include the risk of not granting concessions for 

Kino Polska Television and Kino Polska Muzyka after their effective period or being granted other concessions 

on less attractive terms. Very important seems to be the cooperation with cable and digital operators and other 

relevant partners, as well as the expansion of activities in the area of new media. Noteworthy is the attractiveness 

of the content owned by Kino Polska TV S.A. The Issuer while preparing the programming schedule of the 

produced channels must on the one hand carefully analyse the preferences of the audience, on the other, control 

the concession percentage requirements of a particular type of program.  

 

Prospects for the development of the Company are described in point 1.2.of this section of the report. 

 

21. CHANGES IN THE BASIC PRINCIPLES OF MANAGEMENT OF AN ISSUER AND ITS 

CAPITAL GROUP 

 

In 2012, there were no significant changes in the basic principles of management of the Company and its Capital 

Group. 

 

22.  INFORMATION ABOUT ANY AGREEMENTS CONCLUDED BETWEEN THE ISSUER AND 

THE COMPANIES OF THE CAPITAL GROUP AND THE MANAGEMENT BOARD MEMBERS, 

PROVIDING FOR COMPENSATION IN CASE OF RESIGNATION OR DISMISSAL FROM THEIR 

POSITION WITHOUT A VALID REASON OR WHEN THEIR CANCELLATION OR DISMISSALIS 

DUE TO A MERGER BY ACQUISITION OF THE ISSUER 

 

Pursuant to the resolution of the Supervisory Board, each of the Members of the Management Board of Kino 

Polska TV S.A., in case of cancellation of their function, is entitled to compensation in the amount  

of PLN 360 000 net. 
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23. INFORMATION ON VALUE OF SALARIES, BONUSES OR PROFITS, ARISING OUT OF THIS 

INCENTIVE OR BONUS PROGRAMS BASED ON THE ISSUER'S CAPITAL, INCLUDING 

PROGRAMS BASED ON SENIOR BONDS, CONVERTIBLE BONDS, SUBSCRIPTION WARRANTS 

(IN CASH, KIND, OR ANY OTHER FORM), PAID, PAYABLE OR POTENTIALLY PAYABLE FOR 

EACH OF THE MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY ISSUER COMPANY 

 

The remuneration of the members of the Management Board received from the Issuer in 2012 ranged in the 

following manner (data in PLN): 

 

Remuneration of the 

Management 

Board Members 

 

Under the 

appointment 

 

Under the contract of 

employment 

 

Under the bonuses, 

prizes 

 

Business activity 

Piotr Reisch 506 268.00 0.00 0.00 1 781.10 

Bogusław Kisielewski  502 951.00 26 829.22 560 816.00 0.00 

 

Remuneration of the Members of the Supervisory Board received from the Issuer in 2012 was as follows 

(in PLN): 

 

Remuneration of the Supervisory  

Board Members 

Under the 

appointment 

Under the contract of 

employment 

Under the bonuses. prizes Business activity 

Loni Farhi 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Stacey Sobel 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Krzysztof Szymański 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Witold Adamek 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Piotr Orłowski 21 995.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Anna Krasińska 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 

Mr Piotr Reisch did not receive in 2012, any remuneration or benefits in kind from a subsidiary of the Issuer, in 

respect of services. 

 

Mr Bogusław Kisielewski did not receive in 2012, any remuneration or benefits in kind from a subsidiary of the 

Issuer, in respect of services. 

 

Members of the Supervisory Board did not receive in 2012 any remuneration or benefits in kind from the Issuer.  

 

Members of the Supervisory Board did not receive in 2012 any remuneration or benefits in kind from  

a subsidiary of the Issuer, in respect of services. 
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24. TOTAL NUMBER AND NOMINAL VALUE OF ALL THE ISSUER’S STOCKS (SHARES) AND 

OF SHARES IN SUBSIDIARIES HELD BY THE ISSUER’S  MANAGERS AND SUPERVISORS  (FOR 

EACH PERSON SEPARATELY)  

 

24.1 Kino Polska TV S.A. 

 
Holdings of Kino Polska TV S.A.’s shares by supervisors and managers on the date of this report, is as follows: 

Name and 

surname 

Number of shares /Total 

nominal value in PLN 

Number of votes Part of total votes at the 

GMS (%) 
Part of share capital (%) 

 as of 

19.03.2013 

as of  

31.12.2012 

as of 

19.03.2013 

as of  

31.12.2012 

as of 

19.03.2013 

as of  

31.12.2012 

as of 

19.03.2013 

as of  

31.12.2012 

Piotr Reisch 
742 825 / 

74 282.50 PLN 

742 825/ 

74 282.50  PLN 
742 825 742 825 5.36% 5.36% 5.36% 5.36% 

Bogusław 

Kisielewski 
0/0 PLN 0/0 PLN 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0% 

 

To the best knowledge of the Issuer's the members of the Supervisory Board of  Kino Polska TV S.A. do not 

hold any shares of the Company. 

 

Mr Loni Farhi - President of the Supervisory Board – holds 7 500 shares in SPI International B.V.I., which 

represents 15% of the share capital of the company. 

 

SPI International B.V.I. is a company holding 100% of the share capital and votes in SPI International N.V., 

with seat in Curacao. SPI International N.V. is the sole member of Cooperative SPI International U.A., with seat 

in the Netherlands, and this company owns 100% of the share capital and votes in SPI International Polska  

Sp. z o.o. – the majority shareholder of the Issuer. 

 

24.2 Stopklatka S.A. 

To the best knowledge of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. the persons managing and supervising 

of the Issuer on the date of approval of this report do not hold any shares of Stopklatka S.A. 

 

24.3 Cyfrowe Repozytorium Filmowe Sp. z o.o.  

To the best knowledge of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. the persons managing and supervising 

of the Issuer on the date of approval of this report do not hold any shares of Cyfrowe Repozytorium Filmowe Sp. 

z o.o.  
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24.4 KPTV Media Sp. z o.o. 

To the best knowledge of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. the persons managing and supervising 

of the Issuer on the date of approval of this report do not hold any shares of KPTV Media Sp. z o.o. 

 

24.5 Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. 

To the best knowledge of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. the persons managing and supervising 

of the Issuer on the date of approval of this report do not hold any shares of Kino Polska  Program Sp. z o.o. 

 

24.6 Kino Polska Program Sp. z o.o. SKA 

To the best knowledge of the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. the persons managing and supervising 

of the Issuer on the date of approval of this report do not hold any shares of Kino Polska  Program Sp. z o.o. 

SKA.  

 

25. INFORMATION ABOUT KNOWN TO THE ISSUER AGREEMENT (INCLUDING THOSE 

ENTERED INTO AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DAY), WHICH MAY RESULT IN FUTURE 

CHANGES IN THE PROPORTIONS OF SHARES HELD BY EXISTING SHAREHOLDERS AND 

BONDHOLDERS 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. has no knowledge of any agreements which may result in changes in the proportion of the 

Issuer's shares held by its existing shareholder. 

 

26. INFORMATION ABOUT THE CONTROL SYSTEM EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES  

 

The Company has no employee share schemes. 

 

 

27. INFORMATION ABOUT THE DATE OF ENTERING INTO AGREEMENT OF ENTITIES FROM 

THE COMPANY WITH AN ENTITY AUTHORIZED TO AUDIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, OR 

TO AUDIT OR ASSESS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS AND PERIOD FOR WHICH THIS WAS CONCLUDED, ABOUT THE PAY TO THE 

ENTITY AUTHORIZED TO AUDIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PAID OR DUE FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR SEPARATELY FOR: AUDIT OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OTHER 

CERTIFICATION SERVICES, INCLUDING AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS, TAX ADVISORY SERVICES, 

OTHER SERVICES 

 

On June 18, 2012, the Company concluded an agreements with System Rewident Sp.z o.o. for audit and 

assessment of the financial statements unit and consolidated, and semi-annual review for the period of January 1, 

2012 - December 31, 2012 and the review of the individual and consolidated financial statements of the Issuer 

for the period  January 1, 2012 -  June 30, 2012. 
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   31.12.2012  31.12.2011 

 

Mandatory audit of financial statements 

 

64 000.00 

 

61 000.00 

Semi-annual review and audit of financial statements 30 000.00 15 000.00 

Other attestation services 12 000.00 - 

Tax advisory services - - 

Other services - - 

Total 106 000.00 76 000.00 

 

 

Warsaw, March 19, 2013  

 

 

 

Piotr Reisch – President of the Management Board  

 

 

 

Bogusław Kisielewski – Member of the Management Board  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

64 

STATEMENT  

BY THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF KINO POLSKA TV S.A. 

on the appointment of the auditing entity entitled to audit financial statements, auditing  the annual 

individual financial statement 

 

The Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. confirms that the entity authorized to audit financial statement, 

auditing the annual individual financial statement has been selected abiding the law and that the entity and the 

auditors who audited this financial statement fulfilled the conditions for an impartial and independent opinion on 

the audited annual individual financial statement in accordance with applicable regulations and professional 

standards. 

 

__________________ 

Piotr Reisch 

President of the Management Board 

 

__________________ 

Bogusław Kisielewski 

Member of the Management Board 

 

 

Warsaw, March 19, 2013  
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STATEMENT  

BY THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF KINO POLSKA TV S.A. 

On preparing financial statement in accordance with applicable accounting principles 

 

 

The Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. confirms that, in accordance with the best knowledge, the 

annual financial statement and comparative data have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting 

principles, and that they give a true and fair financial position of the Company Kino Polska TV S.A. and its 

financial performance. The annual report on the activities of Kino Polska TV S.A. presents a true picture of the 

development, achievements and situation of Kino Polska TV S.A., including a description of the main threats 

and risks. 

 

 

__________________ 

Piotr Reisch 

President of the Management Board 

 

__________________ 

Bogusław Kisielewski 

Member of the Management Board 

 

 

Warsaw, March 19, 2013  
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INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

DRAWN UP IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 

APPROVED BY THE EUROPEAN UNION 

 

 

 

 

 

KINO POLSKA TV S.A.  
 

 

 

 

FOR THE PERIOD OF 

 

January 1, 2012 – December 31, 2012 
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MANAGEMENT BOARD STATEMENT 

 

The Financial Statement of Kino Polska TV S.A. covers the period from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 

and includes comparative data for 2011, the period ended December 31, 2011. 

 

The financial statements of the Company for the period from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 have been 

prepared in accordance with IFRS, as approved by the European Commission. IFRS comprises of standards and 

interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee and the International Financial 

Reporting Standards. 

 

These financial statements have been prepared abiding the above rules, which include: 

 

• Report of total comprehensive income for the period between January 1, 2012 - 31 December 

2012, closing with net profit PLN 14 294 thousand, 

• Statement of financial situation as of December 31, 2012 showing total assets and liabilities 

PLN 74 707 thousand, 

• Statement of Cash Flow for the period January 1, 2012 - December 31, 2012, 

• Statement of changes in equity for the period January 1, 2012 - December 31, 2012, 

• Explanatory notes. 

 

The financial statement have been prepared in accordance with IFRS approved by the European Union and 

present a true and fair financial position and results of operations of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

...……………………………..                                  ………………………………………….. 

                  Piotr Reisch     Bogusław Kisielewski 

President of the Management Board                 Member of the Management Board 

 

 

 

                                                                                                     

…...………………………….     

      Jolanta Orłowska 

      Chief Accountant 
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Individual report of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2012  

 01.01.2012-

31.12.2012 

01.01.2011-

31.12.2011 

Continued activities Note   

    

Revenue from the sale of services 3 98 955 998,02 80 270 549,64 

Revenue from the sales of goods and materials 3 1 086 654,89 131 399,80 
    

Sales revenues  100 042 652,91 80 401 949,44 

Cost of sales 4 (74 838 133,46) (64 163 446,11) 

Value of sold goods and materials 4 (821 950,35) (55 678,91) 
    

Gross profit/(loss) on sales  24 382 569,10 16 182 824,42 
    

Other operating revenues 5 63 493,58 58 013,99 

Cost of sales 4 (823 039,90) (1 013 327,08) 

General and administrative expenses 4 (4 633 872,61) (4 633 567,38) 

Other operating expenses 5.1 (957 546,44) (133 096,55) 
    

Operating profit (loss)  18 031 603,73 10 460 847,40 

    

Financial revenues 6 435 768,23 712 206,69 

Financial expenses 6.1 (740 524,92) (395 556,54) 
    

Gross profit (loss)  17 726 847,04 10 777 497,55 

    

Corporate income tax 7 (3 434 616,57) (1 775 254,69) 
    

Net profit/(loss) from continuing activities  14 294 230,47 9 002 242,86 

    

Discontinued activities  - - 

Profit / (loss) for the financial year from discontinued activities  - - 
    

Net profit / (loss) from fiscal period  14 294 230,47 9 002 242,86 
  

  

  
  

 

Other comprehensive  income  - - 

Exchange differences on translation of foreign units  - - 

The effects of valuation financial assets available for sale  - - 

Hedge accounting  - - 

Effects of renovation of fixed assets  - - 

Actuarial gains and losses  - - 

Participation of  associates in other comprehensive income  - - 

Income tax on other comprehensive income  - - 

    

Other comprehensive income (net)  - - 

Total comprehensive income  - - 

Profit/(loss) for the period  14 294 230,47 9 002 242,86 

Attributable to:    

Shareholders of the parent company  14 294 230,47 9 002 242,86 

Minority shareholders  - - 

Total comprehensive income:  14 294 230,47 9 002 242,86 

Attributable to:    

Shareholders of the parent company  14 294 230,47 9 002 242,86 

Minority shareholders  - - 

 

Profit (loss) per one share    

– basic from profit for the period  1,24 0,71 

– basic from profit from continued activities for the period  1,24 0,71 

– diluted from profit for the period  1,24 0,71 

– diluted from profit from continued activities for the period  1,24 0,71 
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Individual statement of the financial situation as of December 31, 2012 

 Note 
year ended  

December 31, 2012 

year ended  

December 31, 2011 

ASSETS    

Fixed assets    

Tangible fixed assets 12 7 646 832,06 7 556 352,81 

Investment property  - - 

Intangible assets 14 20 975 436,09 21 107 521,98 

Financial assets available for sale  - - 

Other financial assets (long term) 19a 8 753 315,44 8 278 953,75 

Trade and other liabilities (long term)  - - 

Loans granted 26a - 1 090 000,00 

Deferred tax assets 7 147 677,46 46 878,16 
  

  

  37 523 261,05 38 079 706,70 
  

  

Current assets    

Inventories 20 740 422,04 146 672,49 

Trade and other receivables 21 27 628 199,51 16 089 987,70 

Receivables related to income tax 21 - - 

Accruals 21 1 214 194,44 1 705 610,19 

Derivative financial instruments  - - 

Other financial assets 19b/21 1 080 366,42 3 493,97 

Other non-financial assets  - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 22 6 520 736,69 14 790 159,32 
  

  

  37 183 919,10 32 735 923,67 

Assets classified as held for sale  - - 
  

  

TOTAL ASSETS  74 707 180,15 70 815 630,37 
  

  

  
  

    

LIABILITIES    

Shareholders' equity (shareholders of the parent company)    

Share capital 23.1 1 387 000,00 1 387 000,00 

The surplus from the sale of shares above their nominal value 23.2 35 659 543,79 35 659 543,79 

Own shares purchased for redemption 23.3 (386 081,32) - 

Other capitals 23.3 10 578 425,64 15 435 182,78 

Retained profits/ losses not covered 23.4 18 258 509,12 12 966 521,51 
  

  

  65 497 397,23 65 448 248,08 

Long-term liabilities    

Interest-bearing credits and loans 26 - - 

Provisions 26 - - 

Other financial liabilities 27 59 353,95 372 452,57 

Provision for deferred income tax 7 586 149,50 68 610,63 

Accruals  - - 
  

  

  645 503,45 441 063,20 

Short-term liabilities    

Trade and  other liabilities 27 6 848 056,72 4 345 628,32 

Credits and loans 26 - - 

Other financial liabilities 27 302 716,61 236 059,80 

Income tax liabilities 27 817 756,00 176 001,00 

Accruals 27 - - 

Provisions 24 595 750,14 168 629,97 
  

  

  8 564 279,47 4 926 319,09 

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale  - - 
  

  

Total liabilities  9 209 782,92 5 367 382,29 
  

  

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  74 707 180,15 70 815 630,37 
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Individual statement of cash flow for year ended December 31, 2012 

 Nota 
01.01.2012-

31.12.2012 

01.01.2011-

31.12.2011 

Cash flow – operating activities    

Net Profit / (loss)  14 294 230,47 9 002 242,86 

Adjustments for:    

Depreciation 4 5 687 816,12 3 280 029,74 

Adjustment for acquisition of subsidiary  - - 

Interest and dividends (net) 6 -6.1 (274 535,15) (84 402,63) 

(Profit) / loss on investments activity  251 278,89 - 

(Increase) / decrease in receivables  (11 818 578,23) (8 198 908,14) 

(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (593 749,55) (99 331,88) 

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities  2 502 428,40 (1 025 662,27) 

Change in accruals 21/27 491 415,75 (1 122 086,94) 

Change in provisions 24 427 120,17 (3 753,90) 

Income tax paid  (2 329 863,00) (1 243 746,00) 

Input income tax  3 388 357,57 1 321 916,16 

Other  - - 
  

  

Net cash provided by operating activities  12 025 921,44 1 826 297,00 
  

  

    

Cash flow – investing activities    

Sale of tangible fixed assets and intangible assets  25 593,00 91 755,90 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets and intangible assets  (5 923 081,37) (16 413 402,31) 

Sale of investment property  - - 

Purchase of investment property  - - 

Sale of investments in subsidiaries, associate companies and joint  - - 
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries, associate companies and joint 
ventures 

 - - 

Sale of other financial assets  - - 

Purchase of other financial assets  (474 361,69) (4 278 953,75) 

Dividends received  - - 

Interests received  407 242,86 712 206,69 

Repayment of loans granted  290 000,00 550 000,00 

Loans granted  - (1 890 000,00) 

Other  - - 
  

  

Net cash provided by investing activities  (5 674 607,20) (21 228 393,47) 
  

  

    

Cash flow – financing activities    

Inflows from issue of shares  - 36 059 543,79 

Purchase of own shares  (386 081,32) - 

Repayment of finance lease  (246 441,81) (162 277,59) 

Inflows from loans and credit  - - 

Repayment of loans and credit  - (1 895 138,93) 

Dividends paid  (13 859 000,00) - 

Interests paid  (129 213,74) (165 319,53) 

Other  - - 
  

  

Net cash provided by financing activities  (14 620 736,87) 33 836 807,74 
  

  

    

Increase/(decrease) in net cash and cash equivalents    (8 269 422,63) 14 434 711,27 

Net foreign exchange differences   - 

Cash at the beginning of the period  14 790 159,32 355 448,05 
  

  

Cash at the end of the period  6 520 736,69 14 790 159,32 
  

  

Ś  
  

Restricted cash  783 000,00 325 000,00 
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Statement of changes in equity for the period ended December 31, 2012 

 
 Equity Share capital of 

the issue of shares 
above nominal 

value 

Supplementary 

capital 

Reserve capital Results from 

previous  years 

Results from current  

period 

Capital of 

parent company 

Minority 

capitals 

Total equity 

As of  

January 1, 2012 
1 387 000.00 35 659 543.79 15 435 182.78 - 12 966 521.51 - 65 448 248.08 - 65 448 248.08 

Changes in accounting policy 
/adjustment of error 

- - - - - - - - - 

          

As of  

January 1, 2012 
1 387 000.00 35 659 543.79 15 435 182.78 - 12 966 521.51 - 65 448 248.08 - 65 448 248.08 

          

Profit (loss) for the period - - - - - 14 294 230.47 14 294 230.47 - 14 294 230.47 
Division of financial results - - - - - -  -  

Issue of shares  - - - - - - - - - 

Cost of share issue - - - - - - - - - 

The creation of reserve 
capital on purchase of own 

shares 

- - (5 000 000.00) 5 000 000.00 - - - - - 

Own shares for redemption - - - (386 081.32) - - (386 081.32) - (386 081.32) 

Share based payment   - - - - - - - - - 
Dividend paid  - - (4 856 757.14) - (9 002 242.86) - (13 859 000.00) - (13 859 000.00) 

          

As of 

December 31, 2012 
1 387 000.00 35 659 543.79 5 578 425.64 4 613 918.68 3 964 278.65 14 294 230.47 65 497 397.23 - 65 497 397.23 

          

          

As of 

January 1, 2011 
987 000.00 - 6 418 097.49 - 12 981 363.97 - 20 386 461.46 - 20 386 461.46 

Changes in accounting 
policy/ adjustment of errors  

- - - - - - - - - 

          

As of 

January 1, 2011 
987 000.00 - 6 418 097.49 - 12 981 363.97 - 20 386 461.46 - 20 386 461.46 

          

Profit / (loss) net for the 

period 
- - - - - 9 002 242.86 9 002 242.86 - 9 002 242.86 

Division of financial result  - - 9 017 085.32 - (9 017 085.32) - - - - 
Issue of shares  400 000.00 37 600 000.00 - - - - 38 000 000.00 - 38 000 000.00 

Cost of share issue  - (1 940 456.21) - - - - (1 940 456.21) - (1 940 456.21) 

Share based payment  - - - - - - - - - 

Dividend paid  - - - - - - - - - 

          

As of December 31, 2011 1 387 000.00  35 659 543.79 15 435 182.81 - 3 964 278.65 9 002 242.86 65 448 248.08 - 65 448 248.08 
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INFORMATION NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The financial statement of Kino Polska TV S.A. covers the period from January 1, 2012  until December 31, 

2012 and includes comparative data for year 2011. 

 

Kino Polska TV S.A. was created from the transformation of the company sp. z o.o. in accordance with the 

Resolution of the Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting held on July 5, 2010 signed with a Notary deed 

drawn up on July 5, 2010, repertory A No. 6155/2010. 

 

The Company headquarters is located in Warsaw (02-595), ul. Puławska 61.  

 

The Company is registered in the register of the National Court Register kept by the District Court, XIII 

Commercial Division of the National Court Register under number 0000363674. 

 

The Company’s  National Company Register - REGON 015514227. 

The Company has a tax identification number 5213248560. 

The Company's duration is indefinite. 

The core business of the Company is the television activity. 

The majority shareholder of the Issuer is SPI International Poland Sp. z o.o. 

 

2. IDENTIFICATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The Company draws consolidated financial statement for 2012.  

 

3. THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 

 

The Management Board of the Parent Company as of December 31, 2012 consisted of: 

• President of the Management Board - Piotr Reisch 

• Member of the Management Board - Bogusław Kisielewski 

 

During the reporting period and the date of approval of these financial statements, the Management Board has 

not changed. 

 

On December 10, 2012 the Supervisory Board of Kino Polska TV S.A., appointed Mr Piotr Reisch for the 

position of President of the Management Board and Mr Boguslaw Kisielewski as a Member of the Management 

Board for the next three years.  
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The Supervisory Board of the Company as of December 31, 2012 consisted of: 

• Loni Farhi – Chairman of the Supervisory Board, 

• Stacey Sobel – Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board, 

• Piotr Orłowski - Member of the Supervisory Board, 

• Anna Krasińska - Member of the Supervisory Board, 

• Krzysztof Szymanski - Member of the Supervisory Board. 

 

4. INVESTMENT OF THE  COMPANY 

The Company has investments in the following subsidiaries: 

 

Entity Headquarters Core business 

% of shares in the 

share capital  

December 31, 2012   

% of shares in the share 

capital  

December 31, 2011   

Stopklatka S.A. 
ul. Puławska 61,  

02-576 Warsaw 
Internet Website  82.09% 79.04% 

Cyfrowe 

Repozytorium 

Cyfrowe Sp. z o.o. 

ul. Puławska 61, 

 02-576 Warsaw 

Reconstruction and archiving of 

films 

60.00% 60.00% 

Kino Polska 

Program Sp. z o.o. 

ul. Puławska 435 A, 

02-801 Warsaw 
Content consultancy activities  

100.00% 0.00% 

Kino Polska 

Program Sp. z o.o. 

SKA 

ul. Puławska 435 A, 

02-801 Warsaw 
TV broadcasting 

100.00% 0.00% 

KPTV Media  

Sp. z o.o. 

ul. Puławska 435 A, 

02-801 Warsaw 
Postproduction  

100.00% 0.00% 

 

As of December 31, 2012 the share of voting rights held by the Company's subsidiaries was equal to the 

Company's share in the capital of these entities. 

 

5. BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

5. 1 Judgments and estimates made 

The preparation of financial statement in accordance with EU IFRS requires form the Management Board to 

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and present value 

of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses whose actual values may differ from the estimated values. The 

estimates and associated assumptions are subject to on-going verification. Changes in accounting estimates are 

recognized prospectively from the period in which the estimate is revised. 

 

Tangible assets that qualify for recognition as an asset are measured initially at purchase price or at production 

cost. The Company has adopted a policy regarding the method of evaluation based on cost. After initial 

recognition of the tangible fixed assets, as a part of the assets, it must be shown at purchase price or at 
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production cost diminished by any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Depreciation is based on the straight-line method. Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without 

physical substance, over which the Company has control and which bring future economic benefits. The 

component of intangible assets are initially valued at purchase or production cost. Depreciation of intangible 

assets is done on a straight-line method over a period of two years or longer in order to accurately reflect the 

actual degree of depletion of these assets. Property rights with indefinite utilization are not depreciated. The 

prerequisite of setting the period of such utilization is its nature and the lack of legal and market constraints on 

the time of its publication. 

 

5.2. Basis for valuation 

The hereinafter financial statement has been prepared under the historical cost convention. The hereinafter 

financial statement as presented in Polish zloty ("PLN") and all values, unless otherwise indicated, are given in 

full PLN. 

 

The hereinafter financial statement has been prepared assuming that the Company shall continue its economic 

activity in a foreseeable future. At the date of approval of the hereinafter financial statement there is no 

indication of any existence of evidence of any threat of the Company’s discontinuing its activity. 

 

5.3. Statement of compliance 

The hereinafter financial statement has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards ("IFRS") and IFRS as adopted by the EU. IFRS comprise standards and interpretations as adopted by 

the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the Committee on International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations ("IFRIC"). 

 

5.4. Functional currency and the currency of the financial statement 

The Company’s functional and reporting currency of the hereinafter financial statement is Polish zloty (PLN). 

 

5.5. Adjustment of errors   

The Company has not made any adjustment of errors  for the past years.  

 

6. IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting principles (policy) described below were used by the Company for all periods presented in the 

hereinafter financial statement on a continuous basis. 
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The rules (policies) applied to the hereinafter financial statement are consistent with those applied in preparing 

financial statement for the year ended on December 31, 2012, with the exception of application of the following 

amendments to standards and new interpretations effective for annual periods beginning on January 1, 2012.  

 

Presented below are the new or amended regulations of IAS and IFRS and the new IFRIC interpretations that the 

Company has applied this year. Their use had no significant effect on the hereinafter financial statement of the 

Company.  

 

Amendments to IFRS 1 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards for the first time: Limited 

Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for adopting IFRS for the first time - effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010 or later. The application of these amendments had no impact on the 

financial position or performance of the Company. 

 

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Transfers of Financial Assets - applicable to annual 

periods beginning on or after  July 1, 2011 or later. The application of these amendments had no impact on the 

financial position or performance of the Company. 

 

Amendments to IAS 12 Recoverability of assets: - relate to the valuation of assets and the deferred tax assets 

related to real estate acquired for investment purposes, which are measured at fair value in accordance with IAS 

40 The application of these amendments had no impact on the financial position or performance of the 

Company. 

 

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - effective for annual periods beginning on July 1, 

2012 or later. 

 

The Company has not opted for early application of any standard, interpretation or amendment that was issued 

but is not yet effective. 

 

The Management Board does not expect that the introduction of these standards and interpretations will have  

a material impact on the Company's rules (policies). 

 

 7. NEW STANDARDS OF INTERPRETATION THAT HAVE BEEN PUBLISHED AND NOT YET 

ENTERED INTO FORCE 

The following standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards and 

Interpretations Board or the Committee of International Financial Reporting, and not yet entered into force: 

 

Amendments to IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - applicable to annual periods beginning on or after January 

1, 2013 or later, 
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Amendment to IFRS 19 Employee Benefits - applicable to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 

or later, 

Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015 

or later. This standard has not been endorsed by the European Union 

Amendment to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - effective for annual periods beginning on January 

1, 2014 or later. This standard was approved by the European Union 

Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - applicable to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 

or later. This standard was approved by the European Union 

Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - applicable to annual periods beginning on 

January 1, 2014 or later. This standard was approved by the European Union 

Amendment to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements - effective for annual periods beginning on January 1, 

2014 or later. This standard was approved by the European Union 

Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures - are effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after  January 1, 2014 or later. This standard was approved by the European Union 

Amendment to IAS 19 Employee Benefits - applicable to annual periods beginning on January 1, 2013 or later. 

This standard was approved by the European Union 

Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments - effective for annual periods beginning on January 1, 2014  

or later. This standard was approved by the European Union. 

 

The Management Board does not expect that the introduction of these standards and interpretations will have  

a material impact on the Company's rules (policies). 

 

8. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

8.1. Conversion of items denominated in foreign currency 

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies at the date of the transaction are recognized in the entity's 

functional currency using the exchange rate announced by the Polish National Bank the day before the date of 

the transaction. Cash flows denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the flow on the average 

exchange rate announced by the National Polish Bank on the day preceding the date of the transaction. 

 

At the balance sheet date, all monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Polish zloty 

are converted into Polish zlotys, respectively, using the current reporting period average exchange rate for  

a given currency by the Polish National Bank. The resulting exchange differences are recognized respectively in 

the position of financial income (expenses). Non-monetary assets and liabilities recognized in terms of historical 

costs given in foreign currency are recorded at historical exchange rate of the transaction. 
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8.2. Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at purchase price or production cost diminished by accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. The initial value of fixed assets comprises of its purchase price plus all costs directly related 

to the purchase and adaptation of the asset to a condition for use. The cost also includes the cost of replacing 

components of machines and equipment when it is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Costs incurred 

after the date of commissioning of the asset for use, such as maintenance and repair costs, charge profit or loss 

when incurred. 

 

Fixed assets at the time of purchase will be divided into component parts which are items of significant value 

and which can be assigned a distinct period of economic usefulness. The cost of general repairs constitutes also  

a part of the above. 

The residual value, period of usage and the depreciation method of assets shall be verified annually, and if 

necessary corrected. The depreciation is calculated on a straight line. 

A particular item of tangible assets may be removed from the balance sheet after it has been sold or if there are 

no expected economic benefits of continued use of the asset. Any gains or losses resulting from the removal of 

the asset from the balance (calculated as the difference between the possible net proceeds from the sale and the 

carrying value of the item) is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which such removal was made.  

 

Assets under construction relate to these assets that are under construction or assembly, and are stated at 

purchase or production cost diminished by any impairment losses. Tangible fixed assets under construction are 

not depreciated until construction is completed and until that the fixed asset is available for use. 

 

8.3. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired in a separate transaction or produced (if they meet the diagnosis for the development 

costs) are measured at initial recognition of purchase price, respectively, or cost of production. The purchase 

price of intangible assets acquired in business combination is equal to their fair value at the date of the merger. 

After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at their cost diminished by any accumulated depreciation 

and impairment losses.  

 

Intangible assets with a limited period of use are depreciated over the life of two years or longer and are tested 

for impairment whenever there are indications of loss of their value. The period and depreciation method of 

intangible assets with limited economic use are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the 

expected limited use or expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits derived from the asset are 

accounted for by changing the period or the depreciation method and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Depreciation of intangible assets with limited use is recognized in profit or loss in weight of this category that 

corresponds to the function of the intangible asset. 
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Intangible assets with indefinite period of use and those that are not used, shall be tested for impairment in 

respect of individual assets or at the level of cash. 

 

8.4 Leasing 

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased 

asset, are recognized in the statement of financial situations at the inception of the lease at the lower fair value of 

the following two assets: fair value of the fixed assets being the subject of the lease or value of the minimum 

lease payments. The lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and the reduction of the balance of 

lease obligations, so as to obtain a fixed rate of interest on the outstanding liability. The financial expenses are 

recognized in profit or loss, except when the requirements for capitalization are met. 

 

Fixed assets under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of two periods: the estimated period of use of 

the asset or the lease term. 

Leases under which the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are 

classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease and subsequent lease instalments are 

recognized as operating expenses in the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent 

lease payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which they become due.  

 

8.5. Impairment of fixed assets 

At each balance sheet day, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that one of the components of 

fixed assets may be impaired. Should this by the case, or, if it were necessary to conduct an annual test to check 

whether the impairment has occurred, the Company shall estimate the recoverable amount of an asset or cash 

generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

Recoverable value of an asset or cash-generating center is its fair value diminished by costs to sell the asset or, 

where appropriate, the cash-generating center, or its value in use, depending on which one is higher. Recoverable 

amount is determined for individual assets, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows independently, the 

latter being largely independent from the generated by other assets or groups of assets. If the asset's carrying 

amount is greater than its recoverable amount, there occurs the loss of value and the deduction is made to the 

recovered fixed value.  

 

In assessing value in use, the projected cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate 

before taking into account the effects of taxation that reflects current market assessment of the value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. Write-offs for impairment of assets used on continuing operations are 

recognized in these categories of costs which correspond to the function of the asset for which the impairment 

was found. 
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8.6. Shares in subsidiaries, associate companies and joint ventures 

Shares in subsidiaries, associate companies and joint ventures are accounted for at historical cost after 

considering the impairment losses.. 

 

8.7. Financial assets 

Financial assets are divided into the following categories: 

• Financial assets held to maturity, 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit, 

• Loans and receivables, 

• Financial assets available for sale. 

 

8.8. Inventories 

Inventories valued at the lower of two values: the purchase price or production cost and realizable net selling 

price. Costs incurred in bringing each component of the inventories to its present location and condition - both 

for the current and previous year - are recognized as follows: 

The materials     • at purchase price determined using the "first in, first out"  

Finished goods and goods in progress  • the cost of direct materials and labor and an appropriate mark-up 

fixed production overheads assuming normal utilization of capacity, 

excluding borrowing costs  

The goods    • at purchase price determined using the "first in, first out"  

 

Net selling price is possible to obtain the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business diminished by 

the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to finalize the sale. 

 

8.9. Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are recognized and carried at original invoiced amounts, including the allowance for 

write-off for doubtful debts. The write-off of the claims estimation occurs when the collection of the full amount 

is no longer probable. 

 

In case where the time value of money is significant, the value of receivables is determined by discounting 

expected future cash flows to present value, using the gross discount rate reflecting current market assessments 

of time value of money. If the method is applied in discounting, an increased charge in connection with the 

passage of time is recognized as financial income. 

 

Other receivables include, in particular, the advances for future purchases of fixed assets, intangible assets and 

inventories. The advances are presented according to the nature of the assets to which they refer – fixed assets or 
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working capital. As non-monetary assets, the advance are not discounted. Budget receivables are presented 

within other receivables excluding corporation tax liability, which are a separate item in the balance sheet. 

 

8.10. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and short-term deposits, as presented in the balance sheet, comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-

term deposits with original maturity not exceeding three months. 

 

The balance of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the hereinafter financial statement as cash flows, consists 

of the above cash and cash equivalents, diminished by unpaid loans in the accounts. 

 

8.11. Interest bearing bank credits, loans and debt securities 

Upon initial recognition, all bank credits, loans and debt securities are recognized at fair value, diminished by 

costs associated with obtaining of such a loan or credit. After initial recognition, interest bearing credits, loans 

and debt securities are valued at depreciated cost using the effective interest method. While determining the 

depreciated cost, the costs associated with obtaining a credit or loan and discounts or premiums received in 

respect of an obligation are to be taken in consideration.  

 

The revenue and costs are recognized in profit or loss when the liability is removed from the balance sheet, as 

well as when applying the effective interest method. 

 

8.12. Trade and other liabilities  

Liabilities for goods and services are recognized at amounts due. 

 

Financial liabilities other than financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at 

depreciated cost using the effective interest method. The Company excludes from its balance sheet such financial 

obligation which has extinguished - i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 

expired. Replacement of the existing debt instrument by other instrument of substantially different conditions 

made between the same parties, the Company recognizes as an extinguishment of the original financial liability 

and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, any significant modifications to the existing 

agreement, the Company recognizes as a financial liability and extinguishment of the original and the inclusion 

of a new financial liability. The resulting differences arising from the exchange of respective carrying amounts 

are shown in the profit or loss. 

 

Other non-financial liabilities include in particular the obligations to the tax office on the revenue of VAT and 

liabilities arising from advances received, which will be settled by delivery of goods, services or assets. Other 

non-financial liabilities are recognized at the amount due. 
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8.13. Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company is aggravated with present obligation (legal or estimate) arising 

from past events, and when it is probable that the fulfillment of this obligation will required an outflow of 

economic benefits and that it can be reliably estimated. If the Company expects that the costs covered by the 

provisions may be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized  

as a separate asset but only when it is virtually certain that this reimbursement will actually occur. Costs relating 

to the provision are presented in the report on comprehensive income diminished of any reimbursement.  

 

In case when the impact of time value of money is important, the amount shall be determined by discounting 

expected future cash flows to present value, using the gross discount rate reflecting current market assessments 

of time value of money and a possible risk associated with the obligation. If the method is applied to the 

discounting, the reserve increase in connection with the passage of time is recognized as financial costs.  

 

8.14. Accruals 

Active accruals presented in the assets, encompass a position to settle in time the cost of future periods. The 

main items are the expenses incurred on the rights for the period of up to one year and due to their nature and 

duration of use, do not meet the definition of intangible assets. 

 

8.15. Retirement and jubilee awards 

In line with the Company's remuneration policy, the Company's employees are not entitled to the above awards. 

 

8.16. Distribution of profit for the purpose of employment and social funds 

Not applicable. 

 

8.17. Revenues 

Revenues are recognized in the amount, in which it is probable that the Company will receive the economic 

benefits associated with the transaction and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenues are 

recognized at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, diminished of value added tax (VAT) and 

excise duties and rebates. At the recognition the revenue, the below criteria shall apply. 

 

Revenues of sales of goods and products are diminished when the significant risks and benefits of ownership of 

the goods and products are transferred to the purchaser and when the amount of revenue can be measured 

reliably. Revenues from services are recognized for the period to which they relate. 

 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

84 

 

Interest revenue is covered successively as it accrues (using the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument) in relation to the 

net carrying amount of the financial asset. 

 

Dividends are recognized when determining the rights of shareholders to receive them. 

 

8.18. Taxes 

 

8.18.1 Current tax 

Liabilities and receivables of current tax for current and prior periods are measured at the amounts expected to 

be paid to the tax authorities (recoverable from tax authorities) at certain tax rates and tax laws, which legally or 

de facto already existed at the balance sheet date. 

 

8.18.2 Deferred tax 

For financial reporting purposes, deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method for temporary 

differences existing at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

value as disclosed in the financial statements. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences: 

• except where the deferred tax provision arises from initial recognition of goodwill or the initial recognition of 

an asset or liability in a transaction not constituting a business combination and at its conclusion affecting neither 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss tax and 

• for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associate companies and 

interests in joint ventures - with the exception of situations where timing of the reversal of temporary differences 

is controlled by the investor and it is probable that in the foreseeable future, the temporary difference will not 

reverse. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax credits and unused tax 

losses carried forward to subsequent years, in such amount, that it is likely, that it may be of a taxable profit 

which will allow to use the above mentioned differences, assets and losses 

• except where the deferred tax assets on temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or 

liability in a transaction not constituting a business combination and at its conclusion affects neither accounting 

profit nor taxable profit or loss tax and 

• in the case of deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associate 

companies and interests in joint ventures, the asset of the deferred tax is recognized on the balance sheet date 

only in such amount, as it is probable, that in the foreseeable future, the above mentioned differences may be 

reversed and will profit in a taxable income, which will allow for the deduction of any deductible temporary 

differences. 
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The asset's carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced appropriately 

so that the sufficient taxable income to the partial or total asset f deferred tax assets may be realized. Any 

unrecognized component of deferred tax income shall be reassessed at each balance sheet date and is recognized 

for the amount that reflects the probability of future taxable income that will allow for the recovery of the asset. 

Deferred income tax and deferred tax provisions are measured using tax rates that are expected to apply during  

a period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) in force at the 

balance sheet date or those whose validity in the future is uncertain at the balance sheet date. 

 

Income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss: in other 

comprehensive incomes relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity relating 

to items recognized directly in equity. 

 

The Company compensates with each other deferred income tax assets and  deferred income tax provision if and 

only if it has enforceable legal right to carry out the compensation due to commitments in respect of current tax 

and if the deferred tax is related to the same taxpayer and the same tax authority. 

 

8.18.3 Value Added Tax (VAT) 

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognized net of the value of VAT, except when: 

• the VAT paid on the purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from tax authorities; then it is recognized 

respectively as part of the cost of an asset or as a part of the cost item and 

• receivables and liabilities which are recognized including the amount of VAT.  

The net amount of VAT possible to recover or to be paid to the tax authorities is included in the balance as part 

of receivables or liabilities. 

 

8.19. Net profit per share 

Net profit per share for each period is calculated by dividing net profit for the period by the average weighted 

number of shares during the reporting period. 

 

8.20. Liquidity risk 

The Company monitors the risk of lack of funds with periodic liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the 

maturity of both the investment and financial assets (such as receivable accounts, other financial assets) and 

projected cash flows from operating activities. 

 

The Company aims to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of 

different sources of financing such as overdrafts, bank loans, and finance lease. 
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8.21. Credit Risk 

The Company enters into transactions only with reputable companies with creditworthiness. All customers who 

wish to use trade credit, are subjected to initial verification procedures. Furthermore, due to up to date 

monitoring of receivables, the Company's exposure to the risk of bad debts is not significant. 

 

In respect to other financial assets of the Company, such as cash and cash equivalents, the Company's credit risk 

arises from the inability to make payment by the other party, and the maximum exposure to this risk is equal to 

the carrying amount of these instruments. In the Company there are no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

 

8.22. Foreign exchange risk 

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the conclusion of  sale and purchase transactions 

and holding funds in foreign currencies. 

 

8.23. Interest rate risk 

The Company is not exposed to risks due to changes in interest rates. The Company manages interest rate costs 

by using both fixed-rate and variables liabilities. 

 

8.24. Retained earnings and dividends restricted 

On December 6, 2012, the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. passed a resolution to initiate the 

procedure for payment of interim future dividend for the fiscal year 2012. 

 

The amount of the advance was PLN 0.50 per 1 share. The number of shares covered by the payment: 

13 821 404, which resulted in a total amount of PLN 6 910 702.00. 

 

On December 10, 2012 the Supervisory Board approved on the amendment of the Statute of the Company, 

consisting in the authorization of the Management Board to pay out of the expected interim dividend. It also 

expressed the consent to the pay out of the said dividend for the end fiscal year 2012 in the amount proposed by 

the Management Board.  

 

On January 7, 2013 the Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of Kino Polska TV S.A. passed a resolution 

approving the above change in the Statute of the Company. 

 

Payday of the advance dividend -  February 28, 2013. 
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9. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS INCLUDING NOTES 

 

9.1. Information on affiliated companies – note 1 

 

name of the 

company 
headquarters 

consolidation 

method used 

date of 

obtaining 

control 

percentage of capital 

held 

total number of votes 

at the general  

shareholders 

meeting 

Stopklatka S.A. 
ul. Puławska 61 

02-595 Warsaw 
Full 03-12-2010 82.09% 82.09% 

Cyfrowe 

Repozytorium 

Filmowe 

Sp. z o.o. 

ul. Puławska 61 

02-595 Warsaw 

 

Full 
14-12-2011 60.00% 60.00% 

Kino Polska 

Program Sp. z o.o. 

ul. Puławska 435 A, 

02-801 Warsaw 

 

Full 23-10-2012 100% 100% 

Kino Polska 

Program Sp. z o.o. 

SKA 

ul. Puławska 435 A, 

02-801 Warsaw 

 

Full 23-10-2012 100% 100% 

KPTV Media  

Sp. z o.o. 

ul. Puławska 435 A, 

02-801 Warsaw 

 

Full 23-10-2012 100% 100% 

 

9.2. Courses taken in the valuation - note 2 

 

The functional currency and presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements and the consolidated 

annual financial information is PLN. The financial data included in the accounts in foreign currencies are 

recognized in the following manner: 

- Assets and liabilities - at the average exchange rate announced by the Polish National Bank: 

1) as of December 31, 2012 - 4.0882 PLN / EUR, 

2) as of December 31, 2011 - 4.4168 PLN / EUR 

- Items of the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows - average exchange rate, 

calculated as the average of the rates prevailing on the last day of each month during the period announced by 

the Polish National Bank: 

1) on the last day of each month of the year 2012 - 4.1736 PLN / EUR, 

2) on the last day of each month of the year 2011 - 4.1401 PLN / EUR 

Rate applicable on the last day of the period 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

USD 3.099600 3.417400 

EUR 4.088200 4.416800 

GBP 5.011900 5.269100 

CZK 0.163000 0.171100 

HUF 0.013977 0.014196 
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Average exchange rate. calculated as an arithmetic average of the 

last day of each month during the period 
01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

USD 3.231230 2.967900 

EUR 4.173600 4.140100 

GBP 5.144370 4.753700 

CZK 0.166050 0.153900 

HUF 0.014496 0.014760 

9.3. Operating segments – note 3 

 

Revenues  

 
 

Sales to related parties  including:  01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

- Broadcast activity  45 059 089.71 41 988 912.79 

- Publishing  199 604.71 75 308.61 

- The sale of rights  610 082.18 584 078.08 

- Advertisement  13 360 556.73 5 631 878.45 

- VOD  2 754 827.12 4 981 284.80 

- Other services  1 340 090.23 1 357 490.60 

- Channels production   35 631 747.34 25 651 596.31 

- Sale of goods  1 086 654.89 131 399.80 

 Total segment revenue  100 042 652.91 80 401 949.44 

Costs  

 

 

  Cost of sales to external customers  01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

- Broadcasting costs  (36 492 981.77) (35 123 127.26) 

- Publishing costs  (229 038.95) (315 383.95) 

- Advertisement cost  (3 640 025.05) (2 099 118.72) 

- Sales cost  (823 039.90) (1 013 327.08) 

- VOD costs  (2 024 612.13) (3 549 007.37) 

- Other  costs   (4 958 557.09) (4 633 567.38) 

- Cost of channels production  (32 126 791.08) (23 076 808.81) 

- Cost of goods and materials sold    (821 950.35) (55 678.91) 

  Total segment costs  (81 116 996.32) (69 866 019.48) 

  
 

 

    

  01.01.2012-31.12.2012  Poland  

 

Other  Total Europe 

 Cost of sales to external customers 62 227 483.32 37 288 647.90 526 521.69 100 042 652.91 

 Total segment revenue 62 227 483.32 37 288 647.90 526 521.69 100 042 652.91 

  
 

  

 01.01.2011-31.12.2011 Poland  

 

 Other Total Europe 

Cost of sales to external customers 53 451 667.43 26 950 282.01 - 80 401 949.44 

Total segment revenue 53 451 667.43 26 950 282.01   - 80 401 949.44 

 

The Issuer has changed the presentation of items of costs in 2011. The following items have been changed: 

- Broadcasting costs, was: 37 659 176.99, should be : 35 123 127.26;  

- Cost of channels production: was: 20 540 759.08, should be: 23 076 808.81. 
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9.4. Costs by type – Note 4 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets  (5 687 816.12) (3 280 029.74) 

Employee benefits costs (11 936 770.15) (10 278 381.23) 

Use of materials and energy (729 270.31) (958 720.35) 

Third party services (59 992 100.96) (53 516 325.73) 

Taxes and fees (1 552 471.73) (1 157 184.00) 

Property and casualty insurance (115 596.24) (62 910.32) 

Costs of research and development - - 

Other costs. including (281 020.46) (556 789.20) 

- Write-offs of inventories - - 

- Other costs by type (281 020.46) (556 789.20) 

- Reversal of write-offs of inventories - - 

- Write-offs of receivables - - 

- Reversal of impairment losses on receivables - - 

- Exchange differences on trade  liabilities  - - 

- Other operating costs - - 

Value of sold goods and materials (821 950.35) (55 678.91) 

Total costs by type (81 116 996.32) (69 866 019.48) 

Changes in the balance of products, work in progress and accruals - - 

Value of sold goods and materials (821 950.35) (55 678.91) 

- Write-offs of receivables value - - 

- Reversal of write-offs of receivables value - - 

- Write-offs of inventories - - 

- Reversal of write-offs of inventories - - 

- Exchange differences on trade and other liabilities - - 

Cost of manufacturing products for own consumption - - 

Cost of sales (823 039.90) (1 013 327.08) 

General and administrative expenses (4 633 872.61) (4 633 567.38) 

Manufacturing cost of sold products (74 838 133.46) (64 163 446.11) 

Total cost of sold products, goods and materials, sales and general and 

administrative expenses 
(81 116 996.32) (69 866 019.48) 

 

Employee benefits costs 

 
 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Salary costs (+) 9 915 915.91 8 956 564.14 

The costs of social security and other benefits (+) 1 653 780.90 1 267 970.99 

Revenues from social activities (-) - - 

Financing company welfare facilities from the Social Fund (-) - - 

The costs of operation and maintenance of on-site welfare 

facilities (+) 
- - 

The costs of future benefits (provisions) in respect of retirement. 

awards and other similar employee benefits (+ / -) 
367 073.34 53 846.10 

Awards from the net profit (+) - - 

Write-offs to Social Fund net profit (+) - - 

Total costs of employee benefits  11 936 770.15 10 278 381.23 

9.5. Other operating revenue - note 5 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

Net profit on disposal of fixed assets - - 

Solution impairment in intangible assets - - 

Solution of impairment of fixed assets - - 

Settlement of the cash inventory and fixed assets - - 

Profit from the liquidation of fixed assets and intangible 

Assets 
- - 

Revenue from rental of investment property - - 

Profit from the resale of services, re-invoiced payments - - 

Release of provision for contested liabilities - 50 000.00 

Grants received - - 

Donations received - - 

Cancelled liabilities 1 500.84 - 

Penalties and compensations received - - 

Remuneration of taxpayer and social security contributions - - 

Refund of taxes - - 

Other  61 992.74 8 013.99 

Total of operating revenue 63 493.58 58 013.99 
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9.6. Other operating expenses – note 5.1 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Net loss on disposal of nonfinancial fixed assets (52 258.55) (19 659.22) 

Write-offs of amounts due - - 

Write-offs of tangible fixed assets - - 

The write-offs of the interest receivables - - 

Reversal write-offs on the interest receivables (-) (118 428.74) - 

Settlement of cash inventory and fixed assets - - 

Loss from liquidation of fixed tangible assets and intangible assets (232 419.09) - 

Other operating expenses of investment property not generating 

rental income, including: 
- - 

- Depreciation  - - 

Other operating expenses for investment property generating 

rental income, including: 
- - 

- Depreciation  - - 

Loss from the resale of service and reinvoiced payments - - 

Donations given (10 000.00) (9 237.74) 

Settlement with ZAPA (511 681.26) - 

Costs related to non-utilization of assets and production capacity - - 

The costs of discontinued activities - - 

Expenditure of written-offs fixed assets under construction - - 

Provisions for contested liabilities - - 

Penalties (12 465.85) (20 276.64) 

Other (20 292.95) (83 922.95) 

Total of other operating expenses (957 546.44) (133 096.55) 

9.7. Financial revenue – note 6 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Revenue from interest 435 768.23 712 206.69 

- Bank deposits 325 565.71 694 003.14 

- Interest on loans paid 82 126.86 10 711.08 

- Interest on loans due 27 121.08 6 739.31 

- Receivables 954.58 753.16 

Dividends  - - 

Revenue from foreign exchange differences on assets and liabilities other than 

trade receivables and liabilities - - 

Changes in long-term receivables arising from approximation pending receipt of 

receivables (due to unwinding of the discount) - - 

Revenue from derivatives instruments - - 

Revenue on disposal of shares and other securities - - 

Other financial revenue - - 

Total of financial revenue 435 768.23 712 206.69 

9.8. Financial expenses – note 6.1 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Interest expenses: (135 873.37) (165 319.53) 

- Under credits (35 319.70) (84 402.63) 

- Under loans - - 

- From bond issues - - 

- From supplies and services (936.38) (603.34) 

- From budget interest income (2 981.80) (3 955.38) 

- Under finance lease (41 635.49) (43 358.18) 

- Other interest (55 000.00) (33 000.00) 

Losses from foreign exchange differences on assets and liabilities other than 

trade receivables and trade liabilities 
- - 

Valuation effect of the loans received by using the adjusted purchase price 

method 
- - 

Changes in liabilities and long-term provisions (the effect of rolling discount) - - 

Costs of derivatives - - 

Loss on disposal of shares and other securities - - 

Other financial costs - foreign exchange differences (604 651.55) (230 237.01) 

Total of financial expenses (740 524.92) (395 556.54) 
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9.9. Income tax - note 7 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

 Profit and loss statement   

   

 Current tax income (3 015 877.00) (1 703 822.00) 

 Current income tax expense  (3 015 877.00) (1 703 822.00) 

 Adjustments for current income tax of previous years - - 

 Deferred income tax (416 739.57) (71 432.69) 

 Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (416 739.57) (71 432.69) 

 Income tax expenses recognized in the profit and loss statement (3 432 616.57) (1 775 254.69) 

   

 Statement of changes in equity     

   

 Current income tax   - - 

  

Tax effect of cost of increase share capital  - - 

 Deferred income tax   - - 

Tax on unrealized profit / (losses) on financial assets available for sale - - 

Tax of billed cash flow hedges during the year  - - 

Tax benefit / (tax burden) recognized in equity - - 

 

   

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

 Profit / (loss) gross from continuing operations before tax  17 726 847.04 10 777 497.55 

 Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations before tax  - - 

 Profit / (loss) gross before tax   17 726 847.04 10 777 497.55 

Expenses not deductible for income 1 453 854.16 715 576.24 

- impairment losses on receivables 118 428.74 - 

- other provisions for contested liabilities - - 

- provisions for costs  102 648.23 191 429.97 

- provisions for losses  - - 

- exchange differences 114 028.68 59 815.43 

- penalty fees for the budget  2 981.80 3 955.38 

- VAT receivables written into an arrangement - - 

- interest payable - - 

- National Disabled Persons Rehabilitation Fund 86 420.00 68 144.00 

- debts written off - - 

- other costs (not deductible expenses) 197 723.32 312 631.14 

- remuneration of civil contracts  308 180.00 6 550.33 

- Social Security  - - 

- Other  523 443.39 73 049.99 

Tax expenses not included in the cost accounting (3 259 239.03) (2 446 845.34) 

- interest paid - - 

- exchange differences (59 810.40) (21 507.63) 

- remuneration of civil contracts (6 550.33) (56 864.32) 

- Social Security - - 

- tax depreciation (2 796 027.36) (260 856.27) 

- other - (1 638 747.65) 

- provision for costs  (138 429.97) (137 583.87) 

- adjustments to MSR/IAS  (258 420.97) (331 285.60) 

Accounting income not included in the tax (59 931.15) (84 328.02) 

- excess revenues accrued over invoiced - - 

- release of provisions for receivables - - 

- release of provision for contested liabilities - (50 000.00) 

- unrealized exchange differences (32 810.07) (27 588.71) 

- dividend - - 

- granted budget interest - - 

- overdue liabilities - - 

- due to differences in inventory - - 

- accrued interest (27 121.08) (6 739.31) 
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- other - - 

- adjustments to IAS - - 

Tax revenues not included in the accounting 11 506.96 5 582.67 

- interests received 3 493.97 - 

- exchange differences 8 012.99 5 582.67 

Deductions from income (e.g. donations) - -  

- donations - - 

- loss as of year  2004 - - 

- loss as of year  2005 - - 

- loss as of year  2006 - - 

  (1 853 809.06) (1 810 014.45) 

 The tax base 15 873 037.98 8 967 483.10 

 Deferred income tax (416 739.57) (71 432.69) 

 Income tax as shown in the profit and loss statement (3 432 616.57) (1 775 254.69) 

 Income tax attributed to discontinued operations - - 

 Profit / (loss) after tax 14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 

 

 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Reconciliation of income tax on gross profit before tax at the statutory tax rate of income tax calculated 

according to the Company's effective tax rate for the financial year ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 

2011 is as follows: 

 31.12. 2012 31.12. 2011 

Gross profit before tax from continuing activities 17 726 847.04 10 777 497.55 

Gross profit before tax from discontinued activities - - 

Gross profit before tax 17 726 847.04 10 777 497.55 

Tax at statutory tax rate 19% as applied in Poland (3 368 100.94) (2 047 725.00) 

Adjustments for current income tax of previous years - - 

Unrecognized tax losses - - 

Tax investment allowances - - 

Use of previously unrecognized tax losses - - 

Costs are not deductible expenses 352 223.94 328 941.00 

Revenues not taxable 11 386.92 14 962.00 

Other  - - 

Tax at effective tax rate of 19,36%  (2011: 16,47%) (3 015 877.00) (1 703 822.00) 

Income tax (duty) included in profit or loss (3 432 616.57) (1 775 254.69) 

Income tax attributed to discontinued operations - - 

 (3 432 616.57) (1 775 254.69) 
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Deferred income tax as of 31.12.2012 

 

 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND PROVISIONS  

FOR DEFERRED INCOME TAX 

 

Deferred tax assets 
Provision for deferred 

income tax 
Net value 

Tangible fixed assets - - - 

Investment property  - - - 

Intangible assets - 584 794.18 (584 794.18) 

Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled and 

associated 
- - - 

Other financial assets - - - 

Long-term receivables  - - - 

Inventories  - - - 

Trade and other receivables - - - 

Tax income receivables - - - 

Accruals - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents - - - 

Other financial assets - - - 

Credits and loans - - - 

Tax loss - - - 

Provisions  59 730,33 - 59 364.50 

Trade and other liabilities - - - 

Other financial liabilities 58 554,20 - 58 554.20 

Other  6 891,47 1 355.32 5 536.14 

Assets/provision for deferred tax 125 176,00 586 149.50 (460 973.50) 

Impairment of assets 22 501,46  22 501.46 

Assets/provision for deferred tax asset  

in the balance sheet 

 

147 677,46 

 

586 149.50 

 

(438 472.04) 

 

Deferred income tax as of 31.12.2011 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND PROVISIONS  

FOR DEFERRED INCOME TAX 

 

Deferred tax assets 
Reserves for deferred 

income tax 
Net value 

Tangible fixed assets - - - 

Investment property - - - 

Intangible assets - 62 972.98 (62 972.98) 

Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled and 

associated - - - 

Other financial assets  - 1 280.28 (1 280.28) 

Long-term receivables - - - 

Inventories - - - 

Trade and other receivables - - - 

Tax income receivables - - - 

Accruals  - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents - - - 

Other financial assets - - - 

Credits and loans  - - - 

Tax loss - - - 

Provisions 26 301.70 - 26 301.70 

Trade and other liabilities 10 070.00 - 10 070.00 

Other financial liabilities 10 506.46 4 357.37 6 149.09 

Other  - - - 

Assets/provision for deferred tax 46 878.16 68 610.63 (21 732.47) 

 Impairment of assets - - - 

Assets/provision for deferred tax asset  

in the balance sheet 46 878.16 68 610.63 (21 732.47) 

 

 

 

 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

94 

 

9.10. Discontinued activities – Note 8 

Results  01.01.2012 – 31.12.2012   01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Revenues - - 

Costs - - 

Profit/ (loss) gross - - 

Financial revenues - - 

Profit / (loss) before tax - - 

Loss from revaluation to fair value less costs to sell - - 

Loss before tax from discontinued operations - - 

Income tax: - - 

- resulting from the profit/(loss) before tax - - 

- resulting from the revaluation of fair value minus costs to sell - - 

Net loss attributed to discontinued operations 
- - 

 

 

The main classes of assets and liabilities valued at the lower value among: the carrying and fair value diminished 

by disposal expenses. 

  31.12.2012   31.12.2011  

Assets - - 

Intangible assets - - 

Tangible fixed assets  - - 

Trade and other receivables - - 

Cash and cash equivalents - - 

Fixed assets classified as held for sale - - 

Liabilities  - - 

Trade and other liabilities - - 

Loans and advances - - 

Liabilities directly associated with long term assets  

classified as held for sale 
- - 

 - - 

Net liabilities attributed to discontinued operations - - 

 

 

Net cash flows of the company   01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012   01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Cash flows from operational activities - - 

Cash flows from investment activities - - 

Cash flows from financial activities - - 

Net cash inflows / (outflows) in net cash - - 

 

9.11. Social assets as liabilities of the Social Benefits Fund (SBF) – Note 9 

 

Fixed assets contributed to the Fund 
                                 

-    
                                     -                                  -    

Description  Book value  

as of  31.12.2012  

 Book value  

as of  31.12.2011 

 Write-off for the 

financial period   

Land - - - 

Buildings, premises and civil engineering projects - - - 

Technical equipment and machinery - - - 

Means of transport - - - 

Other fixed assets - - - 

Assets under construction - - - 

Total - - - 
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 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

Fixed assets contributed to the SBF - - 

Loans to employees - - 

Cash and cash equivalents - - 

Liabilities under SBF - - 

Balance after compensating - - 

Write-offs for the Fund during the financial period - - 

 

9.12. Profit per share – Note 10 

 
01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Net profit from continuing activities 14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 

Loss from discontinued activities - - 

Net profit 14 294 230.47 9 002.242.86 

Interest on redeemable convertible preference shares into ordinary shares - - 

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders, used to calculate 

diluted profit per share 
14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 

  

01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

An average weighted number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic profit 

per share 
11 573 639.00 12 653 562.00 

Effect of dilution: - - 

Not registered capital increase - - 

Redeemable preference shares - - 

Adjusted average weighted number of ordinary shares used to 

calculate diluted profit per share 
11 573 639.00 12 653 562.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Net loss from discontinued activities attributable to ordinary shareholders 

used to calculate basic loss per share - - 

Net loss from discontinued activities attributable to ordinary shareholders 

used to calculate diluted loss per share - - 

 

Basic profit per share  01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Net profit 14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 

An average weighted number of ordinary shares 11 573 639.00 12 653 562.00 

Basic profit per share (PLN/ share) 1.24 0.71 

 

   

Diluted profit per share 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Net profit attributable to shareholders used to calculate diluted profit per 

share 
14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate 

diluted profit per share 
11 573 639.00 12 653 562.00 

Diluted profit per share (PLN/share)  1.24 0.71 

 

 

Basic earnings per share from continuing activities 

01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Net profit from continuing activities 14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 11 573 639.00 12 653 562.00 

Basic profit per share (PLN/share)  1.24 0.71 

 

 
01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  
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Diluted profit per share from continuing activities 

Net profit attributable to shareholders used to calculate diluted profit per 

share 
14 294 230.47 9 002.242.86 

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate 

diluted profit per share from continuing activities 
11 573 639.00 12 653 562.00 

Diluted profit per share (PLN/share) 1.24 0.71 

 

9.13. Dividends paid and proposed for payment  – Note 11 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011   

Declared and paid during the period 13 859 000.00 - 

Dividends on ordinary shares: - - 

  Final dividend for the year 2011 13 859 000.00 - 

  Advance payment of dividend for the year 2011 in the amount of - - 

 13 859 000.00 - 

 

On February 28, 2013, the Issuer made an advance payment of dividend for 2012.  

The amount of the advance: PLN 0.50 per 1 share. Number of shares subject to the payment of the advance: 13 821 404.  

In total, the amount of the advance payment: PLN 6 910 702.00.  

 
In the view of the satisfactory results achieved in 2012, the Management Board of Kino Polska TV S.A. will intend to 

recommend to the Supervisory Board and the General Shareholders Meeting to pay a dividend for 2012. The level of the 

proposed dividend, the Issuer shall made public upon adoption of a relevant resolution in this regard. 

9.14. Tangible fixed assets – Note 12 

 
 

TABLE OF MOVEMENT OF FIXED 

ASSETS for 2012 Land 

Buildings, 

premises and 

civil 

engineering 

projects 

Technical 

equipment 

and 

machinery 

Means of 

transport 

Other fixed 

assets 

Assets 

under 

construction 

TOTAL 

a) Gross value of fixed assets at beginning 

of period 
                      

-    

                          

-    9 278 909.19 241 481.80 908 071.63 - 10 428 426.62 

 

b) increase (due to) 
                      

-    

                          

-    1 943 361.95 49 300.00 468 722.78 200 211.58 2 661 596.31 

- Purchase   -     -    1 750 964.66 49 300.00 170 145.72 200 211.58 2 170 621.96 

- The adoption of investment   -    -    192 397.29      -     -    -     192 397.29    

- Modernization  -    -        -       -      -    -       -    

- Reference of costs of the liquidation to the 

initial value 
  -    -        -      -     -    -      -    

- Investment in fixed assets under 

construction 
  -        -        -      -    -    -    -    

- Investment in  foreign fixed assets   -      -    -      -    298 577.06    -    298 577.06       

- Taken under finance lease agreement    -    -    - - - - - 

- External financing costs   -       -    - - - - - 

- Extending of the capital group   -    -    - - - - - 

- Other -       -    - - - - - 

  c) decrease (due to) 
                      

-    

                          

-    
(51 975.55) - (397 665.69) (192 397.29) (642 038.53) 

- Sale -    -    (2 500.00) - (119 323.60) - (121 823.60) 

- Liquidation -    -    (49 475.55) - (278 342.09) - (327 817.64) 

- Transfer to assets under construction -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Donations -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Assignment of leases agreement -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Transfer to fixed assets -    -    -    -    -    (192 397.29)    (192 397.29) 

- Other -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

d) gross value of assets at the end of the 

period 

                   

-    
                        -    11 170 295.59 290 781.80 979 128.72 7 814.29 12 448 020.40 

e) accumulated depreciation (amortization) 

at the beginning of the period 

                      

-    

                          

-    
(2 460 549.92) (102 718.08) (308 841.81) - (2 872 109.81) 
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f) depreciation for the period (due to) 
                      

-    

                          

-    
(1 775 489.21) (86 474.61) (67 114.71) - (1 929 078.53) 

- Annual depreciation charge -    -    (1 827 464.75) (86 474.61) (187 908.52) - (2 101 847.88) 

- Sale of the fixed asset -    -    2 500.00   -    41 472.05    -    43 972.05    

- Liquidation of the fixed asset -    -    49 475.54 - 79 321.76 - 128 797.30 

- Assignment of leases agreements -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Donations -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Other (decrease) -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- The transfer of a group of assets held for 

resale - reducing 
-    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Extending of the capital group -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Other (increase) -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

g) accumulated depreciation (amortization) 

at the end of the period 
-    -    (4 236 039.13) (189 192.69) (375 956.52) - 

 

(4 801 188.34) 

h) write-offs for impairment losses at the 

beginning of the period 
-    -    -    -    -    -    -    

increase (due to) 
                      

-    

                          

-    

                              

-    

                             

-    

                            

-    

                        

-    

                                

-    

- Creation of write-offs of impairment loss 

sustained in the burden of financial results 

                      

-    

                          

-    

                              

-    

                             

-    

                            

-    

                        

-    

                                

-    

Decrease (due to) 
                      

-    

                          

-    

                              

-    

                             

-    

                            

-    

                        

-    

                                

-    

- Sale of the asset -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Liquidation of the asset -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Reversal of write-offs due to impairment 

loss – sustained on the financial result 
-    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Use of write-off -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Other -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

i) write-offs for impairment loss at the end 

of the period 

                      

-    

                          

-    

                              

-    

                             

-    

                            

-    

                        

-    

                                

-    

j) the net value of fixed assets at the 

beginning of the period 
                      

-    

                          

-    
6 818 359.27 138 763.72 599 229.82 - 7 556 352.81 

k) the net value of fixed 

assets at the end of the period 
                    

-    
                        -    6 934 256.46 101 589.11 603 172.20 7 814.29 7 646 832.06 

  

 

 

TABLE OF MOVEMENT  

OF FIXED ASSETS  

for 2011 

Land 

Buildings, 

premises 

and civil 

engineering 

projects 

Technical 

equipment 

and 

machinery 

Means of 

transport 

Other fixed 

assets 

Assets under 

construction 
TOTAL 

a) the gross value of fixed assets at the 

beginning of the period - - 2 868 205.54 401 731.91 760 868.23 - 4 030 805.68 

b) increase (due to) 
- - 6 412 240.16 - 147 203.40 188 312.36 6 747 755.92 

- Purchase - - 6 412 240.16 - 147 203.40 188 312.36 6 747 755.92 

- The adoption of investment - - - - - - - 

- Modernization - - - - - - - 

- Reference of costs of the liquidation to the 

initial value  
- - - - - - - 

- Investment in fixed assets under construction - - - - - - - 

- Investment in a foreign fixed assets - - - - - - - 

- Taken under financial lease agreement - - - - - - - 

- External financing costs - - - - - - - 

- Extending of the capital group - - - - - - - 

- Other - - - - - - - 

c) decrease (due to) - - (1 536.51) (160 250.11) - (188 312.36) (350 098.98) 

- Sale - - (1 536.51) (143 856.67) - - (145 393.18) 

- Liquidation - - - - - - - 

- Transfer to assets under construction - - - - - - - 

- Donations - - - - - - - 

- Assignment of leases agreement - - - - - - - 

- Transfer to fixed assets  - - - - - (188 312.36) (188 312.36) 

- Other - - - (16 393.44) - - (16 393.44) 

d) gross fixed assets at the end of the period 
 

- 

 

- 

 

9 278 909.19 

 

241 481.80 

 

908 071.63 

 

- 
10 428 462.62 

e) accumulated depreciation (amortization) 

at the beginning of the period 
- - (1 172 616.76) (57 794.12) (183 986.74) - (1 414 397.62) 

f) depreciation for period (due to) - - (1 287 933.16) (44 923.96) (124 855.07) - (1 457 712.19) 

- Annual depreciation charge -          - (1 289 006.33) (88 326.58) (124 855.07) - (1 502 187.98) 
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- Sale of the fixed asset - - 1 073.17 33 566.55 - - 34 639.72 

- Liquidation of the fixed asset - - - - - - - 

- Assignment of lease agreement - - - - - - - 

- Donations - - - - - - - 

- Other (decrease) - - - - - - - 

- The transfer of a group of assets held for resale   

(reducing) 
- - - - - - - 

- Extending of the capital group - - - - - - - 

- Other (increase) - - - 9 836.07 - - 9 836.07 

g) accumulated depreciation (amortization) 

at the end of the period 
- - (2 460 549.92) (102 718.08) (308 841.81) - (2 872 109.81) 

h) write-offs for impairment loss at the 

beginning of the period 
- - - - - - - 

increase (due to) - - - - - - - 

- Creation of write-offs of impairment loss 

sustained in the burden of financial results 
- - - - - - - 

decrease (due to) - - - - - - - 

- Sale of fixed asset - - - - - - - 

- Liquidation of fixed asset - - - - - - - 

- Reversal of write-offs due to impairment loss – 

sustained on the financial result 
- - - - - - - 

- Use of write-off - - - - - - - 

- Other - - - - - - - 

i) write-offs due to impairment loss at the end 

of the period 
- - - - - - - 

j) the net value of fixed assets at beginning of 

period 
- - 1 695 588.78 343 937.79 576 881.49 - 2 616 408.06 

k) net value of fixed assets at the end of the 

period 
- - 6 818 359.27 138 763.72 599 229.82 - 7 556 352.81 

 

9.15. Investment property – Note 13 

 

Investment property  31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

 Gross value at beginning of the period  -  - 

- The acquisition by purchase                                        -                                           -    

- Transfer from tangible fixed assets                                        -                                           -    

- Liquidation                                        -                                           -    

- Extending the composition of the capital group                                        -                                           -    

- Sale of investment property                                        -                                           -    

- Exchange differences                                        -                                           -    

- Other increases                                        -                                           -    

 Gross value at the end of the period - - 

 

Accumulated depreciation and write-offs for impairment losses at 

the beginning of the period   

- Depreciation for the period - - 

- Impairment losses - - 

- Transfer from tangible fixed assets - - 

- Sale of investment property - - 

- Liquidation - - 

- Extending the composition of the capital group - - 

- Other increases - - 

Accumulated depreciation and write-offs for impairment losses at 

the end of the period - - 

Net value at the beginning of the period - - 

Net value at the end of the period                                        -                                           -    
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9.16. Intangible assets – Note 14 

 

CHANGES IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS (BY 

TYPE) 

As of 31.12.2012 

Cost of 

finished 

development 

works 

Goodwill on 

consolidation 

Acquired 

concessions, 

patents 

Licenses for a limited 

period of use 

Licenses for an 

unlimited period of use 
Other intangible assets 

Intangible assets under 

constructions 
TOTAL 

a) the gross value of intangible assets at the 

beginning of the period 
-    -    53 200.00    13 702 302.67 7 187 140.41 1 656 510.51 2 324 600.00 24 923 753.59 

b) increase (due to) -    -    -    1 596 248.36 3 030 000.00 533 633.99 1 598 688.41 6 758 570.76 

- Purchase  -    -    -    1 596 248.36 - 258 945.58 1 598 688.41 3 453 882.35 
- Transfer from development works -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Adoption from investment  -    -    -    -    3 030 000.00    274 688.41    -    3 304 688.41    

- Reclassification between generic groups -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- External financing costs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Expenditure on intangible assets in progress -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Valuation of goodwill on a foreign company -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Valuation of the put option -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Purchase of subsidiaries -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

c) decrease (due to) -    -    -    (1 620 419.69) - (548.35) (3 304 688.41) (4 925 656.45) 

- Sale -    -    -    -    -    (548.35)    - (548.35) 

- Liquidation -    -    -    - - - - - 
- Transfer to intangible asset - - - - - - (3 304 688.41) (3 304 688.41) 

- Reclassification between generic groups  -    -    -    (1 620 419.69) - - - (1 620 419.69) 

d) the gross value of intangible assets at the end 

of the period 
-    -    53 200.00    13 678 131.34 10 217 140.41 2 189 596.15 618 600.00 26 756 667.90 

e) accumulated amortization at the beginning 

of the period  
-    -    (3 599.99)    (2 882 242.40) - (930 389.22) - (3 816 231.61) 

f) depreciation for the period (due to) -    -    (5 320.00) (1 421 050.95) - (538 629.25) - (1 965 000.20) 

- Depreciation (annual write-off) -    -    (5 320.00)    (3 041 470.64) - (539 177.60)  - (3 585 968.24) 
- Liquidation -    -    -    - - - - - 

- The end of usage period - - - 1 620 419.69 - - - 1 620 419.69 
- Purchase of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 

- Sale - - - - - 548.35 - 548.35 

g) accumulated depreciation (amortization) at 

the end of the period 
-    -    (8 919.99) (4 303 293.35) - (1 469 018.47) - (5 781 231.81) 

h) write-offs for impairment losses at 

beginning of period 
-    -    -    -    -    -    - - 

- increase (due to) -    -    -    -    - -    - - 

- Reclassification between generic groups -    -    -    -    -    -    - -    

- decrease (due to)  -    -    -    -    -    -    - -    

- Reversal of write-offs due to impairment loss –

sustained on the financial result 
-    -    -    -    -    -    - -    

- Reclassification between generic groups  -    -    -    -    -    -    - -    

i) write-offs due to impairment loss at the end 

of the period  
-    -    -    -    - -    - - 
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j) net value of intangible assets at the beginning 

of the period 
-    -     49 600.01   10 820 060.27 7 187 140.41 726 121.29 2 324 600.00 21 107 521.98 

k) the net value of intangible assets at end of 

the period 
-    -       44 280.01    9 374 837.99 10 217 140.41 720 577.68 618 600.00 20 975 436.09 

         

 

 
 

CHANGES IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

(BY TYPE) for 2011 

Cost of 

finished 

development 

works 

Goodwill 

after 

consolidation 

Acquired 

concessions, 

patents 

Licenses for a limited 

period of use 

Licenses for an 

unlimited period of use 
Other intangible assets 

Intangible assets under 

constructions 
TOTAL 

a) the gross value of intangible assets at the 

beginning of the period 
- - - 5 210 932.36 7 125 095.41 1 083 331.93 - 13 419 359.70 

b) increase (due to) - - 53 200.00 8 904 927.94 62 045.00 591 100.32 2 535 301.48 12 146 574.74 

- Purchase  - - 53 200.00 8 904 927.94 62 045.00 591 100.32 2 535 301.48 12 146 574.74 

- Transfer of development work -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Adoption from investment -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Reclassification between generic groups -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- External financing costs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Expenditure on intangible assets in progress -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Valuation of goodwill on a foreign company -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Valuation of the put option -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

- Purchase of subsidiaries -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    

c) decrease (due to) - - - (413 557.63) - (17 921.74) (210 701.48) (642 180.85) 

- Sale - - - - - - - - 

- Liquidation - - - - - (17 921.74) - (17 921.74) 

- Transfer to intangible asset - - - - - - (210 701.48) (210 701.48) 

- The end of usage period - - - (413 557.63) - - - (413 557.63) 

d) the gross value of  intangible assets at the 

end of the period 
- - 53 200.00 13 702 302.67 7 187 140.41 1 656 510.51 2 324 600.00 24 923 753.59 

e) accumulated depreciation at the beginning 

of the period  
- - - (1 998 014.06) - (471 855.16) - (2 469 869.22) 

f) depreciation for period (due to) - - (3 599.99) (884 228.34) - (458 534.06) - (1 346 362.39) 

- Depreciation (annual write-off) - - (3 599.99) (1 297 785.97) - (476 455.80) - (1 777 841.76) 

- Liquidation - - - - - 17 921.74 - 17 921.74 

- The end of usage period - - - 413 557.63 - - - 413 557.63 

- Sale - - - - - - - - 

g) accumulated depreciation (amortization) at 

the end of the period  
- - (3 599.99) (2 882 242.40) - (930 389.22) - (3 816 231.61) 

h) write-offs for impairment losses at the 

beginning of the period 
- - - - - - - - 

- increase (due to) - - - - - - - - 
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- Reclassification between generic groups - - - - - - - - 

- decrease (due to) - - - - - - - - 

- Reversal of write-offs due to impairment loss –

sustained on the financial result 
- - - - - - - - 

- Reclassification between generic groups - - - - - - - - 

i) write-offs due to impairment loss at the end 

of the period 
- - - - - - - - 

j) net value of intangible assets at the beginning 

of the period 
- - - 3 212 918.30 7 125 095.41 611 476.77 - 10 949 490.48 

k) net value of intangible assets at the end of 

the period 
- - 49 600.01 10 820 060.27 7 187 140.41 726 121 .29 2 324 600.00 21 107 521.98 
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9.17. The right to perpetual usufruct of land  – Note 15 

 

The right of perpetual usufruct of land - purchase price 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

 attributable to settle for 1 -5 years - - 

 attributable to the settle in over 5 years - - 

The right of perpetual usufruct presented in long-term assets - - 

 

 

The right of perpetual usufruct of land - purchase price 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

 attributable to the settlement within 1 year - - 

The right of perpetual usufruct as reported in active accruals 

 

 

- - 

9.18. Mergers economic entity – Note 16 

Goodwill on consolidation   

 
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

 The carrying value of goodwill after consolidation  - - 

 Company A  - - 

 Company B  - - 

 Total of carrying value - - 

During 01.01.2012-30.11.2012 and 01.01.2011-31.12.2011, the following changes to goodwill have occurred: 

 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

Goodwill on consolidation at the beginning of the period - - 

Additions to goodwill on consolidation from the purchase - - 

Exchange differences on foreign entities - - 

Decrease of goodwill in respect of write-offs made - - 

Decrease of goodwill from the sale - - 

Total of carrying value at the end of the period - - 

The carrying value of intangible assets with indefinite use 

 
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

 The carrying value of goodwill - - 

 Company A  - - 

 Company B  - - 

 Allowances for impairment losses - - 

 Company A  - - 

 Company B  - - 

 The carrying value of other intangible assets with indefinite use - - 

 

9.19. The information on associates valued using the equity method – Note 17 

Not applicable. 

 

9.20. Participation in joint ventures – Note 18 

Not applicable. 

 

9.21. Consolidated financial statements not covered by consolidation – Note 19 

Not applicable. 
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9.22. Other long-term financial assets – Note 19 a 

   31.12.2012   31.12.2011  

Loans granted                        -                           -    

Shares       8 753 315.44        8 278 953.75  

Loans to Management Board                        -                           -    

Security deposits                        -                           -    

Other receivables                        -                           -    

Other                        -                           -    

Total       8 753 315.44        8 278 953.75  

 

9.23. Other current financial assets – Note 19 b 

  
 31.12.2012   31.12.2011  

Derivative instruments, including: 
                       -                           -    

- forward contracts EUR/PLN 
                       -                           -    

- forward contracts USD/PLN 
                       -                           -    

- other 
                       -                           -    

Capital instruments 
-                        -    

Debt instruments 
                       -                           -    

Other – interests -  - 

Total 
           3 156.16              3 493.97  

 

9.24. Inventories – Note 20 

 
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

Materials 
271 278.86 43 268.80 

At purchase price 271 278.86 43 268.80 

According to net realizable  - - 

 Goods 469 143.18 103 403.69 

At purchase price  469 143.18 103 403.69 

According to net realizable - - 

Work in progress (at manufacturing cost) - - 

Finished products - - 

According to the purchase price/ manufacturing cost - - 

According to net value realizable - - 

Inventories in general, the lower of two values: the purchase price 

(manufacturing cost) and net value realizable  
740 422.04 146 672.49 

 
   

 Write-offs of inventories as of January 1, 2012 
- - 

 Write-off of the cost of goods sold 
- - 

 Reversed write-off of the cost of goods sold 
- - 

 Write-off of the value of goods and materials sold  
- - 

 Reversed write-off of the value of goods and materials sold  
- - 

 Write-offs of inventories as of December 31, 2012 
- - 

 Write-offs of inventories as of January 1, 2011  
- - 

 Write-off in the cost of goods sold 
- - 

 Write-off of the cost of goods sold 
- - 
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 Reversed write-off of the cost of goods sold 
- - 

 Write-off of the value of goods and materials 
- - 

 Write-offs of stock as of December 31, 2011 
- - 

 

9.25. Trade and other receivables – Note 21 

 
31.12.2012  31.12.2011 

Other long-term receivables - - 

Trade receivables - - 

Other receivables - - 

Other long-term receivables - - 

Total long-term receivables - - 

 

 

   

 30.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Receivables from related parties 
15 490 426.82 7 045 133.36 

Trade receivables 14 687 270.66 7 045 133.36 

Receivables from dividend - - 

Loans granted  - - 

Other financial receivables 803 156.16 - 

Other non-financial receivables - - 

Receivables from other parties  13 336 567.85 9 044 854.34 

Trade receivables  12 318 636.65 8 077 538.89 

Loans granted  277 210.26 253 245.34 

Other financial receivables - - 

Budget receivables  to other reasons than the current income tax 501 281.76 469 240.47 

Inventories advance - - 

Advances for fixed assets - - 

Advances for intangible assets -  

Other non-financial receivables 239 439.18 244 829.64 

Total of receivables (gross) 28 826 994.67 16 089 987.70 

   

Write-offs of receivables (118 428.74) - 

   

Total of receivables (net) 28 708 565.93 16 089 987.70 

 
  

Receivables from tax 
31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Income tax - - 

Total receivables from taxes - - 

 
  

 

 

Active accruals 31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

- The cost of subscriptions of periodicals and other subscriptions 2 761.81 2 489.88 

- Interest on lease agreement - - 

- Prepayments for training - - 

- Insurance - - 

- The cost of insurance 78 305.46 70 968.38 

- The cost of the prospectus for the capital increase expenses - - 

- VAT to be deducted in the next period - - 

- SBF - - 

- Production services 207 293.77 136 813.49 

- Costs related to capital increase - - 

- Services not performed - - 

- Revenues at the turn of the period - - 

- Advertising materials - - 

- The annual fee for the license 893 241.41 1 482 938.50 

- Fees related to WSE and NDS - - 

- Other active accruals  32 591.99 12 400.94 

Total cost of active accruals 1 214 194.44 1 705 610.19 
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9.26. Cash and cash equivalents – Note 22 

  
31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Cash at bank and in hand 3 986 011.08 1 464 609.80 

Short-term deposits 1 751 725.61 13 000 549.52 

Other 783 000.00 325 000.00 

Total of cash and cash equivalents 6 520 736.69 14 790 159.32 

 

 

Structure by currency and translated into PLN 31.12.2012  31.12.2011 

  PLN 5 638 126.60 14 782 162.19 

  EUR 882 610.09 7 997.13 

  USD - - 

  GBP - - 

  Funds in other currencies - - 

Total cash and cash equivalents 6 520 736.69 14 790 159.32 

 

9.27. Share capital – Note 23.1 

 

 

Registered share capital 

Revaluated share capital due to 

hyperinflation of the date of 

transition to IFRS 

TOTAL 

As of December 31, 2012   1 387 000.00 - 1 387 000.00 

As of December 31, 2011   1 387 000.00 - 1 387 000.00 

 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

Series 
Type of 

share 

Type of 

preference 

shares 

Type of 

limitation 

of rights 

to shares 

Number of 

shares 

The 

nominal 

value of 

each share 

Value of series 

/ issue at par 

Coverage 

of capital 

Date of 

registration 

Right to 

dividend  

(as of)  

A 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 

N.A. N.A. 9 870 000 0.10 987 000.00 cash 2010-08-25 - 

B 

ordinary 

bearer 

shares 

N.A. N.A. 4 000 000 0.10 400 000.00 cash 2011-04-26 - 

   Total 13 870 000  1 387 000.00    

 

 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 

Name (company) of entity. headquarters Number Value 
Percentage of 

share capital 

Percentage of 

votes number 

SPI International Polska Sp. z o.o. 
8 437 800 843 780.00 60.83% 60.83% 

Investment funds managed by Ipopema TFI S.A.  1 868 323 186 832.30 13.47% 13.47% 

Pioneer Pekao Investment Management S.A. 
1 184 793 118 479.30 8.54% 8.54% 

Piotr Reisch 
742 825 74 282.50 5.36% 5.36% 

Other 
1 587 663 158 766.30 11.45% 11.45% 

Own shares 48 596 4 859.60 0.35% 0.35% 

 
    

Total 
13 870 000 1 387 000.00 100.00% 100.00% 
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9.28. The capital from the issuance of shares above their nominal value – Note 23.2 

 

  

The capital from the issuance of 

shares above their nominal value 
Total 

As of January1, 2012  35 659 543.79 35 659 543.79 

The issue of shares above nominal value - - 

The settlement costs associated with increasing capital - - 

As of December 31, 2012 35 659 543.79 35 659 543.79 

   

 

As of January 1, 2011 - - 

The issue of shares above nominal value 37 600 000.00 37 600 000.00 

The settlement costs associated with increasing capital (1 940 456.21) (1 940 456.21) 

As of December 31, 2011 35 659 543.79 35 659 543.79 

 

9.29. Other capital – Note 23.3 

  Supplementary capital Reserves capital  Total  

As of January 1, 2012 15 435 182.78 - 15 435 182.78 

Net profit / loss arising from changes in fair value of financial 

assets available for sale - - - 

The creation of capital - purchase of own shares (5 000 000.00) 5 000 000.00 - 

Purchase of own shares - (386 081.32) (386 081.32) 

Division of financial results - - - 

Payment of dividend (4 856 757.14)  (4 856 757.14) 

Deferred income tax - - - 

Exchange differences on translation of subsidiaries - - - 

Supplementary capital - employee options - - - 

 

As of December 31, 2012 5 578 425.64 4 613 918.68 10 192 344.32 

 
   

 

As of January 1, 2011 6 418 097.46 - 6 418 097.46 

 
   

Net profit / loss arising from changes in fair value of financial 

assets available for sale - - - 

Division of financial results 9 017 085.32 - 9 017 085.32 

Consolidation adjustments - - - 

Deferred income tax - - - 

Exchange differences on translation of subsidiaries - - - 

Supplementary capital - employee options - - - 

 

As of December 31, 2011 15 435 182.78 - 15 435 182.78 

 

9.30. Retained profits – Note 23.4 

The result of the current period 31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Results from previous years retained 12 966 521.51 12 981 363.97 

Consolidation adjustments - - 

Adjustment of errors in profit brought forward - - 

Payment of dividend (9 002 242.86) - 

Results from previous years retained (supplementary capital) - (9 017 085.32) 

Revaluation capital of fixed assets in accordance with IAS - - 

The hyperinflationary revaluation of the share capital - - 

The total value of capital adjustments resulting from changes in accounting 

principles on IAS / IFRS 
- - 

Financial result generated during the previous reporting period - - 

Net profit for the current period 14 294 230.47 9 002 242.86 

Total of retained profit 18 258 509.12 12 966 521.51 
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9.31. Minority share – Note 23.4 

Not applicable. 

 

9.32. Provisions – Note 24 

  

Provisions for 

auditing 

Provision for 

outstanding 

leave 

Provision for payment 

of wages Other Total 

 As of January 1 , 2012 30 200.00 138 429.97 - - 168 629.97 

Created during the financial year 79 600.00 197 723.32 307 780.00 40 646.82 625 750.14 

Used - - - - - 

Resolved (60 200.00) (138 429.97) - - (198 629.97) 

The adjustment of the discount rate - - - - - 

As of  December 31, 2012 49 600.00 197 723.32 307 780.00 40 646.82 595 750.14 

 

 

The time structure of provisions  31.12.2012   31.12.2011  

The long-term part  - - 

The short-term part 595 750.14 168 629.97 

 Total of provisions 595 750.14 168 629.97 

 

9.33. Pensions and other post-employment benefits – Note 25 

The Company does not make this kind of provision due to the lack of its significance. 

The age structure of employees is between 32-37 years of age.  

 

9.34. Credits and loans – Note 26 

Long-term credits and loans  31.12.2012   31.12.2011  

Overdrafts - - 

Bank credits - - 

Loans received - - 

Other - - 

Total long -term credit and loans - - 

 

Short-term credits and loans  31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

Overdrafts - - 

Bank credits - - 

Loans received - - 

Other - - 

Total short -term credit and loans - - 

 

 

As of December 31, 2012 the Company had the following credit facilities, loans and credit lines: 

 

Financing entity 

 Loan 

currency 

 Size of loan / limit 

value 

 Value of loan as of the 

balance sheet date 30.11.2012 

 Conditions of 

interest  Maturity  Insurance  

 In foreign 

currency   In PLN  

Bank Polska Kasa 

Opieki S.A. PLN Up to 5 000 000.00 - - 

WIBOR 1M from 1st 

day of last month 

3.0% 2013-06-29 

Blank promissory 

note 

Total credits and 

loans      - -       
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In the period covered by this report, there were no violations of the provisions of these agreements. 

 

9.35. Credits and loans granted – Note 26 a 

Long-term credits and loans 31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Loans granted 
- 1 090 000.00 

Other - - 

Total of long-term credits and loans - 1 090 000.00 

 

Short-term credits and loans  31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

Loans granted 1 050 000.00 250 000.00 

Other - - 

Total of short-term credits and loans 1 050 000.00 250 000.00 

 

 

Financing entity 

Loan 

currency Size of loan / limit 

The value of the loan at the 

balance sheet 30.11.2012 

Conditions of interest Maturity Insurance 

In foreign 

currency In PLN 

Łysakowski Wiesław PLN up to 250 000.00 - 250 000.00 

WIBOR 12M increased  

by 4% margin up to 

31/05/2012, in the 

period 01/06/2012-

30/10/2012  

10% 

2012-10-30 

Blank 

promissory 

note 

Cyfrowe Repozytoriun 

Filmowe Sp. z o.o. 
PLN up to 1 090 000.00 - 800 000.00 

WIBOR 12M increased 

by  4 % margin 
2013-12-15 

Blank 

promissory 

note 

Together credits and 

loans 
  - 1 050 000.00    

 

9.36. Trade and other liabilities – Note 27 

 
 

 

 
31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Other long-term liabilities 59 353.95 372 452.57 

Liabilities under finance leases 59 353.95 372 452.57 

Other non-financial liabilities - - 

Revenue accruals - - 

Total of other long-term liabilities 59 353.95 372 452.57 

   

 31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Other short-term financial liabilities 302 716.61 236 059.80 

Liabilities arising from finance leases 302 716.61 236 059.80 

Other non-financial liabilities - - 

Revenue accruals - - 

Total of other short-term financial liabilities 302 716.61 236 059.80 
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 31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Trade liabilities to related parties 388 167.63 347 132.37 

Trade liabilities  388 167.63 347 132.37 

Other financial liabilities - - 

Other non-financial liabilities - - 

 

Trade liabilities to other parties 
6 459 889.09 3 998 495.95 

Trade liabilities  5 838 247.77 3 577 372.73 

Liabilities from remuneration 400.00 5 561.57 

Liability for dividends - - 

Budgetary liabilities from other than the current income tax 611 028.72 309 894.81 

Advance payments received - - 

Special funds - - 

Other financial liabilities - 105 666.84 

Revenue accruals 10 212.60 - 

Accrued expenses - - 

Total of trade liabilities and other short-term liabilities 6 848 056.72 4 345 628.33 

   

 

Total of trade and other liabilities 
7 210 127.28 4 954 140.69 

   

 31.12.2012  31.12.2011  

Liabilities from income tax 817 756.00 176 001.00 

 

Liabilities from income tax 
817 756.00 176 001.00 

 

Total of liabilities for income tax 
817 756.00 176 001.00 

 

Liabilities from financial leasing 

as of  December 31, 2012 

     Present value Future minimum costs Interests 

Within 1 Year  302 716.61 318 908.16 16 191.55 

From 2
nd

-5
th
 Year  59 353.95 61 039.56 1 685.61 

Above 5
th
 Year  - - - 

Total  362 070.56 379 947.72 17 877.16 

 

9.37. Other financial liabilities (short term) – Note 27.1 

  
 31.12.2012  31.12.2011 

Derivatives, including: - - 

-Forwards EUR / PLN - - 

-Forwards USD / PLN - - 

-Other - - 

Other - - 

Total of other financial liabilities - - 

 

9.38. Government grants – Note 28 

Not applicable. 

9.39. Contingent liabilities – Note 29 

Not applicable. 
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9.40. Information on transactions with related parties – Note 30.1 

  
01.01.2012-31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

 

 

 

 

Revenues from sales to 

related parties 

Revenues from 

sales of 

products 

Revenues from 

sales of goods 

materials and 

services 

Revenues from 

sales of fixed 

assets, intangible 

assets, 

investment 

property, 

dividends, etc. 

Other 

Revenues 

from sales 

to related 

parties 

Revenues from 

sales of 

products 

Revenues from 

sales of fixed 

assets, 

intangible 

assets, 

investment 

property , 

dividends, etc. 

Other 

 

- subsidiaries - 229 671.55 2 593.00 85 283.02 - - - - 

- entities associated 
- - - - - - - - 

- subsidiaries not subject to 

consolidation - - - - - - - - 

- key members of 

management and 

supervisory boards - - - - - - - - 

- other related parties - 36 167 870.87 - - 
- 

25 934 655.79 1 200.00 
- 

Total revenue from sales 

to related parties 
 36 397 542.42 2 593.00 85 283.02 

- 
25 934 655.79 1 200.00 

- 

 

 

 

 

        

  
 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

 

 

Purchase derived from 

related parties 

Purchase of 

services 

Purchase of 

goods and 

materials 

Purchase of fixed 

assets, intangible 

assets, 

investment 

property 

Other 
Purchase of 

services 

Purchase 

of goods 

and 

materials 

Purchase of 

fixed assets, 

intangible 

assets, 

investment 

property 

Other 

 

- from subsidiaries 537 308.74 - 127 688.41 - - - - - 

- from entities associated 
- - - - - - - - 

- from subsidiaries not 

subject to consolidation - - - - - - - - 

- from key members of 

management and 

supervisory boards - - - - - - - - 

- from other related 

parties 
1 025 387.13 3 393.00 1 544 750.00 - 18 824 022.25 226 506.36 1 773 412.04 - 

Total purchases from 

related parties 
1 562 695.87 3 393.00 1 672 438.41 - 18 824 022.25 226 506.36 1  773 412.04 - 

 
 

Receivables from related parties  31.12.2012   31.12.2011  

- from subsidiaries 72 840.30 - 

- from entities associated - - 

- from subsidiaries not subject to consolidation - - 

- from key members of management and supervisory boards, - - 

- from other related parties 14 614 430.36 7 045 133.36 

 

Total of receivables from related parties 
14 687 270.66 7 045 133.36 

 

 

 

   

Liabilities to related parties 
 31.12.2012   31.12.2011 

- to subsidiaries  212 929.17 - 

- to entities associated  - - 

- to subsidiaries not subject to consolidation   - - 

- to key members of management and supervisory boards,  - - 

- to other related parties 175 238.46 347 132.37 

Total liabilities to related parties 388 167.63 347 132.37 
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9.41. Remuneration of senior executives – Note 30.2 

  
01.01.2012 – 31.12.2012 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

Short-term employee benefits (salaries 

and overheads) 1 624 103.19 1 626 013.67 

Jubilee awards and retirement benefits -  

Benefits in respect of termination of employment                         - - 

Employee benefits in the form of own shares - - 

Total amount of salary paid to senior executives 1 624 103.19 1 626 013.67 

 
  

   

  
01.01.2012 – 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Management Board 1 602 107.55 1 604 468.60 

Supervisory Board 21 995.64 21 545.07 

Total 1 624 103.19 1 626 013.67 

 
  

   

Management Board  
01.01.2012 – 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Piotr Reisch 506 268.00 795 011.00 

Bogusław Kisielewski 1 095 839.55 809 457.60 

Total 1 602 107.55 1 604 468.60 

 

   

Supervisory Board  
01.01.2012 – 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Loni Farhi - 1 000.00 

Stacey Sobel - 1 000.00 

Krzysztof Szymański - 1 000.00 

Witold Adamek - 1 000.00 

Anna Krasińska - - 

Piotr Orłowski 21 995.64 17 545.07 

Piotr Skrzyp - - 

Total 21 995.64 21 545.07 

 

9.42. Equity Management – Note 31 

  31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

Equity 65 497 397.23 65 448 248.08 

Minus: intangible assets 20 975 436.09 21 107 521.98 

Net value of  fixed tangible assets 37 523 261.05 38 079 706.70 

Total assets 74 707 180.15 70 815 630.37 

   

 

The equity financing of fixed assets 
175% 172% 

   

Profit from operating activities 18 031 603.73 10 460 847.40 

Plus: depreciation 5 687 816.12 3 280 029.74 

EBITDA 23 719 419.85 13 740 877.14 

Credits, loans and other financing sources 362 070.56 608 512.37 

   

Indicator: Credits, loans and other financing sources / EBITDA 2% 4% 

 

 

 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

112 

 

9.43. Classification of financial instruments – Note 32 

 

 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 

Fair value Book value 

Tangible financial assets: 8 753 315.44 8 753 315.44 

Financial assets 8 753 315.44 8 753 315.44 

Current financial assets: 36 592 292.22 36 592 292.22 

Trade and other receivables 30 041 189.11 30 041 189.11 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 520 736.69 6 520 736.69 

Other financial assets 30 366.42 30 366.42 

Total: 45 345 607.66 45 345 607.66 

  

01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 

Fair value Book value 

 

Long-term financial liabilities: 59 353.95 59 353.95 

Credits and loans - - 

Other liabilities 59 353.95 59 353.95 

Short-term liabilities: 7 150 773.33 7 150 773.33 

Credits and loans - - 

Trade and other liabilities 6 848 056.72 6 848 056.72 

Other financial liabilities 302 716.61 302 716.61 

Total 7 210 127.28 7 210 127.28 

 

 

 

   

Interest income 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012  01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Bank deposits 325 565.71 694 003.14 

Loans given - - 

Investments - - 

Total  325 565.71 694 003.14 

 

 

 

   

 Interest costs 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012   01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

 Short-term and long-term credits (35 319.70) (84 402.63) 

 Finance leasing (41 635.49) (43 358.18) 

 Bonds issued - - 

 Loans received - - 

Total  (76 955.19) (127 760.81) 

  

Profit or losses by category of instruments 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012   01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Total profit or losses by category of financial instruments -                                     -    

 

 

 

The amount of any losses due to impairment (by categories 

of financial instruments) 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012   01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011  

Assets available for sale - - 

Loans and receivables - - 

Investments held to maturity  - - 

Total impairment losses                                      -                                        -    

 

 

 

 

 

 



Kino Polska TV S.A.  

 Annual Report 2012 

(Translation of the Report – originally issued in Polish) 

 

 

113 

 

9.44. The employment structure – Note 33 

  
01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012   01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 

Management Board 
2 2 

Directors (for departments) 
14 16 

Department of administration 
7 4 

Department of TV Channels  69 59 

Other specialists 
0 0 

Total 92  81 

 

9.45. Information on the remuneration of the auditor or the entity authorized to audit financial statements 

– Note 34 

   31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

Mandatory audit of financial statements 94 000.00 76 000.00 

Other attestation services 12 000.00 - 

Tax advisory services - - 

Other services - - 

                                                TOTAL 106 000.00 76 000.00 

 

 










































